AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, JUNE 21, 2021
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL

The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting in accordance with the Governor's
Proclamation of Disaster Emergency regarding meetings and hearings. The City encourages in-person attendees
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission.

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the
following ways:

a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738.

b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738# or +19292056099,,96272871738#

¢) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.

d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisgahluQ (view only).

e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only).

To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding
officer when not actually speaking.

Call to Order by the Mayor
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes
1. Regular Meeting of June 7, 2021.
Agenda Revisions

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City
business.)

Old Business

2. Pass Ordinance #2990, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
Boards and Commissions, upon its third & final consideration.

New Business

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

3. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the reappointment of members to
Boards and Commissions:
a) Clare Struck, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.
b) Brian Bowman, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.
¢) Mario Basurto, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.
d) Jordan Beranek, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.
e) Melissa Heston, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024.

Page 1 of 3




|~

|

|©

[~

|

f) Susan Langan, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023.
g) Leslie Prideaux, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2024.
h) Annie Gougler, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2024.

i) Mary Carlson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2024.

Receive and file the Work Session minutes of June 7, 2021 relative to the following item:
a) Downtown Zoning Ordinance.

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 7, 2021 relative to the following item:
a) Downtown & College Hill Parking Policy Discussion.

Approve a request for a temporary sign at 3409 Cedar Heights Drive, June 22-23, 2021.

Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:
a) Bani's, 2128 College Street.

b) G's Corner, 2125 College Street Suite E.

¢) Greenleaf Tobacco & Vaper, 5901 University Avenue.

d) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue.

e) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue.

f) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.

b) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - renewal.

c¢) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - renewal.

d) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
e) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal.

f) David’'s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor — new.

g) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service — new.

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered

separately.)

9.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with Eide Bailly, LLP to
perform the audit of the City's FY21 financial statements and compliance with federal award
programs.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Client Authorization to Bind Coverage with
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. relative to renewal of the City's Public Entity
Insurance for FY22.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative Services Agreement with
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield relative to the City’'s FY22 Employee Health Plan.

Resolution approving a Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc. relative to the City’s FY22 Employee
Health Plan.

Resolution approving and adopting revised job classifications.
Resolution approving and adopting the City’s FY22 Payroll Resolution.
Resolution approving and adopting the City’s FY22 Fee Schedule.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Aid Service/Product Agreement with City
Laundering Company for FY2022-FY2024.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Janitorial Products Agreement with Laser Tech.
USA, Inc., d/b/a Office Express/Office Products for FY2022-FY2024.

Page 2 of 3




32.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Linen Services Agreement with Aramark
Uniform Services for FY2022-FY2024.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Office Supply & Copy Paper Product
Agreement with Laser Tech. USA, Inc., d/b/a Office Express/Office Products for FY2022-FY2024.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Uniform Products Agreement with ServiceWear
Apparel, Inc. for FY2022-FY2024.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with CivicPlus, LLC
relative to Recreation Management Software.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Extensions of Leases and two new Red
House Studio Leases relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artists’ studio space, in
conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program.

Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Rownd Trust grant application to the Cedar
Falls Community Foundation by the Historic Preservation Commission.

Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located
at 1619 Clay Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.

Resolution approving a Second Amendment to Deed of Dedication of The Arbors First Addition.

Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a dump truck and
components for the Public Works Department.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair
Agreement with Aldi Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 219
Brandilynn Boulevard.

Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Pirc-Tobin
Construction, Inc., in the amount of $265,163.35, for the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension
Project.

Resolution setting July 6, 2021 as the date of the public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public
improvement project for the West 27th Street Reconstruction Project, and to authorize acquisition of
private property for said project.

Resolution receiving and filing, and setting July 6, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Cyber Lane Extension
Project.

Resolution setting July 6, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the FY2022 (FFY2021) Annual
Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium.

Allow Bills and Claims

Allow Bills and Claims of June 21, 2021.

City Council Referrals
City Council Updates
Staff Updates

Adjournment

Page 3 of 3




53343 -

53344 -

53345 -

53346 -

CITY HALL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JUNE 7, 2021
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:30 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse,
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.

It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of May 17, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of
record. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Safety Director Olson responded to a request by Rosemary Beach, 5018
Sage Road, for the speed trailer to monitor vehicle speed on 1st Street from
Washington Street east to the bridge.

The following individuals spoke about the Juneteenth proclamation and racial
equity:

Andrea Geary, Cedar Falls

Sam Blatt, 806 Seerley Boulevard

Max Tensen, 1318 West 5th Street

Clifton Jenes, 217 Butler Avenue, Waterloo

Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, spoke opposed to the agenda format and
requested changes.

T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, commended City Council for the job they do.

Mayor Green recognized Councilmember Frank Darrah for receiving the 2021
Representative Citizen award.

Mayor Green then read the following proclamations:

Proclamation recognizing June 13-19, 2021 as Bird-Friendly City Week. Lorene
Wellnitz accepted the proclamation. Following the presentation, Mayor Green
accepted an award from the Bird-Friendly lowa Steering Committee for the City
receiving statewide designation as a Bird-Friendly City.

Proclamation recognizing June 19, 2021 as Juneteenth — Freedom Day.
President of the Black Hawk County Chapter of the NAACP LaTanya Graves
accepted the proclamation and commented.

Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 21, 2021, this
was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public
improvement project for the Ashworth Drive Extension Project and to authorize
acquisition of private property for said project. It was then moved by Darrah and
seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

Iltem 1.




53347 -

53348 -

53349 -

53350 -

53351 -

53352 -

53353 -

-2-

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed project and acquisition. Upon being advised that there were no written
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer
Tolan provided a brief summary of the proposed project and acquisitions.
Following questions and comments by Lisa Johnson, 4923 Hudson Road
(opposes), T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, Dave Nichol, 4919 Hudson Road
(supports), and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and responses by Public Works
Director Schrage, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next
order of business.

It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,386,
approving a public improvement project for the Ashworth Drive Extension Project
and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project, be adopted.
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Harding and Sires, and
responses by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,386 duly passed and adopted.

Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 21, 2021, this
was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans,
specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost for the West 2th Street
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded
by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed
on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Tolan provided a
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to
the next order of business.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,387,
approving proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost
for the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project, be adopted.
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,387 duly passed and adopted.

Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 21, 2021, this
was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans,
specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost for the Oak Park Boulevard
Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. It was then moved by deBuhr and
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the

Iltem 1.




53354 -

53355 -

53356 -

53357 -

-3-

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Tolan provided a
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to
the next order of business.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,388,
approving proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost
for the Oak Park Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project, be adopted.
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,388 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2989,
amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain
property located west of Cedar Heights Drive and north of Huntington Road from
the A-1, Agricultural District and R-1, Residential Zoning District, and placing the
same in the MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District, be passed upon its
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2990,
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
Boards and Commissions, be passed upon its second consideration. Following
guestions by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street and Councilmember deBuhr, and
responses by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion
carried.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2991,
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Algonquin and Ashworth Drives, be
passed upon its second consideration. Following comments by T.J. Frein, 1319
Austin Way, and responses by Director of Public Works Schrage, it was moved
by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the rules requiring Ordinance #2991 be
considered at three separate meetings, be suspended. The Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2991,
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Algonquin and Ashworth Drives, be
passed upon its third & final consideration. Following due consideration by the
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll the
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr. Kruse, Harding,

Iltem 1.




53358 -

-4 -

Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2991 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that the following items on the
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved:

Receive and file the Mayor's Monthly Report for May 2021.

Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of standing
committees for 2021.

Receive and file the resignation of Willie B. Barney, Jr. as a member of the
Human Rights Commission effective June 15, 2021.

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the
reappointment of members to Boards and Commissions:

a) Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Metropolitan Transit Authority Board of Trustees,
term ending 06/30/2024.

b) Lauren Finke, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2025.

c) Kendra Wohlert, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2025.

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a
certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer.

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April, 2021.

Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:
a) Cypress Lounge, 209 State Street Suite A.

b) Fareway, 4500 South Main Street.

c) Fareway, 214 North Magnolia Drive.

d) Hill Street News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street.

e) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street.

f) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive.

g) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street.

h) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway.

i) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue.

J) Suds, 2223 1/2 College Street.

k) Tobacco Outlet Plus, 4116 University Avenue Suite 104-105.
[) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive.

m) Walmart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard.

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:

a) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
b) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.

c) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C liquor -renewal.

d) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.

e) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor &
outdoor service - renewal.

f) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
g) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C liquor &
outdoor service - renewal.

Iltem 1.




53359 -

53360 -

-5-

h) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal.

i) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal.

J) Moonshine Mob Bar, 419 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service -
sidewalk café.

k) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary
expansion of outdoor service area. (June 25-27, 2021)

[) Sturgis Falls Celebration, Gateway Park, Special Class C liquor & outdoor
service - 5-day permit.

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding to receive and file the

Committee of the Whole minutes of May 17, 2021, relative to the following items:

a) Downtown Zoning Ordinance.
b) Recreation Update.

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be
introduced and adopted:

Resolution #22,389, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to
remove snow and ice from the property located at 1122 West 22nd Street.

Resolution #22,390, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to
remove snow and ice from the property located at 2413 Olive Street.

Resolution #22,391, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to
remove snow and ice from the property located at 804 West Seerley Boulevard.

Resolution #22,392, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to
remove snow and ice from the property located at 818 West Seerley Boulevard.

Resolution #22,393, approving and authorizing execution of an Easement
Agreement, in conjunction with a sidewalk café at 419 Main Street.

Resolution #22,394, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with WEX Health, Inc. relative to providing COBRA Administrative
Services.

Resolution #22,395, approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of the
City's Long Term Disability Policy with National Insurance Services for FY22-
FY24.

Resolution #22,396, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in
Support of the Cedar Falls Community Theatre, Inc. relative to an FY2022
Community Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,397, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in
Support of the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to an FY2022 Community
Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,398, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in

Iltem 1.




-6-

Support of the College Hill Partnership relative to an FY2022 Community
Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,399, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in
Support of the University of Northern lowa - Gallagher Bluedorn relative to an
FY2022 Community Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,400, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in
Support of the Robert J. Hibbs Cedar Falls VFW Post 3896 Gold Star Family
Memorial relative to an FY2022 Community Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,401, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in
Support of the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Symphony relative to an FY2022
Community Betterment Grant.

Resolution #22,402, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with ePRepSolutions, LLC for a Comprehensive Financial Analysis of
Recreation & Community Programs.

Resolution #22,403, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product
Agreement with Bear Creek Archeology, Inc. for cultural resources identification
survey (CRIS) services in the industrial park, in conjunction with the lowa
Economic Development Authority (IEDA) Certified Site Program.

Resolution #22,404, approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay
Zoning District site plan for facade improvements at 2125 College Street.

Resolution #22,405, approving and accepting an Ingress and Egress Easement
relative to the 302 Main Street and 123 East 3rd Street properties.

Resolution #22,406, approving the Blain’s Corner 2nd Addition Minor Subdivision
Plat.

Resolution #22,407, approving a Hwy-1, Highway Commercial Zoning District
site plan for construction of a grocery store at 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, as
recommended by City staff.

Resolution #22,408, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the
purchase of an end loader for the Public Works Department.

Resolution #22,409, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement
with the Black Hawk County Solid Waste Management Commission relative to
the use of certain city-owned property located at 1500 Bluff Street by the
WasteTrac environmental education team.

Resolution #22,410, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the
work of Boulder Contracting, LLC for the 2020 Street Patching Project.

Resolution #22,411, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting
the low bid of Peterson Contractors Inc., in the amount of $6,520,858.73, for the
Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project, and authorizing the City Engineer to
execute the required contract, bond and insurance, using the lowa Department of
Transportation (IDOT) electronic file management system.

Iltem 1.




53361 -

53362 -

53363 -

53364 -

53365 -

-7-

Resolution #22,412, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental
Agreement No. 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder &
Associates, Inc. for construction services relative to the Cedar Heights Drive
Reconstruction Project.

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,389 through #22,412 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,413,
approving a Proposal for Facilitation Services, and authorizing execution of a
contract with lowa State University Extension relative to the Racial Equity Task
Force, be adopted. Following comments by Councilmembers Darrah, Dunn, and
Miller, the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding,
Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared
Resolution #22,413 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the bills and claims of
June 07, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None.
Motion carried.

City Administrator Gaines announced that the Cedar Falls Public Library re-
opened to the public today.

It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller to adjourn to Executive Session
to evaluate the performance of the City Administrator pursuant to lowa Code
Section 21.5(1)(i). Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None.
Motion carried.

The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:48 P.M.
Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 9:43 P.M.

It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned
at 9:44 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Iltem 1.

10




Item 2.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Legal Services Division
Mayor Green, City Council

Kevin Rogers, City Attorney
DATE: June 9, 2021
SUBJECT: Amendment to Code of Ordinances Sec. 2-276

There is an ambiguity in the reappointment process for members of City authorized Boards and
Commissions. While these members serve for a definite term as provided in the Code of
Ordinances, there appears to be a just cause standard and hearing rights if a member is not
reappointed for additional terms after the first term is served. Such a situation basically renders
terms meaningless.

In order to clarify this ambiguity, Mayor Green has requested that the Section of the Code of
Ordinances dealing with Boards and Commissions be amended to make it clear that
reappointment for successive terms is within the discretion of the Mayor and Council, and non-
reappointment need not be for cause.

Removal of a Board or Commission member mid-term, however, would still require just cause.

The proposed amendment is attached.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

11




Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319)273-8600

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-276, MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY;
ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS
AND COMMISSIONS, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU
THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-276, APPOINTMENT; MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY;
ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS; NON-REAPPOINTMENT.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 2-276, Members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings, of Division
1, Generally, of Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new
Section 2-276, Appointment; members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings; Non-
reappointment, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 2-276. Appointment; mMembers moving from city; absence from meetings; non-

reappointment.

Members of boards and commissions established by this Code are appointed by the mayor with the approval
of the council. The permanent removal from the crty of any such member-efa-board-ercommission-whereinthe
FRea o ahei, or the absence from three consecutive
regular meetlngs or f|ve meetlngs wrthln one year by sucha member-ef—&ny—ef—sueh—bearele—e#eemnms&rens except
in case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation, shall render the member's office
vacant._Reappointment of such members for additional terms shall be at the discretion of the mayor and council.
No hearing shall be afforded in the event of non-reappointment, which may be without cause.

(Code 2017, § 2-211)

INTRODUCED:

PASSED 15" CONSIDERATION:
PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:
PASSED 3" CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Robert M. Green, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Item 2.

12




Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319)273-8600

ORDINANCE NO. 2990

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-276, MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY;
ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS
AND COMMISSIONS, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU
THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-276, APPOINTMENT; MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY;
ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS; NON-REAPPOINTMENT.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 2-276, Members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings, of Division
1, Generally, of Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new
Section 2-276, Appointment; members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings; Non-
reappointment, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 2-276. Appointment; members moving from city; absence from meetings; non-
reappointment.

Members of boards and commissions established by this Code are appointed by the mayor
with the approval of the council. The permanent removal from the city of any such member, or
the absence from three consecutive regular meetings or five meetings within one year by such
member, except in case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due
explanation, shall render the member's office vacant. Reappointment of such members for
additional terms shall be at the discretion of the mayor and council. No hearing shall be
afforded in the event of non-reappointment, which may be without cause.

INTRODUCED: May 17, 2021

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION: May 17, 2021

PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION: June 7, 2021

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST: Robert M. Green, Mayor

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk

Item 2.

13




TO:
FROM:

DATE:
SUBJECT:

Item 3.

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-273-8600
Fax: 319-273-8610
www.cedarfalls.com

City Council
Mayor Robert M Green &L/L____,.

June 2, 2021

Parks & Recreation Commission — Member Reappointment

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), |
hereby nominate the following members of the Parks & Recreation Commission for
reappointment, as their current terms expire on June 30, 2021.

e Ms. Clare Struck (Reappointment) — Term ends 7/1/2024
e Mr. Brian Bowman (Reappointment) — Term ends 7/1/2024

2. The board service of these two nominees have been reviewed by Community
Development team; all members have had excellent attendance and have actively been
contributing to the work of the Commission; all have agreed to serve for an additional
term if approved by the City Council.

3. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above nominations.

XC: City Administrator
Director of Community Development
Recreation & Community Programs Manager

14




MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
W www.cedarfalls.com

FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:
REF:

City Council

Mayor Robert M. Green Zmr&n/

June 17, 2021

Reappointment of Human Rights Commissioners

(a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls 812-27: Human Rights Commission
(b) lowa Code §869.16A: Gender Balance

1. Inaccordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate the following citizens for reappointment to the Human Rights Commission:

Mr. Mario Basurto — Term ends 7/1/2024 (Reappointment)
Ms. Jordan Beranek — Term ends 7/1/2024 (Reappointment)
Ms. Melissa Heston — Term ends 7/1/2024 (Reappointment)
Ms. Susan Langan — Term ends 7/1/2023 (Reappointment)

2. Ms. Langan’s term has been set to expire in 2023 in order to conform to the new Human
Rights Commission bylaws, which state that three members will be appointed each year, for
a total of nine in a three-year cycle.

3. The members for reappointment have satisfactorily carried out their duties, and | support
their continued service.

4. These appointments comply with the provisions of reference (b), in that the commission will
consist of four female and four male commissioners with these new appointments.

5. In the near future, one additional commissioner appointment will be made to fill an existing
vacancy.

Xc: City Administrator
Director, Finance and Business Operations
Chair, Human Rights Commission
Staff Liaison

HitH

Item 3.

15




MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126
W www.cedarfalls.com

TO: City Council

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green MJ

DATE: May 18, 2021
SUBJECT: Visitors and Tourism Board — Member Reappointment

1.

2.

3.

XC:

REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls 817-299: Visitors and Tourism Board

In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), | hereby
nominate the following members of the Visitors and Tourism Board for reappointment, as
their current terms expire on July 1%,

e Ms. Leslie Prideaux (Reappointment) — Term ends 7/1/2024
e Ms. Annie Gougler (Reappointment) — Term ends 7/1/2024
e Ms. Mary Carlson (Reappointment) — Term ends 7/1/2024

The board service of these three nominees have been reviewed by Community
Development staff; all members have had excellent attendance and have actively been
contributing to the work of the Board; all have agreed to serve for an additional term if
approved by the City Council.

Please contact me if you have any questions about the above nominations.
City Administrator

Director of Community Development
Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager

Item 3.

16




CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
Cedar Falls Council Chambers
June 7, 2021

The City Council held a special work session at City Hall at 5:10 p.m. on June 7, 2021,
with the following persons in attendance: Mayor Robert M. Green, Frank Darrah, Kelly
Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse (teleconference), Mark Miller, Dave Sires, and
Susan deBuhr. Staff members attended from all City Departments. Members of the
community attended the meeting and teleconferenced in.

Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, Downtown Zoning Ordinance.
Mayor Green introduced Community Development Director Stephanie Sheetz.

Director Sheetz indicated this is a discussion on the Downtown Zoning draft and will
feed into the decision matrix. Zoning was identified as something to revisit for the
community in the 2012 Comprehensive Plan. It has been discussed in several goal
setting meetings and started with the Downtown Vision Plan and project priorities; the
Vision Plan was adopted in November of 2019 and now the City has a draft of the
zoning code for consideration. Policies like this and regulations require revisiting and
this evaluation is to consider replacing what the City has at this time for the downtown,
per the Regulating Plan. Examples of past projects where concerns occurred through
the review process and clarity in the ordinance could have helped include the River
Place development: was it too industrial for Downtown; did it fit the character of
Downtown? There was a lot of community conversation about the Hampton Inn
proposal regarding its architecture and size. The proposed code speaks to these types
of issues. She stated private parking amounts have been a concern, particularly in the
case of reuse of upper floors where it may not be possible to provide on-site parking.
This ordinance is under consideration for the study area defined in the adopted Vision
Plan. A new zoning map, called the Regulating Plan, will be adopted with the new
zoning regulations, which is specific to the Downtown area. Director Sheetz noted that
the purpose of the work session is to answer questions and to determine if there are
any changes Council would like to make to P&Z’s recommended draft.

Mayor Green opened Council discussion.

Councilmember Sires asked about 1% Street C2 zoning and why it’s only %z block
instead of a full block, to create more square footage for commercial development. He
noted the importance of having commercial property on both sides of main
thoroughfares. Planning and Community Services Manager Karen Howard referred to
the map handout and explained the colored sections under the current zoning lines
show the new zoning goes % into the block so mixed use development could have more
space but this also keeps the zoning the same on both sides of 2" Street. The vision
plan shows a transition from 1% to 2" Streets so 2" maintains a residential character.
In summary, the proposed zoning allows both a larger area for mixed use/commercial
as well as space along 2" Street for new residential building types as a transition to
residential. Councilmember Sires asked who requested the rezoning. Ms. Howard
responded the Downtown Vision Plan was developed by the community participants.

Iltem 4.

17




Zoning proposals then follow the adopted Vision Plan. The R4 and R3 zoning districts
contain a lot of single family homes. However, the current zoning would allow a higher
density and wider variety of uses than what most people would like to have to transition
from Downtown to Overman Park neighborhood. The public indicated a desire to
preserve the neighborhoods that are there. The light blue area in the Regulating Plan
represents an incremental down-zoning from the current R3 and R4. It would allow for
some infill development of housing types that fit into the scale of the existing
neighborhood.

Councilmember Sires asked for definition of “Neighborhood Small.” Ms. Howard
responded that the discussion during the visioning process centered around the
transition from downtown to the residential neighborhood. There was a desire to
preserve the historic residential character. To achieve that goal, the Neighborhood
Small allows a variety of housing types, but within the current scale and character of
existing single-family homes.

Councilmember Kruse referenced conversations he’s had in the community and stated
most people have no idea what’s going on [with regard to rezoning] and are concerned
about what can be done in the future. In down-zoning, how will the City accommodate
the next 50 years of growth? He noted that the needs of the Downtown area will grow;
the City should have the ability to go into those areas as the existing homes become
obsolete as desirable homes and become light commercial or downtown mixed-use. He
expressed concern that the City seems to be putting in barriers to growth. Mr. Geoff
Ferrell from Ferrell Madden responded that there are protections in the “Neighborhood
Small” and “Neighborhood Medium” to maintain the residential character, but there is
considerable capacity for growth in the “Urban General” and the “Storefront” areas.
There is room for minor infill and minor densification in the two neighborhood areas.

Councilmember Darrah stated his understanding of the vision plan is thinking in terms of
how communities are growing today and how they will grow in the future. The
combination of housing opportunities in this compact area reflects how communities are
growing. One of the reasons to talk about having a vision is where to go from here
instead of what’s always been done. He commented regarding parking, if we build a
town that allows people to walk to work, there would be a lot fewer cars in the
community. When older stock gets run down, there will be options that are appropriate
to rebuild in that location.

Councilmember Harding stated the old, historic houses should be preserved, they add
to the overall character of the community. If Cedar Falls grows, the Council can change
the zoning. He states his understanding of form-based zoning is that it contains
standards that are more clear and specific to what developers can do. If they comply
with the standards and check all the boxes, the project is approved. He asked if they are
denied, what are the checks and balances? Ms. Elizabeth Garvin from Community
ReCode confirmed his understanding; an applicant works their way through the
regulations and if they check all the boxes, the development should be approved. If
they are denied and feel that an error was made in denying their application, they can
appeal to the Board of Adjustment under lowa law.

Iltem 4.

18




Councilmember Darrah questioned how this will impact the role of Planning and Zoning
Commission (P&Z). Ms. Howard responded there are many zones in the City where
projects don'’t get reviewed through P&Z for site plan review; the role of the Commission
is the bigger picture items such as rezoning property. For example, if the City
determines in the future that it would be a good idea to change the zoning of an area
from “Neighborhood Small” to “Urban General” that would go before P&Z and Council to
determine consistency with the community’s vision. Howard noted that all rezoning and
subdivision reviews go through P&Z. P&Z and Council currently review site plans in only
a few districts including several overlay districts.

Mayor Green commented on the term “convenient for developers”; with a process that is
clear and well laid-out, it's not to make it more convenient but to give them a greater
sense of confidence in approval, since the approval standards and process are less
subjective. If denied, there would be an appointed or elected role to review it.

Councilmember deBuhr questioned the difference in area between the larger College
Hill and smaller Downtown zoning overlays. Director Sheetz stated that the larger study
area for College Hill is being looked at to see if it is a good fit for form-based zoning.
Mayor questioned if this is due to grid structure. Director Sheetz responded it is more
due to the current zoning. A lot of the Downtown is R3 and R4; the northern area of the
College Hill study has more R1 and R2 districts. Councilmember deBuhr requested a
written list of examples of the zoning problems which require revamping to see exactly
what the problems are. She questioned what problems are there, that we need to really
focus on. Ms. Mary Madden from Ferrell Madden responded the area around Overman
Park is predominately zoned R4 and C2, and neighborhood residents were unaware of
this zoning. The concern is that a lot of uses are allowed in R4 that many people are
unaware of and there are very few standards at all, which is a concern to current
residents for new construction. The consultants started hearing residents requesting a
nearby, close, walking neighborhood. The goal then is policies and regulations that
respect the existing context but provide clear development standards. She noted that
Downtown is different from the rest of Cedar Falls, and people wanted to enhance the
uniqueness of Downtown. There are a lot of other places in the City that can
accommodate broader commercial development; to create the compact, walk-able
mixed use area, trying to think more affirmatively about what the City would like to see
the development be like and not regulate by use and very broad parameters. How can
the City encourage/require the type of development the citizens indicated they’d like to
see? The proposed zoning moves away from subjectivity and provides measureable
standards. Councilmember deBuhr asked Director Sheetz if residents don’t know their
zoning because it was changed after their developments were completed. Director
Sheetz responded that it's hard to say; she estimated the last City-wide rezoning was in
the early 1970s. She stated she cannot recall a City-initiated rezoning of properties in
the Downtown study area offhand.

Councilmember Miller stated that he doesn’t think most people know what their zoning
is. He requested clarity on the decision matrix regarding the west side of Overman Park
and allowing existing businesses to stay conforming in a property residential in
character. Ms. Howard responded that P&Z had conversations regarding a number of

Iltem 4.

19




older homes converted to retail or offices; there was a concern with making them non-
conforming with the new zoning. P&Z discussed specific language to include with the
code, to keep existing businesses conforming; this allows them to continue and expand,
but any new use must meet what's specified under the new code. Councilmember
deBuhr confirmed that everything existing will stay and be conforming. Mayor Green
questioned if the “Neighborhood Small” would potentially expand beyond this area. Ms.
Howard stated it could but the City would want community feedback on areas outside
the study area; are there areas the City wants to allow to transform and areas the City
wants to preserve?

Councilmember Harding asked if there is a way to be creative in the “Neighborhood
Small” to have a business apply for an exception for alternative uses, similar to the
ordinance recently adopted for re-use of churches. Ms. Howard responded under the
current draft, only existing businesses in that area would be allowed to continue. A
change to the draft would be needed to allow more possibility for new businesses. She
also noted that the City does have a generous home occupation ordinance that allows
people to operate businesses out of their homes. Councilmember Harding asked if
there was a way to allow for broader possibilities. Ms. Howard responded yes, but
noted the vision plan intentionally concentrates commercial activity in the Downtown
core because if it spreads too far, the economist consultant stated it may dilute the
commercial market and could harm the Downtown core. Ms. Madden elaborated further
that the market specialist indicated the further businesses are spread out, the walkability
goes down; she noted that businesses get a lot of synergy from what they’re next to.
There is a lot of land area in the study area designated for small businesses. The
current R3 and R4 permit some office use, but not retail. The study tried to strike a
balance. The study focuses concentration of mixed use within a couple blocks of Main
Street, with a wider variety of residential options close to the Downtown core.

Councilmember Kruse asked about townhomes and duplexes going in to
“Neighborhood Small”; are rentals being encouraged in this area? Ms. Madden
responded R4 currently would allow extensive rentals. However, she noted that a
townhouse is a building form and zoning does not typically dictate renter versus owner.
The Code would allow owner-occupied row houses and townhouses. This is not trying
to regulate owner versus rental.

Councilmember deBuhr asked when density is increased, how does it impact crime
statistics? Ms. Howard responded she doesn’t know if there is a correlation. There
won’t be a huge [density] increase over what’s there now. In the “Neighborhood Small”
density may go down from what is currently allowed. The new zoning is an incremental
change. Mr. Ferrell responded that the building form standards are careful about
creating and fostering buildings focused on the street; one of the most effective forms of
crime prevention is eyes on the street. These are building types that foster safe,
walkable streets.

Councilmember Kruse asked about parking requirements. Parking determines how
many bedrooms and what sort of structure is built. His concern is overflow parking in
the neighborhoods and residents who can’t park in front of their homes. Ms. Howard
showed slides regarding current and proposed parking regulations. She noted that the

Iltem 4.

20




Code is trying to respond to the actual demand for parking and not create a lot of “spill-
over” parking. The intent is to respond to the overall parking need for a project. We
should consider if we are we wasting land downtown by requiring too much parking. The
parking study indicated that may be the case for residential. Howard also noted there is
a new parking requirement for upper floor commercial that isn’t required currently.
Councilmember Kruse stated the addition of retail and storefronts and the employees in
those establishments to customers and clients creates a delicate balance. He stated
95% of people have cars and Cedar Falls draws visitors from out of town which fills the
streets. He stated he doesn’t agree there’s enough parking.

Director Sheetz asked for further consideration of any questions, comments, or
additional analysis for the decision matrix. Councilmember deBuhr requested study into
row houses and increased density relating to crime. Councilmember Sires would like to
see 1% Street be full depth for commercial. Mayor Green stated this is addressed in
proposed amendment 9 in the decision matrix handout and after consideration, no
change was recommended by P&Z. If there is a consensus from Council to consider it
will be entertained. Councilmember Miller stated that the public directed this vision plan
and showed they want the neighborhood to stay this way. Councilmember Harding
stated that keeping the character of the street is the proposed intent and he agrees with
the proposal. Councilmember Miller stated contractors want full depth but residents
want %. Residents came to the meetings and stated they wanted neighborhoods to
stay like that, and that's what guided the consultant to come up with this. Mr. Ferrell
spoke about conversations from the neighbors led them to stop at % to preserve the
value of those houses. Careful transitions are an important part of the code.
Councilmember Kruse stated in the future homes, building plans, become obsolete.
There has to be acceptance that a neighborhood will change. Mr. Ferrell stated that
current towns that are successful are setting standards for infill that is in context with the
traditional walkable neighborhoods. Traditional neighborhoods are starting to be
renewed as people move back in and the trends are back to walkable communities as
opposed to sprawl. Councilmember Kruse asked if the City doubles in size will the
Downtown double as well? He feels must be room for expansion. He stated the best
use of streets next to Downtown may be something other than residential. Ms. Howard
states that zoning can be changed over time. Zoning is not supposed to be set in stone;
as the City changes so does zoning.

Councilmember Kruse expressed concern about no vinyl siding on a new structure.
Good quality vinyl siding can last many years with good maintenance. It's a good
product to use; there are cheaper versions; it's recyclable. He requested consideration
of the material going forward for new construction. Councilmember Miller states this
was discussed in the decision matrix, proposed amendment 10. Certain uses are
permitted in existing buildings but not new buildings. Councilmember Harding stated
vinyl siding is difficult to recycle and is not eco-friendly. Councilmember Miller stated
vinyl siding is not in character with Downtown. There are certain requirements for
certain areas.

Director Sheetz asked for consensus on the item to study density and impact on crime.
There was no consensus. Director Sheetz asked for consensus on the item to extend

Iltem 4.

21




Iltem 4.

1% Street to full depth at commercial zoning. There was no consensus. Director Sheetz
asked for consensus on the item writing a detailed analysis of current zoning issues that
brought forth this proposal. There was no consensus. Director Sheetz asked for
consensus on the item of parking. Mayor sees a consensus and requests additional
review with the decision matrix. Director Sheetz asked for a consensus on the item of
vinyl siding. There was no consensus. Director Sheetz asked if there are any other
items to have on the decision matrix. Mayor noted that he sees none.

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:14 p.m.

Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant

22




COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
City Hall — Council Chambers
June 7, 2021

The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 6:20 p.m. on June 7, 2021, with the
following Committee persons in attendance: Mayor Robert M. Green, Frank Darrah,
Sudan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and Dave Sires.
Staff members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in
person and teleconferenced in.

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda,
Downtown & College Hill Parking Discussion.

Mayor Green introduced Director of Finance and Business Operations Jennifer
Rodenbeck. Ms. Rodenbeck gave an overview of the previous year: parking studies
were done in the College Hill and Downtown Cedar Falls areas in 2018 & 2019, parking
study was implemented in October 2020, Special meeting was called in December, and
Council gave direction to suspend paid parking in municipal lots until April 1; at the
March 1, 2021 meeting it was extended until August 1. Ms. Rodenbeck stated a letter
from Community Main Street was received and it's been requested to revert back to
pre-parking study in municipal lots; which consists of city lots to be free with a four-hour
limit.

Mayor Green introduced Kim Bear, Executive Director with Community Main Street.

Ms. Bear gave an overview of the last 15 months: parking study in 2018; 2020
implementation and trainings for the board of directors, businesses and property owners
took place; March 9™ Governor Reynolds implemented the Emergency Health
Proclamation and businesses began to close; March 2020 parking was suspended;
October 2020 parking system was implemented; December 2020 parking was
suspended until April 1; and on February 10, the Community Main Street Board
requested an extension to the suspension until April 2022 and Council granted a
reprieve until August 2021. March 25, 2021 Community Main Street held a parking
Town Hall meeting to discuss parking and with stakeholders. Community Main Street
requests city lots are free with a four-hour limit. Community Main Street appreciates the
expansion of spaces on State Street, addition of three-hour parking and 15-minute
spaces to accommodate take-out and curbside service. Ms. Bear stated College Hill is
much different from Main Street and can’t be considered a one size fits all.

Mayor Green introduced Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director with College Hill
Partnership.

Ms. Sogard referred to the letter that was submitted to Council and stated that
Community Main Street and College Hill have unique needs and are different and have
different demands. Ms. Sogard asked if paid parking is removed how will that affect
enforcement; enforcement is very important to the College Hill area and how will this
affect capital improvements of College Hill and the parking lots. Jacque Danielsen, City
Clerk stated College Hill enforcement would continue. Ms. Danielsen stated that
revenues at this time are not separated between College Hill and Community Main
Street. Ms. Rodenbeck stated we can begin to separate the revenues of the parking

Item 5.

23




system (College Hill and Downtown). Ms. Rodenbeck stated that the City would base
capital improvements on need and the enforcement will still be in place. Support for
those capital improvements will eventually be taken from selling bonds or the general
fund, since the parking fund would no longer support the capital improvements.

Mark Kittrell, 250 State Street, agrees with the Downtown Vision plan. He asked the
Council if now is the time for a parking ramp and doesn’t agree with having paid parking
in Downtown Cedar Falls. How do we bring additional parking into the City?

Darin Beck, 504 North Highland Drive, stated the City needs to plan for future growth,
include in the Downtown Vision plan and protect the integrity of Downtown Cedar Falls.
He agreed that Downtown and College Hill are not the same and stated that parking
needs to be a priority. Mr. Beck suggested a public and private collaborative.

Councilmember deBuhr wanted to verify that this discussion is to decide if we do paid
parking or not. Mayor Green stated the issue tonight is whether Council ends the
moratorium on paid parking or not. Councilmember deBuhr asked for a summary of
what was the implementation that was going to be put in place from the parking study.
Ms. Rodenbeck confirmed the parking in municipal lot hours for Downtown Main Street
before suspension was 9 a.m. — 8 p.m. at .50 per hour and $3.00 set amount from 5
p.m. — 8 p.m., but the $3.00 flat rate was not implemented at the request of Downtown
businesses. Ms. Rodenbeck confirmed that equipment was purchased and installed and
only implemented for one month in October. Councilmember deBuhr confirmed that lots
are full because it’s free and unlimited time limits. Ms. Rodenbeck confirmed lots are
full and an ordinance change would be needed if Council would like to modify parking in
the municipal lots. Councilmember deBuhr asked if problems were documented in the
month the pay stations were implemented. Ms. Danielsen stated concerns might have
been that people didn’t know the parking implementation had started and the permit
system had some software issues. Councilmember deBuhr confirmed that enforcement
is paid through those parking funds and it will be depleted if there’s no revenue from
parking. Ms. Danielsen confirmed the information that Councilmember deBuhr stated is
true and added that the parking hours on College Hill are 9 a.m. — 6 p.m. Ms.
Rodenbeck informed Councilmembers of the parking fund revenue: before parking
study in parking fund there was $900,000; as of today $662,000; spent $200,000 plus
on parking study and equipment; fund has lost $161,000 since July; about $14,000 per
month. Ms. Rodenbeck stated that evening and weekend enforcement times did
increase since the parking study and an additional part-time parking attendant was
hired. Councilmember Harding asked how much property taxes would increase if the
parking fund was depleted. Ms. Rodenbeck is not certain of an exact amount per
household at this time. Councilmember Sires would like to give Community Main Street
the free city lots with a 4-hour parking time limit. Councilmember deBuhr asked about
how the kiosks would work for 4-hour parking. Ms. Danielsen stated the kiosks would
be removed and no long-term parking would be available in the lots since meters were
removed after the parking study. Councilmember Harding asked how the parking fund
was accumulated over the years and Ms. Rodenbeck stated revenues were collected
and no capital projects had been scheduled yet. The CIP has money set aside for
parking lots in College Hill and Downtown. Ms. Rodenbeck confirmed that general fund

Item 5.

24




money could be transferred annually to the parking fund, which will affect property
taxes.

Ms. Sogard stated the College Hill Board of Directors envision removing paid parking
when school isn’t in session because the demand for parking decreases, but the board
believes in the parking study when college is in session and confirms the 2-hour lots
would be acceptable when the college session ends. Councilmember Harding is
concerned about property taxes and capital improvements. Ms. Rodenbeck clarified the
$900,000 was only parking revenues (generated from meters, tickets, etc.) and parking
revenues in the future will not keep up with expenses and the general fund would
contribute to the parking fund. Councilmember Darrah stated that if there’s a parking
ramp in Downtown’s future and asked what about a commitment of the businesses in
Downtown, since this is a partnership. Mr. Beck expressed his concerns about College
Square Mall offering free rent and free parking, and taking customers from the
Downtown area if paid parking is reinstated. Councilmember Dunn asked if the parking
ramp is going to be free; people will not use a paid ramp if parking lots are free.
Councilmember Harding stated we need to work with the businesses to solve the issue
of employees parking in customer parking. Mayor Green commented that customers
that won'’t pay in the lots will just go elsewhere. Councilmember Kruse is concerned
about enough parking in the Downtown Vision Plan and this will increase the demand
for parking.

Councilmember Miller motioned to approve Community Main Street’s request:
Municipal lots, free with a 4-hour limit and the required ordinance changes.
Councilmember Sires seconded.

Councilmember Harding made an amendment to draft ordinance changes for
Community Main Street and speak to College Hill on how to proceed separately. Ms.
Rodenbeck confirmed the Community Main Street request and that the suspension of
paid parking in the College Hill area would continue until City staff could have
discussions with College Hill Partnership to determine needs.

Councilmember deBuhr asked if the equipment is returnable and Ms. Danielsen stated it
is not returnable and there’s currently no guaranteed resale value.

City Administrator Gaines recommended staff draft an ordinance for Council’s approval
for an upcoming meeting.

Councilmembers voted on the amendment to separate College Hill paid parking. Aye:
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires and Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Councilmember voted on original motion (motioned to approve Community Main
Street’s request: municipal lots, free with a 4-hour limit and the required ordinance
change). Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires and Dunn. Nay: None.
Motion carried.

There being no further business, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m.
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor

Item 5.

25




Item 6.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council
FROM: Thom Weintraut, Planner il
DATE: June 16, 2021

SUBJECT: Temporary Sign Request
Randall's Bull Sign — GreenState Credit Union, 3409 Cedar Heights Dr.

This office received the attached request to
place the Randall’s Bull Sign at 3409 Cedar
Heights Drive. Attached is a letter of
permission from the Vice President/Branch
Manager to allow Ms. Sarah Clough
permission to place the Bull sign for a special
celebration for her sister who works for
GreenState.

The sign will be a large bull with a typical
changeable-letter sign on wheels. The sign
will display a congratulatory message and will
be located in the parking lot as shown in the
photograph in the right. The sign will be
placed in a location that will not obstruct the
vision of motorists.

The Planning and Community Services
Division recommends approval to display the
temporary bull sign at 3409 Cedar Heights
Drive, the corner of Cedar Heights and
University Avenue on the on Wednesday,
June 23, 2021

If you have any questions or need additional
information, please feel free to contact this
office.

XC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director
Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director
Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager

26




PO Box 800, North Liberty, IA 52317-0800 | ey g | 1-800-397-3790

Greetate

CREDIT UNION
06/16/2021

To whom it may concern,

| respectfully request a permit to place the movable Randall’s sign for an announcement on my property. The sign will be
placed out of the right a way in the driveway away from the street. The date will be Wednesday 06/23/2021. You may drop
off Tuesday evening 06/22/2021.

The address is 3409 Cedar Heights Drive. Please place sign in red rectangle on map below.

Thank you for your time and consideration

Heather Lepa | NMLS ID #1470047
' Vice President/Branch Manager
b GreenState Credit Union | 3409 Cedar Heights Dr | Cedar Falls, 1A 50613
p: (319) 553-3867 | m: (319) 830-4733 | f: (319) 553-0061

heatherlepa@greenstate.org | greenstate.org
Creating Lasting Value

GreenState

CREDIT UNION

27




| lowa Retail Permit Applic """
R EVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

https://tax.iowa.gov

Instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) @27 /o1 [ 24 through June 30,22
I/we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:

Business Information:
Trade Name/DBA_Cedur SKy Tne / Ban: %
Physical Location Address 212 8 (ﬂ/ﬂé"?é’, Sheet c.wfe,},arﬁlms z2PIp S06/75
Mailing Address 212 % CB//é%’ S%L}"f’df‘ Clty@/éi ;’Lﬁﬂf State TA 2P 906/ 3
Business Phone Number 3 |9 - 2 774666
Legal Ownership Information:
Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor 0  Partnership 0 Corporation { LLC O LLP O
Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, LLC, or LLP C(Z’d/&fk"" ﬂw Inc.
Mailing Address 2425 olleye Shrest CityCedur Falli  state T4 2P 50643
Phone Number 312’2 7 76 61’6’6 Fax Number Emailwahrgri{y 736@)@}1@!@;9

Retail Information:

Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter @  Vending machine O
Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes 0 No X
Types of Products Sold: (Check all that apply)

Cigarettes K Tobacco ¥ Alternative Nicotine Products Kl Vapor Products B

Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishment)
Alternative nicotine/vapor store K Bar O Convenience store/gas station 0  Drug store O
Grocery store I Hotel/motel O Liquor store & Restaurant O Tobacco store Kl

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes 0  Other O

If application is approved and permit granted, I/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or Corporate Official(s)

Name (please pnnt)@é’ﬁ/—} N/ W%}H AD)‘ Name (please print) /
Signature QA? Signature /
Date._ 0o 6-04-21 Date /

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY — MUST BE COMPLETE

¢ Fill in the amount paid for the permit: & rDD_Ub Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
o Fill in the date the permit was approved Beve!'ages Diyision within 30 days qf issyance. Make sure
by the council or-beard: the information on the application is complete and
« Fillin th it ber | db accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
them't /g R M DRSS UECDY only the application is required. It is preferred that
. ,Cl y Y- . ) applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt
e Filtin th; name of the city or CUWYCmr Talls confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
|ssumg|;:| ElpermIE El e Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com 28
= hiev Renewal e Fax: 515-281-7375

70-014a (06/22/17)



Iltem 7.

lowa Retail Permit Application

R EVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

https://tax.iowa.gov

Instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) _ 07 _/ J/ 1 21 through June 30, R0R2
I/we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:

Business Information:
Trade Name/DBA_ (9 (puNweX
Physical Location Address2/ 2 S  /p//F5H 17 f’ﬁ(%lty ZIP S0 é6/53
Mailing Address 42/ Y /%u/Amj-vl ow DRCity ¢ - F State"‘{_/‘\- ziP £0¢/3
Business Phone Number 7/9 . 4 A/, - 274 1

Legal Ownership Information:
Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor 0  Partnership 0 Corporationd LLCEHE LLP O
Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporatzon LLC, or LLP O K LAYHS™M / 4L
Mailing Address ‘fZ/"/ Peddl w4l on g\y C F State. 7A zZIP S0 4173
Phone Number 4 [4. §2 L 73 D_QFax Number Email

Retail Information:

Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter/@~ Vending machine O
Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes 0 No X

Types of Products Sold: (Check all that apply)

Cigarettes & Tobacco & Alternative Nicotine Products OJ Vapor Products &

Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishment)
Alternative nicotine/vapor store [ Bar O Convenience store/gas station O  Drug store O
Grocery store O Hotel/motel O Liquor store & Restaurant [ Tobacco store O

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes 0  Other O

If application is approved and permit granted, lI/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or Corporate Official(s)

Name (please print)_D) ) Aw AL 1< L g . » Name (please print)
Signature~ ~ e— Signature
Date ol 1Yy .2 Date

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY — MUST BE COMPLETE

e Fill in the amount paid for the permit: ér, 00403 Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
e Fill in the date the permit was approved Beverages Division within 30 days of issuance. Make sure
by the council or board: the information on the application is complete and

accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
only the application is required. It is preferred that
applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt

e Fill in the permit number issued by
the city/county:

e Fill in the name of the city or 8 13/ confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
ISS{lingatine [Penmit ar ‘FEU L e Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com
*New O Renewal i@ e Fax 515-281-7375

29

70-014a (06/22




Iltem 7.

lowa Department of lowa Retail Permit Applic
REVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

https://tax.iowa.gov

Instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) (3 Z 1 ( [ / 2] through June 30, 2 Z
l/we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:

Business Information:
Trade Name/DBA (hyee n]enl T/) bado & |/g \?ﬁ.b" INC

Physical Location Addressh 0] Viveysihv Aw ;¢ city_(edavias ziP 50413

Mailing Address_% 4o/ UnrerSiby Av/e City_Cday oS state_| A zIP K062

Business Phone Number _2(9— %o - 2|72
Legal Ownership Information:

Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor 0  Partnership O Corporation EI/LLC O LLP O

Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, LLC, or LLP Lreenlef Tobaco € I Pey 1WC

Mailing Address 5 Wes} 4efferson S APty Widednp state \A 2P 8p1D)

Phone Number 45)»955»/%1 Fax Number Email Ceday h NS lobd(ro @)
Retail Information: Gem )/ (0

Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter Q/Vending machine O

Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes OO0 No IB/

Types of Products Sold: (Check all that apply)
Cigarettes -~  Tobacco @ Alternative Nicotine Products B~ Vapor Products B
Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishment)

Alternative nicotine/vapor store =2~ BarO Convenience store/gas station 0  Drug store [
Grocery store O Hotel/motel O Liquor store O Restaurant O Tobacco store B—

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes 0  Other [

If application is approved and permit granted, l/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or Corporate Official(s)

Name (please print) f\'\_o\\o\‘w\\(\r\qoﬂ f\o\\\f Na Name (please print)
Signature A@(V’/‘MWM AJUUY?? Signature
Date () ff}/ \ lf'fl) 2\ Date

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY - MUST BE COMPLETE

o Fill in the amount paid for the permit: $ 00, » Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
e Fillin the date the permit was approved Beverages Division within 30 days of issuance. Make sure
by the council or board: the information on the application is complete and

accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
only the application is required. It is preferred that
applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt

Fill in the permit number issued by
the city/county:

Fill in the name of the city or county

Al " S oz confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
issuing the permnit - cdar Fal i ¢ Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com 30
e hiewsE Renswal » Fax 515-281-7375

70-014a (06/22/17)



Iltem 7.

lowa Department of lowa Retail Permit Applicafron

i
R EVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

https://tax.iowa.gov

Instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) 07 /01 /2021 through June 30, 2022
I/we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:

Business Information:
Trade Name/DBA Hy-Vee, Inc DBA Hy-Vee Food Store

Physical Location Address 8301 University City Cedar Falls 7P 50613

Mailing Address 5820 Westown Parkway City West Des Moines State lowa Z|P 50266

Business Phone Number __515-267-2800
Legal Ownership Information:

Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor 1 Partnership O Corporationid LLC O LLP O
Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, LLC, or LLP Hy-Vee, Inc.

Mailing Address 5820 Westown Parkway CityWest Des MoinesState lowa Z|Pp 50266
Phone Number 515-267-2800 Fax Number 515-559-2468 Email SMcMahon@hy-vee.com

Retail Information:
Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter 4 Vending machine O
Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes O No a
Types of Products Sold: (Check all that apply)

Cigarettes 4 Tobacco {4 Alternative Nicotine Products {4 Vapor Products {4

Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishment)
Alternative nicotine/vapor store [ Bar O Convenience store/gas station O  Drug store 1
Grocery store 4 Hotel/motel O Liquor store O Restaurant O Tobacco store [

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes [ Other O

If application is approved and permit granted, l/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or Corporate Official(s)

Name (please)z;i\nt) Andy Schroeder Name (please print)

A FAN - S/& /(_ Signature

o N

Signature
Date May 4th 2021 Date

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY — MUST BE COMPLETE

e Fill in the amount paid for the permit: 100 Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
« Fill in the date the permit was approved Beverages Division within 30 days of issuance. Make sure
by the council or-beard: the information on the application is complete and

accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
only the application is required. It is preferred that

Fill in the permit number issued by

the . ity/county: - applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt
sl the name of the city or countya i Ta confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
issuing the permit: LAy AaAlS

¢ Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com

e New [ Renewal & e Fax: 515-281-7375

70-014a (06/] 31




Iltem 7.

lowa Department of lowa Retail Permit Application
REVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

https://tax.iowa.gov

instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) 07 /01 /2021  through June 30, 2022
I/we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:
Business Information:

Trade Name/DBA Hy-Vee, Inc DBA Hy-Vee Gas

Physical Location Address 8527 University Ave City Cedar Falls  7/p 50613

Mailing Address 5820 Westown Parkway City__West Des Moines State lowa ZI|P 50266
Business Phone Number __515-267-2800

Legal Ownership Information:
Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor 0  Partnership [ Corporation{f2 LLC O LLP O
Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, LLC, or LLP___Hy-Vee, Inc.
Mailing Address 5820 Westown Parkway City West Des MoinesState lowa Z|p 50266
Phone Number 515-267-2800 Fax Number 515-559-2463 Email SMcMahon@hy-vee.com

Retail Information:
Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter i@  Vending machine O
Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes O No {4
Types of Products Soid: (Check all that apply)

Cigarettes (4 Tobacco 4 Alternative Nicotine Products {4 Vapor Products (4

Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishment)
Alternative nicotine/vapor store [l Bar O Convenience store/gas station {4  Drug store [J
Grocery store O Hotel/motel O Liquor store O Restaurant O Tobacco store O

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes 1~ Other I

If application is approved and permit granted, l/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or Corporate Official(s)

Name (please print{Andy Schroeder, , Name (please print)
Signature _')X‘_L_A/\_,\_ 9\/(4 A_ Signature
Date May 4th 2021 Date

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY — MUST BE COMPLETE

e Fill in the amount paid for the permit: 100 Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
« Fill in the date the permit was approved Beverages Division within 30 days of issuance. Make sure
by the council or beard: the information on the application is complete and

accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
the city/ - only the application is required. It is preferred that
_e ,C' YICOELY- : applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt
e Fillin the name of the city or-eounty = confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
issuing the permit: Cedar Tadls

e Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com
eNew O  Renewal IZ o Fax: 515-281-7375

o Fill in the permit number issued by

70-014a (06/4 32




Iltem 7.

lowa Retail Permit Applic
R EVENUE for Cigarette/Tobacco/Nicotine/Vapor

hitps://tax.iowa.gov

Instructions on the reverse side
For period (MM/DD/YYYY) D% _/_0/ /2] through June 30, _202<Z
I/'we apply for a retail permit to sell cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, or vapor products:

Business Information:
Trade Name/DBA uf\'l‘{’&o{ wind ouf\d Uq,UoI“ (nc.

Physical Location Address" Cotle&‘p(/ CF City Coplorells 210 DB 3
Mailing Address_ 22\ college &t city  (edw 74 IS st /A zpSee!ls
Business Phone Number Slq - Lllﬁg'j/{ 7

Legal Ownership Information:
Type of Ownership: Sole Proprietor O Par’cnershipE{ Corpgaration 0 LLCE LLP O

Name of sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, LLC, or LLP uj’uﬁ;-[ L..!mm:: ﬂ,hﬂ ) y%( mr! e .
Mailing Address_(,(p__wilenice owe  City idkedoo  State tK 7P 55202
Phone Number 214 42333 Fax Number Email BNSESB A (0G40

Retail Information: untbed wine KV\LP DO
Types of Sales:  Over-the-counter E/ Vending machine O \'w[,uor ZDG\X"W‘H' e

Do you make delivery sales of alternative nicotine or vapor products? (See Instructions) Yes [1 NO\E/

Types of Pré)fiucts Sold: (Check all that apply) {
Cigarettes Tobacco Alternative Nicotine Products Vapor Products gl
Type of Establishment: (Select the option that best describes the establishmeny)

Alternative nicotine/vapor store [1 Bar O Convenience store/gas station Drug store O
Grocery store O Hotel/motel O Liquor store O Restaurant O Tobacco store O

Has vending machine that assembles cigarettes 0 = Other [

If application is approved and permit granted, |/we do hereby bind ourselves to a faithful observance of
the laws governing the sale of cigarettes, tobacco, alternative nicotine, and vapor products.

Signature of Owner(s), Partner(s), or-Corporate Officiai(s)

Name (please print) ﬁﬂﬁ[m ;é V46t Name (please print)_ Sha h.d Ch(/\l(\/\&\
Signature ﬂV,s,,‘/u _j,géfxvﬁqubt Signature Q@L/é/ﬁ?ﬂ/éa,v
Date o5 -3 -l ! Date Lf/@@r /‘5 2A

Send this completed application and the applicable fee to your local jurisdiction. If you have any
questions contact your city clerk (within city limits) or your county auditor (outside city limits).

FOR CITY CLERK/COUNTY AUDITOR ONLY — MUST BE COMPLETE

e Fill in the amount paid for the permit: $I(D w Send completed/approved application to lowa Alcoholic
« Fill in the date the permit was approved Beverages Division within 30 days of issuance. Make sure
by the council or beard: the information on the application is complete and

accurate. A copy of the permit does not need to be sent;
only the application is required. It is preferred that
applications are sent via email, as this allows for a receipt

¢ Fill in the permit number issued by
the city/county:
e Fill in the name of the city or-cetnty,

gl g Vg o o confirmation to be sent to the local authority.
issuing the permit: . (' da{ fallf e Email: iapledge@iowaabd.com 33
eNew O Renewal T e Fax: 515-281-7375

70-014a (06/22/17)



Item 8.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

319-273-8612

MEMORANDUM
To: Mayor Green and City Councilmembers
From: Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director
Craig Berte, Police Chief
Date: June 17, 2021
Re: Beer/Liquor License Applications

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and
recommend approval.

Name of Applicants:
a) Dollar General, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
b) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - renewal.
c) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - renewal.

d) NewAldaya Lifescapes, 7511 University Avenue, Class A liquor & outdoor service -
renewal.

e) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal.
f) David's Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor — new.

g) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service — new.

34




Item 9.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

R

w/ INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
/e

TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members
FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer
DATE: June 9, 2021

SUBJECT:  Audit Engagement Letter

We are just about to begin the audit process for FY2021. This is the first year of our
new contract with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform our audit engagement.

At the beginning of the audit engagement each year, the auditors provide an
engagement letter that they sign and the City signs that acknowledges that both parties
understand the work that is to be performed. Attached is that letter for your review and
approval.

Cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations

35




Item 9.

EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
June 2, 2021

Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, 1A 50613

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (City) as of June 30, 2021, and for the year then ending, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. In
addition, we will audit the entity’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period ending June
30, 2021. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means
of this letter. Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit
and an opinion on compliance regarding the entity’s major federal award programs.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that certain information be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding
their methods of measurement and presentation and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on
the RSI. The following RSl is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.
Schedule of City Contributions (Pension).

Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios.

e wN e

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the City’s basic financial statements. We will subject
the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the supplementary
information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on the following
supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole:

1. Combining Fund Statements.
2. Capital Asset Schedules.
3. Financial Data Schedule (issued separately as part of required HUD report).

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com L

1545 Associates Dr., Ste. 101 Dubuque, IA 52002-2299 | T563.556.1790 | F 563.557.7842 | EOE




Item 9.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied in our audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the
schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented fairly in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that will not be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements:

1. Introductory Section — No opinion or any assurance provided.
2. Statistical Tables — No opinion or any assurance provided.

Data Collection Form

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that are
our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is management’s
responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, schedule of expenditure of federal
awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form
to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and
unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will
assist you in the electronic submission and certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to
include with the reporting package submitted to pass-through entities.

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our auditors’
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal cognizant or
oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors in assessing
programs at a higher risk.

Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and, if applicable, in accordance with any state or
regulatory audit requirements. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant
agreements, or contractual agreements.

37




Item 9.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. If appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that
support the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct
confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with creditors and
financial institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request written representations from your attorneys,
and they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, fraudulent
financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, detected abuse, or violations of laws or governmental
regulations) may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance
with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America
and/or state or regulatory audit requirements. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective, and
Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse.

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during
the audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any
other periods.

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the City’s basic financial statements. Our report
will be addressed to the governing body of the City. We cannot provide assurance that any unmodified opinions
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws,
regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, providing an
opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and,
therefore, no such opinion will be expressed.

We also will issue a written report on compliance for each major federal program and report on internal control
over compliance required by the Uniform Guidance upon completion of our audit.

Audit of Major Program Compliance

Our audit of the City’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform Guidance and will include tests of
accounting records, a determination of major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program
compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on
compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or
withdraw from the engagement.

38




Item 9.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to major federal award programs. Our procedures will consist of determining major
federal programs and performing the applicable procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the entity’s major programs. The purpose of those procedures will be to express an
opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the
design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance
with compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award programs. However, our
tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no
opinion will be expressed in our report.

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the entity’s
major federal award programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will report any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express an opinion on internal
control.

Management Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

3. Foridentifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended during the period and the
federal programs under which they were received, including federal awards and funding increments
received prior to December 26, 2014 (if any), and those received in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance (generally received after December 26, 2014);

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally
funded activities;

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance
received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance;

6. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over federal awards;

7. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards that provides reasonable
assurance that the nonfederal entity is managing federal awards in compliance with federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal awards;

8. Foridentifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of federal award programs and implementing systems designed to achieve compliance
with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs;

9. Fordisclosing accurately, currently, and completely, the financial results of each federal award in
accordance with the requirements of the award;

39




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Item 9.

For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other studies
that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations have
been implemented;

For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;

For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a
process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on
reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit findings;
For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a corrective
action plan for such findings;

For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;

For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is
responsible for program compliance;

To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal award programs, such as
records, documentation, and other matters;

Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and
Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.
For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current period under audit are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole;
For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work;
For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding
assets;
For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect
on compliance;
For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided;
For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive
information; and
For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your
management representation letter.

With respect to any nonattest services we perform, we agree to perform the following:

e Completion of the auditee’s portion of the Data Collection Form

The City’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management
functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the
services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e)
establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

40




Item 9.

With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above, you acknowledge and
understand your responsibility (a) for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, (c) to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards in any document that contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and that indicates
that we have reported on such schedule, and (d) to present the schedule of expenditures of federal awards with
the audited financial statements, or if the schedule will not be presented with the audited financial statements,
to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards no later than the date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon.

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your
responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable
criteria, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, (c)
to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary
information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present
the supplementary information with the audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information will
not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily
available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of
the supplementary information and our report thereon.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or
invoices selected by us for testing.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to our firm, you
agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree
to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed.

Fees and Timing

Brian Unsen is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Responsibilities include
supervising services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm
presentative to sign the audit report. We expect to begin our audit in June 2021.

Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-of-pocket
expenses. Invoices are payable upon presentation. We agree that our gross fee, including expenses, for the audit
will not exceed $42,000 for the audit of the financial statements (assuming one major program), including the
preparation of the REAC submission. Each additional major program will be a fee of $3,000. We will notify you
immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could significantly affect this fee. Whenever possible, we
will attempt to use the City’s personnel to assist in the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This
effort could substantially reduce our time requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. Further,
we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters of a
routine nature.

41




Item 9.

In addition, we will be compensated for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel,
we may incur in conducting or responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any
legal, regulatory, or other proceedings as a result of our Firm’s performance of these services. You and your
attorney will receive, if lawful, a copy of every subpoena we are asked to respond to on your behalf and will
have the ability to control the extent of the discovery process to control the costs you may incur.

Should our relationship terminate before our audit procedures are completed and a report issued, you will be
billed for services to the date of termination. All bills are payable upon receipt. A service charge of 1% per
month, which is an annual rate of 12%, will be added to all accounts unpaid 30 days after billing date. If
collection action is necessary, expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees will be added to the amount due.

Other Matters

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and
you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted
communications.

We may use third party service providers and/or affiliated entities (including Eide Bailly Shared Services Private
Limited) (collectively, “service providers”) in order to facilitate delivering our services to you. Our use of service
providers may require access to client information by the service provider. We will take reasonable precautions
to determine that they have the appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of
confidential information to others. We will remain responsible for the confidentiality of client information
accessed by such service provider and any work performed by such service provider.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Eide Bailly LLP and constitutes confidential
information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to the State and
federal agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or
regulation. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Eide
Bailly LLP’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to
the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. We agree to retain our audit
documentation or work papers for a period of at least eight years from the date of our report.

Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters of a
routine nature.

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your
operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally or
in writing.

Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published
electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and non-
financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we cannot be
responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm that you have all
the data and records required to make your books and records complete.

42




Item 9.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware during
the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued.

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to City Council the following significant
findings from the audit:

Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;

Disagreements with management, if any;

e Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant
and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting
process;

e Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our
audit procedures;

e Representations we requested from management;

e Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and

e Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence,

with management.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide, upon request, a copy of our most recent external peer
review report and any subsequent review reports to the party contracting for the audit. Accordingly, we will
provide a copy of our most recent peer review report at your request.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The following procedures shall be used to resolve any disagreement, controversy or claim that may arise out of
any aspect of our services or relationship with you, including this engagement, for any reason (“Dispute”).
Specifically, we agree to first mediate.

Mediation

All Disputes between us shall first be submitted to non-binding mediation by written notice (“Mediation
Notice”) to the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences voluntarily with the
aid of an impartial mediator. The mediator will be selected by mutual agreement, but if we cannot agree on a
mediator, one shall be designated by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”).

The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties. The parties agree
to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the mediator, to reach an

amicable resolution of the Dispute. Mediation will be conducted with the parties in person in Dubuque, lowa.

Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally
by the parties.

Either party may commence suit on a Dispute after the mediator declares an impasse.

43




Item 9.

INDEMNITY

You agree to indemnify Eide Bailly LLP, its partners, affiliates, officers, or employees (collectively “Eide Bailly”)
against any losses, including settlement payments, judgments, damage awards, punitive or exemplary damages,
and the costs of any litigations (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) associated with a claim brought Eide Bailly
against by a third-party and that arises out of or is in any way related to the services provided under this
engagement, provided that the services provided hereunder were performed in accordance with professional
standards in all material respects and that such losses arose due to the negligent acts or omissions by the City of
Cedar Falls.

ASSIGNMENTS PROHIBITED

You agree that you will not and may not assign, sell, barter or transfer any legal rights, causes of actions, claims
or Disputes you may have against Eide Bailly LLP, its partners, affiliates, officers and employees, to any other
person or party, or to any trustee, receiver or other third party.

Please sign and return this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the arrangements
for our audit of the financial statements compliance over major federal award programs including our respective

responsibilities.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your certified public accountants and look forward to working with you
and your staff.

Respectfully,

Biam Unasn,

Brian Unsen, Partner
3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk 3k sk ok 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk sk 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k sk ok 3k 3k 3k sk sk sk sk ok 3k 3k 3k sk ko sk sk ok sk sk sk sk skosk sk sk sk sk k sk sk sk sk sk k k k
RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa by:

Name:

Title: Mayor

Date:

44




Item 10.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Human Resources Division

Mayor and City Council
FROM: Colleen Sole, Personnel Specialist
DATE: June 11, 2021

SUBJECT: FY22 Insurance Renewal — Public Entity

Arthur J. Gallagher recently presented its renewal proposal to the City of Cedar Falls
Risk Management Committee. The current market gave cause to bid out all lines and
closely review the City’s property and business practices, to include a hard look at the
City’s cyber security. The insurance marketplace is continuing to harden due to more
frequent national catastrophic losses such as wind, hail, flooding and the most recent
derecho, the nation’s focus on police forces and public employees, and the on-going
destruction of public property, all of which fall on public entities. For public entity liability
risks, many insurance carriers are reducing capacity and some are no longer in the
business. Increasing deductibles and sharply higher rates are becoming a challenge.
The City has been fortunate in past years to maintain its lower premiums. However,
with today’s market, the City is unable to escape an increased premium, with slightly
higher deductibles and SIR’s. Gallagher reviewed and compared the various quotes
with the Risk Management committee, and went back to the underwriters to explore
other means of reducing the premium without compromising coverages. The Risk
Management Committee approved the recommendations provided. Attached is the

proposal provided by Arthur J. Gallagher.

The Risk Management Committee respectfully requests that you approve these

coverages for FY2022. If you have questions, please contact me at 243-2712.

45




City of Cedar Falls, 1A 5" @ Gallagher ftem 10.

«®* CORE 36

Executive Summary

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal for
your consideration.

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. is pleased to present our proposal of insurance to the City of Cedar
Falls. Enclosed for your review are the terms and conditions from the insurance companies that we approached on the
City's behalf.

Workers Compensation - Midwest Employers —

The EMT/Fire/Police SIR increased from $500K to $750K. All other class codes remained at $500k retention.
Estimated Renewal Payrolls $16,785,395 — represents a 7% increase from expiring $15,342,935

Expiring rate .40803; renewal rate per $100 of payroll .56295

Gallagher also approached Safety National and Arch Insurance Company — neither carrier could not be offer a competitive rate
as compared to the renewal rate provided by Midwest Employers.

Liability Package —

Argonaut Insurance Company — the incumbent carrier, Argonaut is offering renewal terms, and continues to provide Auto
Physical Damage in their form, however for the Liability coverages, the carrier can only provide $2,000,000/$20,000,000 limit.
Expiring limits are $7,000,000/$10,000,000. To complete the $7M limit we approached the excess market. Allied World will
provide $5,000,000 excess Argonaut's $2,000,000. The SIR went up from $100,000 to $150,000. Lastly, Argonaut is no
longer providing the Loss Fund and have reduced the Sexual Abuse Molestation limits to $250,000.

We have also approached other casualty markets for the primary $7,000,000. Two carriers provided reasonable terms
however at a much higher premium than Argonaut. Those programs can be found on the attached program comparison
sheet which outlines each of the three programs.

Property — Federal Insurance Company (Chubb) — At the direction of the City we increased the building values by 3%

Total Insurable Values: Expiring $147,168,833 / Renewal $153,103,054, which represents a 4% increase.
Expiring premium $98,531 / renewal premium $131,995 — both terms include Terrorism/TRIA

Property premium rates are on the rise, mainly due to more frequent national catastrophic losses such as wind & hail, surface
water and flood, therefore driving rates upwards industry wide. Property carriers are seeing poor results especially in lowa.
Flood - Chubb will continue to provide Flood coverage for those locations that fall into Flood Zone A, AE, Shaded X, B (and
those unknown locations), backup of sewer and drains, mudflow, and surface water. The sublimit is $250,000 for these flood
zones with a $250,000 Deductible. We have attached a spreadsheet with limits/deductibles for each location.

Earthquake — Chubb will continue to provide $5,000,000 Annual Aggregate with $100,000 deductible — all locations.

Cyber Liability — the incumbent carrier, Lloyds of London cannot offer renewal terms due to lack of certain controls that they
want implemented in the next 3 months. The city will be implanting these controls within the next year or so. We have
marketed the cyber liability insurance and were successful in obtaining a quote with BCS Insurance Company. They will
provide $2,000,000 limit with $15,000 retention (up from $10,000 retention). Cyber-crime (social engineering/cyber
deception) $250,000 limit will also be included. Expiring premium $18,114 / Renewal Premium $18,252.

Boiler and Machinery — Liberty provided a quote using increased building values which resulted in a slight premium rate
increase from expiring. Current Limit $100,000,000 with $5,000 deductible

Rating basis — Expiring values Expiring $147,168,833 / Renewal values $153,103,054
Expiring premium $5,841 / Renewal premium $6,380




City of Cedar Falls, IA @ Gallagher tem 10.
.' CORE36
Crime — Hanover Insurance Company — the policy is a three year renewal term from 7/1/2020 through 7/1/2023. Limits
$500,000 with $25,000 Deductible; False pretenses limit is $75,000 with $10K deductible
Annual premium: | $4,487
On behalf of the entire Gallagher service team, we look forward to working with the City of Cedar Falls. If you have
any questions or concerns after our meeting, please feel free to contact us.
In the following pages, we will demonstrate what makes our company the best fit for your insurance placement and
risk management needs. Thank you again for allowing us to be your partner in this placement.
Scott Scheidel
Rich Stokluska
EXPOSURE COMPARISON
Exposure | ' % of
Rating Basis 2018 2019 2020 2021 Change
Total Property Values $128,411,875 $143,117,486 | $147,168,833 | $153,1 03,(554 4%
Total Number of Vehicles 182 183 191 193 1%
Total Vehicle Values $12,824,571 $13,376,759 $15,342,935 $16,785,395 9%
Total Estimated Payrolls $15,189,165 $15,189,165 $16,555,641 $17,748,262 7%
Employees (FT/PT) 652 662 666 578 -13.2%
(229 FT) (231 FT)
(437 PT) (347 PT)
FT Officers 45 57 60 66 1%
Fire Department 67 (29-FT,2-PT, |69 (17-FT,1-PT, |75 (20-FT,2- |81 (31-FT,2 8%
2-POC, 34-PS0O) | 2-POC, 49PSO0) | PT, 2-POC, 46 | PT,2-POC, 46
PSO) PSO)




City of Cedar Falls, IA " @ Gallagher ltem 10.

"«®* CORE 306

Named Insured

Named Insured Schedule:

Named Insured

Excess Workers'
Compensation

bl Property
il Equipment Breakdown
bl Package
bl Excess Liability
bl Cyber Liability

i Crime

Note: Any entity not named in this proposal, may not be an insured entity. This may include affiliates, subsidiaries, LLC's,
partnerships and joint ventures.

| City Of Cedar Falls

g Gallaghe:

__Insurance | Risk Management | Consultine



(

»" @ Gallagher

City of Cedar Falls, 1A +®* CORE?36

Item 10.

Market Review

We approached the following carriers in an effort to provide the most comprehensive and cost effective insurance program.

INSURANCE COMPANY

LINE OF COVERAGE

RESPONSE

PREMIUM

$131,995 includes

Company

c
Federal Insurance Company Property Recommended Quote terrorism/TRIA)
Travelers Insurance Group Property Decllne.d_~— ke NA
competitive
Munich Insurance Group Property Decl'lned ) Df)es ekl NA
public entity in lowa
] Decline - Cannot write in
Liberty Mutual Insurance Group | Property lowa due to Windstorm NA
exposures
Hartford Group Property Beciinee MSotdiRL oS NA
| competitive
i Declined - Minimum TIV
XL Group Property $250M and minimum NA
premium is $250K
Declined - Is not interested
Zurich Property in writing coverage for NA
municipalities
BbergIMuEIRiE/nelimncs Equipment Breakdown Recommended Quote $6,380

Hanover Insurance Company

Crime ~ 2™ year of 3 year
policy term

Recommended Quote

$3,980 - $500K Limit
Annual installment $4,487

Liability Package/Auto

Princeton Excess and Surplus
Lines

Option 1 - Package w/$1M
APD Limit

Option 2- Package w$2M
APD Limit

Physical Damage 175,567

Argonaut Insurance Company $2)(I)OO 000/$2 gOO 000 Limits Recommended Quote $1§13 TRIA
$150,000 SIR

Option 1 $240,771

Quoted — program not
competitive

$2,407.71 Taxes
$243,178.71 total
TRIA $4,117 plus taxes

Option 2 $336,986
$3,369.86 Taxes
$340,355.86 Total
TRIA $7986 plus taxes




City of Cedar Falls, 1A

INSURANCE COMPANY

Berkley Insurance Company

LINE OF COVERAGE

Option 1 — Package w/$1M
APD Limit
Option 2 — Package w/$2M

RESPONSE

Quoted — program not

»" @ Gallagher

Item 10.

«®* CORE 3G

s

PREMIUM

$2,305 Taxes

TRIA $2,959 plus taxes

Option 1 $230,500 !

$$232,805 Total (

APD Limit competitive Option 2 $244,000
Both options include $2M $2,440 Taxes
Sexual Abuse sublimit $246,440 Total
Optional TRIA $2,595
] n v Around $275,000 premium
Euctid Package Indication for $5M Limits
Safety National Casualty e Around $285K premium for
Corporation Package (dicatign $5M Limits
$295K Premium for $5M
limits with $500K sublimit for
BRIT Lloyds Syndicate Package Indication Dam coverage
$200K SIR on Law |
Enforcement
Declined - TPA is not
Travelers Insurance Company Package accepted and cannot be NA
competitive
Allied World National Assurance | Excess Liability $5,000,000 Recommended Quote $100,025
Company Limit $758 TRIA
Allied World National Assurance | Excess Liability $2,000,000 Declined — minimum NA
Company (Excess Berkley $5,000,000) | premium $100,000
Munich Excess Liability $5,000,000 | Deciined Could Not be NA
competitive
| Genesis Underwriters Excess Liability $5,000,000 | ndication —Could not be $125,000
Competitive
| i $18,152 |
BCS Insurance Company Cyber $2,000,000 Limit Quoted — Recommended $100 Service Fee |
$18,252 Total
Underwriters at Lloyd's London Sisciness Negdsteguialn

-CFC

Cyber Liability

controls in place within 3
months

NA




City of Cedar Falls, IA

INSURANCE COMPANY

Cowbell
Chubb
Ascent
Coalition
AT Bay
Beazley
Corvus
Hiscox
HCC
Markel
Zurich

LINE OF COVERAGE

Cyber Liability

RESPONSE

Declined — lack of certain
controls, don't write for
Muni's, cannot be
competitive

,»B.‘_ =3 Gallagher

Item 10.

«®*CORE36

PREMIUM

NA

Midwest Employers Casualty
Company

Excess Workers
Compensation and
Employers Liability

$500K SIR all classes except
$750K SIR EMT/Police/Fire

Recommended Quote

$99,915 - $500K/$750K SIR
$92,604
$62,534 - $750K SIR

Safety National Casualty
Corporation

Excess Workers
Compensation and
Employers Liability

$600K SIR all classes except
$750K SIR EMT/Police/Fire

Declined - could not be
competitive

Excess $100,000 Premium

Arch Insurance Company

Excess Workers
Compensation and
Employers Liability

$500K SIR all classes except
$750K SIR EMT/Police/Fire

Indication

Excess $100.000 premium

10

Gallaght...' '

Etmcal| Risky

lcons




; _m&wm_ammu

Ll

or

52

| | o (UopuoT s,pAo[T
| m Je SIaJMIBPUN) UOPUOT | wnjweid YidL
%0 7 2sZ'8Ls$ Auedwog aoueinsu| §04 | pLL'GLS s,pAo|7 1B SieyumIapuUn | Wniwald Aynqer Jog4o
| VIbL (dnoug | m
_ apnjouljou s8od 8oUBINSSY PHOAA Pallly) Auedwios | | .
VN G20'001$ 80OUBINSU| [BUOKEN PHOAA PRIIIY | WN i YN |>u___nm_._ $$99x3
obeuieq
_ fearsAuyd ony pue Ayjger
- | T or o |
[eUoIPPY €1€°1$ 105 _ | “Aunqer ojny ‘Amger
B o ol efom.n | o _ o _ uiger o3y ‘Ainger
P " ("ou] ‘sBuipjoH (rou| 'sbuipjoH _ sjjauag sakojdwg
papnou| Jou YL Jeuoiyeusau) dnoio) obly) | PSPNIdULIOU VI L jeuonewsajul dnolg 0Biy) | wniweld vyl | fngery jessuss sepnjau
%0 | 295'SL1$ Auedwon aouelnsul Jneuobiy _ ovv'sLLS Auedulon asuelnsu) Jneuobiy | wniwsald _ - abeyoed Ayyug alqnd |
_ _ (seuedwo) | . _
i . Pepnoul (seluedwon soueinsu| senouey) | PPN 90URINSU| JOAOUBH) | winjwald ViML |
| %0 18YP$ Auedwo? aouelnsu] Janouey = L8bv$ Auedwo) eoueInsuj JanoueH — wnjwald SWHD
h—— — — == | | N ! — E—
|
. (V) (-ou| '‘Auedwo) | pepnIoU] | (-ou| ‘Auedwon BuipjoH
_ papnioul BuipjoH leniniyl Auaqr) Auedwo) _ leniny Auaqr) Auedwod | winjweid Yyl
__ %6 08¢‘9% oueinsu| alld [leniny Apea] - Lb8‘ss aoueInsuU| all4 jeninjy AUaql] | wnwalid umopyeaug juswdinby
I~ - B — - — o
m_ (seuedwo) (seedwo)n
_ pepnpuy| aouelInsu) Jo dnoig ggnyo) | PePNIdU] souelnsu| Jo dnoi9 qanyd) | wnjweid iyl
% Ye G66°1E1% Auedwo) soueinsu| [eisped | LES‘S6$ Auedwoq aouelnsu] |e1opad | wniwald Aypradoud

spwi Ay

BI7 IN8$ PRIIIV/INZS

1S02 d3lvinILS3

ineuoBiy pue 18949 g UNM-AIANINWNOOIN JOVH3IA0D 40 INIT

NVYHO0™d ONIMIdX3

Buindxa snsian wedbold abueyyp %,

Alewwing winiwald

09cHY0D «*

1ybefren @, s||le4 Jepan jo Ao



iﬂmm:m_u _
& v

53

120Z/0S/9 1un piiea st Auedwos asueinsu| Jneuobly woly sjond
‘aaljejussaldal Jaybejjes) InoA Joejuod

asea|d 'sainsodxs Jo sadAl Jayio Bulisaoo 10 afelanod Jo sauj| Jayio Buioeid Ui djay psau noA J “Jaybe|les uey) JoY10

wuy abeIeXOIq Jayloue A paoe(d 10 painsui-|as Joulis st abelsnod/ainsodxe Jo adAl Jayio Aue Jey) poolsiapun si ) LZ0Z/bIZ 1NN PlEA

s) (dnoig asueINssSyY plOAA Pallly) Auedwos aoueINSSY [BUOHEN PILOAA P3IIIY WOl 8jonD

Lzoe/iL
uonesuadwon ,SI9YIOAA SS9IXT] ['jun pijeA si Aww_:mnEOU aouelnsuy] ‘_w>0:va >:0QEOO 9JURINSU| JOAOURH WOl 3l0ND
funqery Jeqhon 1202/0LiL

1nun piea si { dnoug Aapiieg Y "A) Auedwon Ajjenseq siafojdwg 3sempiy wWolj sjonp
Ayunger sseoxg

120z/61/9

abexoed |3un pliea si (ssiuedwog esueansu] jo dnous qgnyd) Auedwog asueinsu] jeiapad WOl sloND

AWy L202/L{L |IUN pileA s

umopyeslg Juswdinby (*ou| ‘Auedwos BujpjoH |enn Apaqr) Auedwog asueinsu| all4 jeniny Ausqi] wWoly sjond
fuadoig L20Z/1/2 nun piea si (Auedwoy ssueinsu] §9g) Auedwod eaueinsu] §Og Woly 8jonD

:aBelian0o Jo sauy Buimo)|o} sy} 4o Juawade(d ay; Jo} ajqisuodsal s| 1aybeljesy

:a|ge) BuImo||0} 8y} Ul paulno ale suondo sy Jo} 1soo welboid pajewss oy

7 l._| -I._|||

iy eouss I < <ovs

}s09 welbold pajew)ys] [e10)

994 S92IAISG |

i _
_ _
ﬁ %0 W 000'9¢$ _ 0009¢$ | ojoig Jsybejen |
“ - _
| _ _ (dnoug _.
_ | Papnjdul | (dnouo Aeppag Y ‘) Auedwon | PePNIOU Repylag o "M Auedwod | winwislg IML uopesusdwon
| %lb _ 516°66% Ayense) siako|dw 1semplN | 265 29% - fyense] siakojdwig 1SaMpIN | winiwald .. SIONIOM SSOOXT |

snwi Aiger mes PalIv/NES
IneuoBuy pue 1aq43 SOE UNM-AIANIWNOITY T S e 3OVH3A0D 4O NI

NVHO0Yd ONIMIdX3

Buinndxa snsian welboid abueyy 9,

09€HY0D «*

1oyberen @, 0 sjjed tepaD jo Ao




City of Cedar Falls, IA o"@Gallagher |

«®* CORE 30

Carrier Ratings and Admitted Status

A.M. BEST'S RATING &

FINANCIAL SIZE CATEGORY » ADMITTED/NON-ADMITTED ™

PROPOSED INSURANCE COMPANIES

| Allied World National Assurance Company A XV Admitted
Al-'.gonaut Ins_urance Comb-ahy- - R A— XI\;__ - T thitted
_B_CS I_r{surar;ce_(_:_c;mpa;y o o XV—HI IIIII - = _Adrrﬁ{t;d - o
Féc-i_e_.l.';lnéuran.ééE;;n_pany A+ XV . - Admiﬁéd_- - i
!_Gemini ln_s_l.;;_a;é-boﬁ_pa_n; ) - A+ XV T Non-Admitted -
| H;nover Insurance_é:)“n;pariy - - AWXV R S Admiﬁed -
L.iﬂ.b.ertwautu_a“l“i;ire.ins-uré;ce Comr;a;y_ - __A; XV - ) —Adr_nltted IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII -
_Klli-a;v;s“t_E-rﬁplbyers Ca{sualty Compa_n-g-/__ o 1 A+ XV B . - Admitted o
Priﬁéetoa Excess & St_lrblus Linés "Ins Co ] A+ XV - - --I:JEH:A;:Jn;itted - -

*Gallagher companies use A.M. Best rated insurers and the rating listed above was verified on the date the proposal document
was created.

Best's Credit Ratings™ reproduced herein appear under license from A.M. Best and do not constitute, either expressly or
impliedly, an endorsement of Gallagher's service or its recommendations. A.M. Best is not responsible for transcription errors
made in presenting Best's Credit Ratings™. Best's Credit Ratings™ are proprietary and may not be reproduced or distributed
without the express written permission of A.M. Best.

A Best’s Financial Strength Rating is an independent opinion of an insurer’s financial strength and ability to meet its ongoing
insurance policy and contract obligations. It is not a warranty of a company’s financial strength and ability to meet its obligations
to policyholders. Best's Credit Ratings™ are under continuous review and subject to change and/or affirmation. For the latest
Best's Credit Ratings™ and Guide to Best's Credit Ratings, visit the A.M. Best website at http:/fvaww.ambest.com/ratings.

**|f coverage placed with a non-admitted carrier, it is doing business in the state as a surplus lines or non-admitted carrier, and
is neither subject to the same regulations as an admitted carrier nor do they participate in any state insurance guarantee fund.

Gallagher companies make no representations and warranties concerning the solvency of any carrier, nor does it make any
representation or warranty concerning the rating of the carrier which may change.

49




City of Cedar Falls

Item 10.

»" @ Gallagher

“® CORE 360

After careful consideration of Gallagher's proposal dated June 2, 2021, we accept the following coverage(s). Please check the
desired coverage(s) and note any coverage amendments below:

COVERAGE/CARRIER

Xt Accept O Reject

Property

Federal Insurance Company

0O Accept ® Reject

TRIA

X Accept O Reject

Equipment Breakdown

Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company

TRIA cannot be rejected

X Accept O Reject

Crime

Hanover Insurance Company

TRIA cannot be rejected

® Accept O Reject

Package

o Option # 1 Argonaut Insurance Company — $150K SIR - recommended
O Option# 1 A Argonaut Insurance Company — $250K SIR - recommended
O Option # 2 Gemini Insurance Company

O Option # 3 Princeton Excess & Surplus Lines Ins Co

O Accept X Reject

TRIA - Additional Premium will apply — Argonaut $1313

W™ Accept O Reject

Follow Form Excess Liability

Allied World National Assurance Company

O Accept B8 Reject

TRIA — Additional Premium will apply - $758

W Accept O Reject

Cyber Liability

BCS Insurance Company

¥ Accept O Reject

Excess Workers' Compensation

X Option # 1
O Option # 2

Midwest Employers Casuaity Company — recommended ($500K/$750K SIRs)
Midwest Employers Casualty Company — ($750K SIR all classes)

TRIA Cannot Be Rejected

The above coverage may not necessarily represent the entirety of available insurance products. If you are interested in
pursuing additional coverages other than those addressed in the coverage considerations included in this proposal,

please list below:

Gallagher

Insurance | Risk Management | Cesonns



Item 10.

City of Cedar Falls »" @ Gallagher

fe® CORE 360

Exposures and Values

We confirm the payroll, values, schedules, and other data contained in the proposal, and submitted to the underwriters, are
compiled from information provided by you and we acknowledge it is our responsibility to see that such information is updated
and maintained accurately. For renewal policies, if no updates were provided to Gallagher, the values, exposures and
operations used were based on the expiring policies.

Provide Quotations or Additional Information on the Following Coverage Considerations:

Gallagher recommends that you purchase the following additional coverages for which you have exposure. By rejecting a
quotation for this valuable coverage, you understand that there will be no coverage and agree to hold Gallagher harmless in the
event of a loss.

Other Coverages to Consider
O Yes B No - Flood

Other Services to Consider
#Yes 0O No-CORE360™ Loss Control Portal
M Yes O No - eRiskHub

Gallagher's liability to Client arising from any acts or omissions of Gallagher shall not exceed $20 million in the aggregate.
Gallagher shall only be liable for actual damages incurred by Client, and shall not be liable for any indirect, consequential or
punitive damages or attorneys' fees. No claim or cause of action, regardless of form (tort, contract, statutory, or otherwise),
arising out of, relating to or in any way connected with this Agreement or any Services provided hereunder may be brought by
either party any later than two (2) years after the accrual of such claim or cause of action.

Gallagher has established security controls to protect Client confidential information from unauthorized use or disclosure. For
additional information, please review Gallagher's Privacy Policy located at https://www.ajg.com/privacy-policy/.

| have read, understand and agree that the above information is correct and has been disclosed to us prior to authorizing
Gallagher to bind coverage and/or provide services to us.

By. Rolbert M. Green

Print Name

J\_A_@ U‘ [On'd

Title

Signature

Date:

Gallagher

Insurance | Risk Management | C



POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT Item 10.

UNDER THE
TERRORISM RISK INSURACE ACT

The insured is hereby notified that under the federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, (the "Act"), the insured has a right to pur-
chase insurance coverage for losses arising out of an Act of Terrorism, as defined in Section 102(1) of the Act. The term “act of terrorism’
means any act certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security and the Attorney General of
the United States to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have re-
sulted in damage within the United States, or outside of the United States in case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United
States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United
States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion. The insured should read the Act for a com-
plete description of its coverage. The Secretary's decision to certify or not to certify an event as an Act of Terrorism covered by the Act is final
and not subject to review.

Coverage provided by this policy for losses caused by a Certified Act of Terrorism may be partially reimbursed by the United States Govern-
ment under a formula established by federal law. However, the insured’s policy may contain other exclusions that might affect coverage, such
as an exclusion for nuclear events. Under the formula, the United States Government will generally reimburse 85% through 2015; 84% begin-
ning on January 1, 2016; 83% beginning on January 1, 2017; 82% beginning on January 1, 2018; 81% beginning on January 1, 2019; and 80%
beginning on January 1, 2020, of covered terrorism losses exceeding a statutorily established deductible that must be met by the company,
and which deductible is based on a percentage of the company’s direct earned premiums for the year preceding the Certified Act of Terrorism.

Be advised that the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion cap on all losses resulting from Certified Acts of Terror-
ism. If aggregate insured losses attributable to Certified Acts of Terrorism exceed $100 billion in a calendar year, the United States Govern-
ment shall not make any payment for any portion of the amount of such loss that exceeds $100 billion. If aggregate insured losses attributable
to Certified Acts of Terrorism exceed $100 billion in a calendar year and the company has met its deductible under the Act, the company shall
not be liable for payment of any portion of the losses that exceeds $100 billion, and in such case, insured losses up to that amount are subject
to pro rata allocation in accordance with procedures established by the Secretary of the Treasury.

Coverage for “insured losses” as defined in the Act is subject to the coverage terms, conditions, amounts and limits in this policy applicable to
losses arising from events other than Certified Acts of Terrorism.

The insured should know that under federal law, the insured is not required to purchase coverage for losses caused by Certified Acts of Ter-
rorism.

The insured should know that under federal law, the insured is not required to purchase coverage for losses caused by Certified Acts of Ter-
rorism.

Please indicate the selection of the insured below.

The insured hereby elects to purchase coverage in accordance with the Act for a premium of § xxx

x The insured hereby rejects coverage and accepts reinstatement of the exclusion in accordance with the Act.

ne

Signature of Insured Insured Name
M gupy

Print/Title Policy Number

Date

GL 00117 00 (01/15) 57




POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, you have a
right to purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism. As defined in
Section 102(1) of the Act. The term "act of terrorism” means any act or acts that are certified by
the Secretary of the Treasury - in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the
Attorney General of the United States - to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that
is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the
United States, or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the
premises of a United States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals
as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy
or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR
LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM, SUCH LOSSES MAY BE
PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA
ESTABLISHED BY FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER
EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS AN EXCLUSION FOR
NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THE FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT
GENERALLY REIMBURSES 80% OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE
STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY
PROVIDING THE COVERAGE. THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS
PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS
COVERED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED,
CONTAINS A $100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS
WELL AS INSURERS’ LIABILITY FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF
TERRORISM WHEN THE AMOUNT OF SUCH LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR
EXCEEDS $100 BILLION. IF THE AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES FOR ALL INSURERS
EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE MAY BE REDUCED.

The prospective premium for certified acts of terrorism coverage is $1,313.

Please tell your insurance agent or broker whether you accept or reject certified acts of terrorism
coverage.

TRIANotice-0920 includes copyrighted material with permission from Page 1 of 1
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners.

Item 10.

58




Item 10.

PowerPro Select™

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN
INSURANCE PROPOSAL

INSURANCE

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE: TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT

This notice contains important information about the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act and your terrorism insurance
coverage. Please read it carefully.

In accordance with the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, including all amendments ("TRIA" or the "Act"), we are required to
provide you with a notice of the portion of your premium attributable to coverage for "certified acts of terrorism," the federal
share of payment of losses from such acts, and the limitation or "cap" on our liability under the Act.

THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, including all amendments ("TRIA" or the "Act") establishes a program to spread the risk
of catastrophic losses from certain acts of terrorism between insurers and the federal government. If an individual insurer's
losses from "certified acts of terrorism" exceed a specified deductible amount, the government will reimburse the insurer for
a percentage of losses (the “Federal Share”) paid in excess of the deductible, but only if aggregate industry losses from
such acts exceed the "Program Trigger”. An insurer that has met its insurer deductible is not liable for any portion of losses
in excess of $100 billion per year. Similarly, the federal government is not liable for any losses covered by the Act that
exceed this amount. If aggregate insured losses exceed $100 billion, losses up to that amount may be pro-rated, as
determined by the Secretary of the Treasury.

The Federal Share and Program Trigger by calendar year are:

Calendar Year Federal Share Program Trigger
2015 85% $100,000,000
2016 84% $120,000,000
2017 83% $140,000,000
2018 82% $160,000,000
2019 81% $180,000,000
2020 80% $200,000,000

MANDATORY OFFER OF COVERAGE FOR “CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM” AND DISCLOSURE OF PREMIUM

TRIA requires insurers to make coverage available for any loss that occurs within the United States (or outside of the U.S.
in the case of U.S. missions and certain air carriers and vessels), results from a "certified act of terrorism” AND that,is
otherwise covered under your policy.

A “certified act of terrorism” means:

[Alny act that is certified by the Secretary [of the Treasury], in concurrence with the Secretary of State, and the
Attorney General of the United States

(i) to be an act of terrorism;

(ii) to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to —

Page 7 of 1

59




Item 10.

PowerPro Select™

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN
INSURANCE PROPOSAL

INSURANCE

(1) human life;
(Il) property; or
(1) infrastructure;

(iii) to have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside of the United States in the case of —

() an air carrier (as defined in section 40102 of title 49, United States Code) or United States flag
vessel (or a vessel based principally in the United States, on which United States income tax is
paid and whose insurance coverage is subject to regulation in the United States); or

(Il) the premises of a United States mission; and
(iv) to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population

of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by
coercion.

How the act affects your policy and what you must do

TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

This proposal includes coverage for losses resulting from “certified acts of terrorism.” Coverage for losses from “certified
acts of terrorism” is still subject to, and may be limited by, all other terms, conditions and exclusions contained in your policy.

The premium charge for this coverage for this policy period is $0.

Please sign and return the Policyholder Acknowledgement below.

POLICYHOLDER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| hereby acknowledge that | have received notice of TRIA, the federal share of compensation for “certified acts of
terrorism,” the premium charge for losses covered by TRIA, and the Company's limit of liability should losses covered by
TRIA exceed $100 billion.

Policyholder/Applicant Signature Date

Poeyt M. Green

Print Name

The summary of the Act and the coverage under your policy contained in this notice is necessarily general in
nature. Your policy contains specific terms, definitions, exclusions and conditions. In case of any conflict, your
policy language will control the resolution of all coverage questions. Please read your policy carefully.

if you have any questions regarding this notice, please contact your sales representative.

Page 8 of 1f*
60




DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

R

Item 11.

E AL LS MEMORANDUM
Zr##

TO:  Mayor Green and City Council Members
FROM:  Paul Kockler, Accountant
DATE: June 14, 2021

SUBJECT: FY22 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Health Plan
Administrative Services Agreement

Attached for your approval is the health plan Administrative Services Agreement for
FY22 with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield. Wellmark is proposing a 3.5%
increase per plan member per month to their Health Administrative Fee and no cost
increase to both their Pharmacy Vendor Administrative Fee and Network Access Fee.
City staff recommends approval. If you have questions regarding the attached, please
contact me at 268-5101 or Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108.

Attachment

61




Wellmark.

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield is an Independent
Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association.

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD

and

City of Cedar Falls

Agreement Effective Date: July 1, 2021

Form Number: IA WBCBSSD LG SF — Custom 04/07/2021 Version: 10/20

62




ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered

into effective as of the first day of July, 2021 ("Effective Date"), by and between Wellmark of
South Dakota, Inc., doing business as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota, an
insurance company authorized to administer self-funded group health plans in lowa, (herein
“Wellmark”), and City of Cedar Falls, an lowa public entity with its principal location in lowa
(herein “Account”).

RECITALS

Account is the plan sponsor and plan administrator of a self-funded group health plan
within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common
law employees and other eligible individuals and this Agreement is issued to Account as
the "group policyholder".

The group health plan is sponsored, funded and designed by Account. Account wishes to
enter into a financial arrangement with Wellmark under which Account is solely
responsible for the Claims Paid for Covered Services provided to its Members. Wellmark
does not assume any financial risk or obligation with respect to the Claims Paid for
Covered Services provided to Members of the Plan.

Account desires that Wellmark provide administrative services for its self-funded group
health plan and Wellmark agrees to provide such services subject to the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1.1

1.2

1.3

ARTICLE 1
AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS

“Accountable Care Organization” or “ACO” means a group of health care providers who
agree to deliver coordinated care and meet performance benchmarks for quality and
affordability to manage the total cost of care for their member populations.

“Administrative Fee” means the amount per Plan Member that Wellmark charges the
Account for Administrative Services and which includes allocations for Wellmark’s cost of
administering the Plan, general operating costs, and profit margin. The monthly
Administrative Fee is shown on Exhibit “A”, Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees,
Other Fees, attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference.

“Administrative Services” means those services to be performed by Wellmark for
Account or for the Plan under this Agreement, as specifically described in Article 3 of this
Agreement. Administrative Services expressly exclude any services for the administration
of continuation health coverage under the plan pursuant to COBRA or similar applicable
law, except as may be specified in a COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or
Addendum.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 1 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

63




1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

“Affordable Care Act’ or “ACA” means the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,
enacted March 23, 2010, and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act, as
amended, (collectively, “ACA”), including implementing regulations.

‘Agreement” means this Administrative Services Agreement, including all Exhibits,
Benefits Document(s), amendments, Plan Member enroliment form(s), and any COBRA
Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum. This Agreement also incorporates by
this reference the terms of the HIPAA Business Associate Agreement entered into
between Wellmark and the Plan.

“‘“Amounts Not Covered’” means the amounts that are the liability of the Member under
the Plan. These include charges for services that are not covered by the Plan, charges for
services that are determined to be not medically necessary, reductions in benefits for the
Member's failure to follow the Plan's notification requirements, and charges for services
that have reached a Plan maximum. Amounts Not Covered does not include amounts that
are the responsibility of a health care provider in accordance with the terms of the
provider’s services contract with Wellmark.

“‘Benefits Document” means the written document(s) Account makes available to
Members that describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may
be titled Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar. Account may at its
option incorporate the Benefits Document into its ERISA Summary Plan Description.

“Care Coordinator Fee’” means a fixed amount paid by a Host Blue to providers
periodically for Care Coordination under a Value-Based Program. “Care Coordination” is
organized, information-driven patient care activities intended to facilitate the appropriate
responses to a Member’s health care needs across the continuum of care.

“Claims Paid” means the dollar amount of Wellmark’s payment on behalf of the Account
for Incurred Claims.

“COBRA’” means the group health coverage continuation provisions of the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, including implementing
regulations and similar state or federal laws.

“Confidential Information” means all non-public confidential or proprietary information,
in any form, delivered or made available or otherwise accessed, collected, processed,
stored, or transmitted (whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise) by one party or
its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the “Disclosing Party”) to the
other party, its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the “Receiving
Party”). Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited to, Member information
(including names, addresses and Social Security numbers), Protected Health Information,
personally identifiable information, medical records, Plan claims data, payment data, and
Wellmark Confidential Information. Confidential Information shall not include information
which (a), at the time of disclosure, is available to the general public; (b) becomes at a
later date available to the general public through no fault of Receiving Party and then only
after such later date; (c) Receiving Party can demonstrate was in its possession before
receipt from Disclosing Party; (d) Receiving Party can demonstrate was independently
developed; or (e) is disclosed to Receiving Party without restriction on disclosure by a third
party who has the lawful right to disclose such information.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 2 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

64




1.20

1.21

1.22

“Covered Charges” means the dollar amount a health care provider bills a Member or
Wellmark for Covered Services in accordance with the terms of the Benefits Document.

“Covered Services” means the medically necessary health care services provided to a
Member as described in and covered by the applicable Benefits Document.

“‘ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended,
including implementing regulations.

“Global Payment/Total Cost of Care” means a payment methodology that is defined at
the patient level and accounts for either all patient care or for a specific group of services
delivered to the patient such as outpatient, physician, ancillary, hospital services, and
prescription drugs.

“Grandfathered Health Plan” or “Non-Grandfathered Health Plan” mean the same as
such terms are used in the ACA.

‘HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as
amended, including implementing regulations.

“‘Host Blue” means the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield plan or licensee in a
geographic area outside of the Wellmark service area.

“Incurred Claims” means claims for payment of health care services that are provided to
Members pursuant to the Plan with a date of service during the Rating Period.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Incurred Claims shall not include any claims for payment
of health care services for which Account has separately negotiated coverage and/or
payment arrangements directly with providers, unless Wellmark has agreed to and is a
party to such coverage/payment arrangement.

“Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With
regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the
facility is considered as the Incurred Date.

“‘Maximum Allowable Fee” means a dollar amount Wellmark establishes using various
methodologies for Covered Services and supplies. For medical services, this amount is
developed from various sources, such as charges billed for the same service or supply by
most health care providers within lowa, economic indicators, or relative value indices
developed or approved by Wellmark, and is based on the simplicity or complexity of the
service provided. For medical services received outside of lowa or South Dakota, the
Maximum Allowable Fee is either determined in accordance with the section of this
Agreement entitled Out-of-Area Services or is the amount as described in the preceding
sentence.

For all dental procedures covered under this Agreement, the fee schedule is developed
based on Wellmark’s contracts with dentists, input from its dental consultants, and the
charges billed for the same procedure by dentists in lowa.

“Medical Management Services” means educational and informational health and care

management programs, or wellness services Wellmark may provide to Members designed
to encourage Members’ good health and help them make better health care decisions.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 3 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

65




1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

1.31

1.32

Medical Management Services are not clinical services. These services may include, but
are not limited to, BeWell 24/7, pregnancy support, advanced care management, or other
programs.

‘“Member”’ means a person, including a Plan Member’'s spouse or eligible dependent
children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the terms of the Plan
as determined and identified by Account.

“‘Network Access Fee’ means the amount charged to Account to gain the collective
advantages of the network of providers with which Wellmark, a Host Blue, or any
subcontractor of either, has contracted for the provision of Covered Services. The fee is a
monthly amount as shown on Exhibit “A”, and may include funding for provider incentives.
There shall be no Network Access Fee for dental benefits. A portion of the Network Access
Fee may include an allocation for administrative expenses above the Administrative Fee.

“‘Network Savings” means the amount saved due to payment arrangements between
Wellmark or a Host Blue and health care providers. It is generally calculated as the
difference between the Covered Charge and the Maximum Allowable Fee. This result is
then added to any other reductions in the liability to a provider pursuant to a contract
between Wellmark and the provider, including, but not limited to, reductions for failure to
satisfy any notification requirements and medical necessity determinations. If the amount
paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charges, the Network Savings may
be reflected as a negative dollar amount on Account’s bill.

“Patient-Centered Medical Home” or “PCMH” means a model of care in which each
patient has an ongoing relationship with a primary care physician who coordinates a team
to take collective responsibility for patient care and, when appropriate, arranges for care
with other qualified physicians.

“Plan” means the group health plan or plans established, sponsored and maintained by
Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits Document.

“‘Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account
as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents and who is the
applicant on a completed enrollment form that has been provided to and accepted by
Wellmark.

“Plan Year” means the year designated by the plan sponsor as the plan year in the plan
document or as set forth on Exhibit “A”.

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR §160.103.

“Provider Incentive” means an additional amount of compensation paid to a health care
provider, based on the provider's compliance with agreed-upon procedural and/or
outcome measures for a particular population of covered persons.

“‘Rating Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent
revision to Exhibit “A”.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 4 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

66




1.33

1.34

1.35

21

“Shared Savings” means a payment mechanism in which the provider and payer share
cost savings achieved against a target cost budget based upon agreed upon terms and
may include downside risk.

“Value-Based Program” means an outcomes-based payment arrangement and/or a
coordinated care model facilitated with one or more local providers that is evaluated
against cost and quality metrics/factors and is reflected in provider payment.

“Wellmark Confidential Information” means any information with respect to Wellmark’s
systems, procedures, methodologies and practices used by Wellmark in connection with
claims processing, claims payment or utilization management, together with the fees,
terms, payment arrangements, discounts with providers, and related information, as well
as any strategic and competitively sensitive information and trade secrets, policies,
procedures, and processes of Wellmark, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association and its
licensees.

ARTICLE 2
RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT

Group Health Plan Compliance. Account is the plan administrator and plan sponsor of
the Plan for purposes of this Agreement and applicable law, and is responsible for group
health plan design, eligibility, and compliance. Account will exercise its responsibilities in
the time required by law and has full responsibility for all of the following:

a. Maintaining the Plan, determining Plan design, and funding payment of Claims
Paid;
b. Determining eligibility criteria for Members subject to certain Wellmark enrollment

guidelines, including the requirements for locations or Members located outside of
lowa; Account is responsible for enrolling and canceling individuals in the Plan in
accordance with such criteria and agrees to terminate coverage promptly for
ineligible individuals;

C. Designating the Plan Year for the Plan;

d. Complying with all applicable laws, reporting and disclosure requirements related
to this Agreement and applicable to Account as sponsor of a group health plan,
including compliance with any applicable non-discrimination laws in connection
with the plan, including but not limited to the following: (i) furnishing Members with
Plan documents or notices as may be required by law, including the summary of
benefits and coverage (“SBC”), any notice of material modification, employer
notice of the availability of coverage options under the health insurance
marketplace, and applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability
such as the Special Enroliment Notice. Account will also make available to
Members on request the uniform glossary of insurance-related terms; (ii)
complying with any applicable non-discrimination laws in the design and
administration of the Plan; and (iii) furnishing all notices and fulfilling all
requirements with regard to COBRA continuation coverage for the Plan, except to
the extent any COBRA administration requirements have been expressly

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 5 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

67




delegated to and agreed upon with Wellmark in a COBRA Administrative Services
Agreement or Addendum;

Reviewing and approving promptly templates or drafts of Benefits Document(s)
reflecting the Plan design, eligibility and benefit information Account provides to
Wellmark. Account is responsible for reviewing the draft Benefits Document(s)
promptly, typically within thirty (30) days of receiving the draft document(s), and
determining to Account’s satisfaction that the document(s) meet all of Account’s
legal and business obligations and advising Wellmark of any necessary revisions
or approval. The absence of Account’s express timely approval of any Benefits
Document(s) provided by Wellmark will be considered Account’s approval that the
draft documents are consistent with benefit information provided by Account, and
Wellmark will administer the benefits in accordance with the proposed documents.
Once in final form, Account will make the Benefits Document(s) available to Plan
Members;

Making final determinations regarding claims, claims internal appeals, or claims
exceptions, except to the extent expressly delegated to, and accepted by,
Wellmark in Sections 3.1 and 3.6 of this Agreement;

Providing to Wellmark written notice of benefit selections, limitations, and
exclusions, changes in the benefits at renewal, or material modifications at any
time during the Rating Period. Account shall provide such notice(s) in the time and
manner required by Wellmark to fulfill the issuance of SBCs, preparation of
Benefits Document templates, or the issuance of other required notices within the
time required by law;

If the coverage of any Plan Member or Member is terminated retroactively, Account
represents that it either has not collected any premium contribution from the
retroactively terminated Member, or has refunded any premium contribution to the
retroactively terminated Member, for the period following the effective date of the
termination;

Payment of any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or
Plan-related charge, tax, surcharge or assessment, however denominated, that
may be assessed on the Plan or related to the administration of the Plan, including
any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto;

Compliance with any income and employment tax withholding, depositing, and
reporting obligations (including state or federal income tax withholding, FICA tax
withholding, employer, FUTA taxes, and Form W-2 wage reporting) applicable to
rewards incentives or value-added benefits that may be provided under this
employer-sponsored group health plan to Members covered under the Plan.
Account is responsible for including the value of any such incentives or value-
added benefits as reported by Wellmark to Account in the applicable employees’
wages for federal or state income tax, employment tax, and Form W-2 reporting
purposes;

Account shall maintain a process for external review of final internal adverse
benefit determinations as required by ACA, except to the extent expressly
delegated to, and accepted by, Wellmark in this Agreement; and

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 6 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

68




2.2

2.3

24

Calculating, reporting, and payment of any fees and assessments, however
denominated, required for all group health plans under ACA.

Enroliment Information; Social Security Number Reporting; Information
Requirements. Account agrees to furnish Wellmark with reports, data, and information,
including but not limited to, eligibility, enroliment information, physical home address, and
Social Security number for each Member, benefit selection or benefit changes for the Plan,
claims history, and information necessary for the administration of the Plan. Account shall
provide all such information in a time, form, format, and manner required by Wellmark and
is responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention, and accuracy of information and
records provided to Wellmark. Wellmark shall be entitled to rely upon such information in
determining any person'’s rights to benefits under the Plan, in making required filings with
state or federal government agencies, and in discharging its responsibilities under this
Agreement. Account recognizes that its timely, accurate, and complete reporting of the
information set forth in this section is necessary for Wellmark to perform its obligations
under this Agreement and that should reporting be inaccurate, untimely, or incomplete,
Wellmark shall be excused from the performance of the Administrative Services affected
by such inaccuracy or delay.

Account shall provide Wellmark with eligibility or enroliment information in a standard
medium and layout using Wellmark’s proprietary format, the HIPAA ANSI 834 standard
format, or an application such as BluesEnroll, unless the parties agree in writing to a non-
standard format or application. Account acknowledges that it may be responsible for
additional fees if it uses a non-standard format or if Wellmark is required to perform a
comparison study of the full eligibility file.

Account Representation regarding Eligibility; Notice of Persons Eligible for
Coverage; Changes in Eligibility. Account represents to Wellmark that the terms of any
eligibility criteria, conditions, and/or waiting period imposed under the Plan are, and shall
be for so long as this Agreement is in effect, in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, including specifically, the prohibition on excessive waiting periods. Account
shall enroll persons eligible for coverage in the Plan in advance of each person’s effective
date of coverage and shall provide Wellmark with each person’s name, Plan selection,
Social Security number, and other required identifying information. Account shall provide
all initial enrollment information in advance of the Effective Date of this Agreement. As
new persons become eligible, or as eligibility changes occur, including any special
enrollment events that require a person to be offered coverage or changed to a different
enrollment status such as COBRA, Account shall provide Wellmark with updated required
information as such changes occur. Account shall provide Wellmark with enrollment
updates no less often than weekly and in advance of the effective date of the change if
possible. No requested eligibility, enroliment or coverage change shall be effective any
earlier than three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark receives the required notice from
Account.

Notice of Persons Terminated or No Longer Eligible for Coverage; Account’s
Liability for Claims Paid. Account shall notify Wellmark of any person’s termination or
ineligibility for coverage under the Plan in advance of the effective date of the change if
possible, but in no event no later than three (3) months following the requested date of
coverage termination. No requested coverage termination shall be effective any earlier
than three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark receives the required notice from

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 7 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

69




2.5

2.6

2.7

Account. If Incurred Claims prior to the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage
termination have been paid and are not or cannot be recouped, Account shall be
responsible for the Claims Paid prior to the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage
termination.

Medicare Secondary Payer (“MSP”). Federal law mandates coordination of health care
benefits in certain instances where a Member is covered under both a group health plan
and Medicare. Proper coordination of benefits in this context depends on obtaining and
maintaining accurate and timely information regarding such dual health coverage.
Pursuant to contract and applicable law, Wellmark provides information to Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) regarding such dual health coverage for
Members and Account’s enrollment on a quarterly or more frequent basis.

Account is solely responsible for compliance with MSP laws and other requirements and
shall gather and timely provide information to Wellmark regarding Account’s size and
status and Employer Identification Number (“EIN”)(s), or concerning the Medicare
enrollment of Members, Plan enrollment, and related information (including, without
limitation, Member Social Security numbers), or such other information as requested by
Wellmark for inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other
disclosures. Wellmark shall use all such information provided by Account to properly
coordinate medical and pharmacy benefits administered by Wellmark or a Wellmark-
contracted vendor on behalf of Account with Medicare as required by law. In the event
Account does not timely provide such information to Wellmark, Account shall be solely
responsible for its non-compliance with MSP laws and other requirements, including,
without limitation, any damages, losses, taxes, interest charges, and administrative
penalties (including, without limitation, any civil money penalties) that may be assessed
or otherwise result in connection therewith (including, without limitation, any claims by
Members, providers or other claimants), and mistaken payments to CMS on behalf of
Medicare enrolled Members. Wellmark will not coordinate with Medicare with respect to
benefits that are administered by a third-party vendor other than Wellmark or a Wellmark-
contracted vendor, and Account is solely responsible for coordinating benefits
administered by such outside services vendor(s) with Medicare as required by law.

Stop Loss Insurance Coverage. Account is solely responsible for the Claims Paid for
Members of the Plan. Account may at its option separately purchase stop loss insurance
coverage, which shall be reflected in a separate policy. If Account purchases stop loss
insurance coverage from a carrier other than Wellmark, Inc., Account shall advise
Wellmark of the terms of such coverage and Account shall be solely responsible for all
reporting, submission of claims, payment of premiums, and any other obligation required
by its stop loss policy with the other carrier. If Account purchases stop loss insurance
coverage from a carrier other than Wellmark, Inc., Account is also solely responsible for
ensuring that such stop loss coverage is consistent with Account’s benefits documents
and Wellmark’s administration thereof. Upon request Wellmark will provide Account with
standard stop loss reports necessary for Account to file stop loss insurance claims with its
stop loss carrier.

Outside Services Vendor(s) to the Plan. If Account arranges for health plan
administration services for the Plan from vendor(s) other than Wellmark or a Wellmark-
contracted vendor, such as, for example, pharmacy benefits management services or
telehealth management services, Account shall be responsible for compliance with laws,
the accuracy and submission of reports, claims data reporting, payments, and for any

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 8 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

70




3.1

other obligation required by its vendor agreements. If Account requires its vendor to submit
claims for Covered Services to Wellmark, such vendor shall also enter into an agreement
with Wellmark that requires vendor to comply with Wellmark’s claims procedures. If
Account or the Plan requires coordination or health plan accumulations between its third
party vendor's administration and the health plan administration provided by Wellmark,
Account shall be responsible for providing Wellmark with all enrollment information and
claims or payment data reasonably necessary for Wellmark to provide Administrative
Services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3
WELLMARK’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Determination of Claims; Administrative Services. During the Term of this Agreement
and subject to Account’s payment to Wellmark, when due, of the charges for Claims Paid
and other fees specified in this Agreement, Wellmark shall provide Administrative Services
as specified in this section as follows:

a. Wellmark shall provide Account with a written draft of Benefits Document(s) with
the plan design and Member eligibility criteria information determined by Account
and communicated to Wellmark, for Account’s review and approval as required by
Section 2.1(e), setting forth the benefits, terms and conditions of the Plan;

b. Wellmark shall provide access to a network(s) of health care providers and shall
make information about the network and network providers available to Members;

C. Wellmark shall prepare, print, and deliver identification cards to Plan Members;

d. Wellmark will perform its Administrative Services specified in this Agreement in
compliance with applicable laws, including, but not limited to, compliance with
retention of records, and compliance with applicable provisions on non-
discrimination in health plan administration;

e. Wellmark shall make available to Account forms of ACA or HIPAA required notices,
including the summary of benefits and coverage (“SBC”) and applicable HIPAA
notices relating to health coverage portability such as the Special Enrollment
Notice. Wellmark shall make available the uniform glossary of insurance-related
terms;

f. Subject to Section 6.1(c), Wellmark shall administer benefits and process Incurred
Claims for health care services furnished Members in accordance with the terms,
limitations and conditions set forth in the Plan, the Benefits Document(s), this
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, the terms of the applicable provider
agreements, and the claims administration and medical policies of Wellmark, all of
which may be revised from time to time. Processing of claims may include payment
by Wellmark on behalf of Account; reporting of benefits to providers or Members,
coordination of benefits, and may include monitoring, detection, and investigation
of potentially wasteful, abusive or fraudulent Incurred Claims. Processing of claims
may require, from time to time, and as Wellmark determines is necessary and
appropriate, the adjustment of previously paid or denied claims resulting in either
recovery of Claims Paid or additional payment of benefits. Adjustments to
processed claims are generally not initiated by Wellmark more than eighteen (18)

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 9 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

71




3.2

3.3

3.4

months after the Incurred Claim was first processed. If a Claim Paid adjustment
results in a recovery of a prior payment, Wellmark shall credit Account for such
adjustments to the extent of the amount recovered. Notwithstanding the preceding
three sentences and except as provided in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 of this Agreement,
Wellmark shall not be required to reprocess claims as a result of any changes
made to information relating to a Member or the Member's benefits unless (i) in
addition to submitting changes to Wellmark, Account expressly requests in writing
that Wellmark reprocess specific Member claims; and (ii) such reprocessing does
not extend beyond eighteen (18) months prior to the date Wellmark receives
Account's request;

g. Wellmark shall maintain a single-level internal appeal procedure for Members to
appeal adverse benefit determinations in accordance with the requirements of the
Plan and applicable law. Wellmark shall also maintain a procedure for processing
external review requests of final internal adverse benefit determinations with
appropriate independent review organizations (“IROs”), pursuant to the
requirements of the Plan and applicable law. All fees and costs for external review
billed by IROs will be billed to Account in the amounts billed by the IRO; and

h. To the extent that Account has delegated discretionary authority to Wellmark,
Wellmark shall exercise its discretion to make determinations in connection with
the administration of this Agreement and the Plan including, without limitation,
determinations regarding whether health care services are medically necessary in
accordance with Plan terms or whether charges for health care services are
reasonable. Wellmark shall make determinations that are not arbitrary or
capricious and such determinations shall be final and conclusive to the extent
permitted by this Agreement, the terms of the Benefits Document, any direction
given by Account, and by law.

Medical Management Services. Wellmark may, at its sole discretion, offer or arrange for
various proprietary Medical Management Services to be available to Members or
purchased by Account for its Members. Such services that may be offered include those
services, if any, specifically selected or purchased by Account for a fee as shown on
Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement. Medical Management Services and their content
are proprietary to Wellmark or its vendors, and may not be duplicated, modified or used
for the benefit of any third party. Account does not have any right, title or interest in or to
the Medical Management Services or the intellectual property underlying such Medical
Management Services. Wellmark reserves the right to change, replace, or discontinue
Medical Management Services from time to time without notice or amendment of this
Agreement.

Value-Added Services; Identity Protection. Wellmark, at its sole discretion, may offer
or arrange for value-added services or benefits for Account and its Members, including,
for example, Member Identity Protection services from a third-party vendor. Identity
Protection services are offered at no additional charge to Account or Members. Account
may at its option accept or reject Identity Protection services for its Members.

IRS Form 1095-C Reporting. At the written request of Account, Wellmark will provide
certain coverage information for purposes of Account’s Form 1095-C reporting to the
Internal Revenue Service. Wellmark does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of
the information provided, and expressly disclaims any liability for any penalties or costs

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 10 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

72




3.5

that may be incurred due to alleged or actual inaccuracy or incompleteness, including but
not limited to information reporting or other penalties that may be imposed if such
information is relied upon or used in conjunction with any tax or other regulatory filing.
Wellmark does not provide federal or state legal or tax advice, and does not prepare or
otherwise assist in preparing, in any way, any federal or state tax returns or reports on
behalf of its customers, including but not limited to IRS Form 1095-C. Account assumes
all liability in connection with the preparation of such documents and has the responsibility
to consult with its own legal or tax advisors for information or assistance.

Third Party Liability Recovery Services. Wellmark shall provide Account with
subrogation and third-party liability recovery services for Claims Paid while this Agreement
is in force, and for a period of twelve (12) months following termination of the Agreement
for any such matter initiated prior to termination. Wellmark has no obligation to initiate
subrogation or third-party liability recovery services after this Agreement is terminated.
Following the twelve (12) month run-out period, Wellmark will forward any open recovery
file information to Account.

The nature and extent of efforts to pursue subrogation and third-party liability recovery are
within the sole discretion of Wellmark. Such recovery services may include all steps
necessary to recover Claims Paid that may be found to be the liability of a third party or
other insurance carrier. The Account shall be responsible for all fees or costs, including
the fees and costs of any third party utilized by Wellmark to perform third-party liability
recovery services, incurred in the recovery process, with those costs and fees first paid
from any funds recovered and the net amount only credited to Account’s Claims Paid
amounts. The fees for Wellmark’s primary vendor providing third-party liability recovery
services are described on Exhibit “A” to this Agreement. Account acknowledges that its
stop loss carrier has priority of any recovery in the event the Claims Paid exceed the stop
loss attachment or deductible level and there is insufficient recovery to reimburse the stop
loss carrier and Account in full. Account shall accept any such recoveries as negotiated
by Wellmark as payment in full and the determination of the recovery amount is within the
sole discretion of Wellmark.

In the event retention of counsel is necessary to pursue recovery, Account shall be
responsible for all attorney's fees. Wellmark has sole discretion with regard to the choice
of counsel to pursue third-party liability recovery. Wellmark may choose to allow a
Member’s counsel to represent the Account’s recovery interest. However, if the fee
charged for collection of the recovery interest by legal counsel retained by the Member
exceeds the prevalent fees for such services, Wellmark shall not authorize pursuit or
settlement of the claim by said Member’s attorney or payment of that attorney’s fee without
Account’s written authorization. Further, if in the opinion of Wellmark, recovery of funds
shall not offset the costs associated with such recovery, or recovery of the funds is not
otherwise practicable, Wellmark shall inform the Account in writing of its opinion.
Thereafter, unless the Account directs otherwise, Wellmark shall not further pursue the
claim. In the event Account directs Wellmark to pursue Account’s interest notwithstanding
Wellmark’s notice to Account of its opinion that the recovery shall not offset the involved
costs, Account shall be responsible for all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by Wellmark
to pursue recovery, including the reasonable cost of Wellmark’s staff time as determined
by Wellmark.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 11 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

73




3.6

41

4.2

Wellmark does not guarantee the recovery of funds and nothing in this section or
Agreement obligates Wellmark to participate in or initiate any third-party liability recovery
efforts or litigation to recover Claims Paid.

Discretionary Authority. Wellmark is delegated the authority to determine claims for
benefits and to determine internal appeals of adverse benefit determinations of Members,
provided such determinations are consistent with the terms of the Plan as provided by
Account, this Agreement, the applicable Benefits Document, and applicable law, unless
otherwise directed in writing by the Account. In making decisions regarding claims for
benefits and appeals of denied claims, Wellmark shall have discretionary authority only to
the limited extent necessary to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and to
determine whether a claim is properly payable under the Plan. Notwithstanding anything
in this Agreement to the contrary, Account shall have full responsibility for Plan design, for
making any and all determinations whether an individual has satisfied the Account's
requirements to be an eligible Member, and for making any determination regarding an
individual’s eligibility for continued coverage pursuant to COBRA.

ARTICLE 4
BILLING AND PAYMENT

Billing; Account’s Payment to Wellmark. Account authorizes Wellmark and Wellmark
agrees to process Incurred Claims as received, subject to the limitations, conditions, and
exclusions stated in the Benefits Document.

Wellmark shall bill Account for Claims Paid, Network Access Fee, Administrative Fee, and
other fees, based on the billing and payment method and fees set forth on Exhibit “A”,
attached to this Agreement. Any adjustments in fees due to membership or eligibility
changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the membership or eligibility
change is made. Adjustments to Network Access Fee, Administrative Fee, and other fees,
billed on a per Plan Member or per Member basis, shall be limited to a period of three (3)
months prior to the date Wellmark processes the Member eligibility change. Wellmark
shall provide a bill to Account that shows the amounts due and, if applicable, the amounts
of any weekly payments received by Wellmark and other credits during the preceding
month. Account shall promptly pay Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due,
no later than the due date on the bill. Such payment may be made by wire transfer,
electronic (ebilling) payment, or automatic funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic
funds withdrawal, it shall execute the necessary authorization.

If Account elects to authorize automatic funds withdrawal from a deposit account, the
automatic withdrawal will change to correspond with the applicable billing, including
applicable taxes or fees. Account’s authorization for automatic funds withdrawal shall
include authorization for automatic withdrawal of any changed amount unless Account
calls or provides its bank with written notice not less than three (3) business days before
a scheduled withdrawal to stop the payment. If Account calls its bank to stop payment,
Account may be required to provide a written request within fourteen (14) days after the
call. Account will be responsible for any fee assessed by its bank for stop-payment orders
made by Account.

Late Payments; Interest Charge. All payments from Account to Wellmark must be paid

on time and when due in accordance with Section 4.1. If the Account fails to make
payments in full when due, Wellmark may in its discretion do any or all of the following:

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 12 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

74




5.1

5.2

impose interest or late fees; setoff late payments from other amounts that may be due to
Account under the Agreement; stop the payment of all Incurred Claims for Members,
regardless of the Incurred Date; require an alternative billing and payment method; or
require an alternative financial arrangement. Payments not made when due shall include
an interest charge on the outstanding amount from the due date until payment is made in
full at the then current prime rate as published in the Midwest edition of The Wall Street
Journal plus two percent (2%) per annum. The acceptance by Wellmark of any late
payments or partial payments shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this
Agreement. If Account fails to make payments when due for two or more consecutive
months, Wellmark may impose additional late fees of up to eighteen percent (18%) per
annum.

ARTICLE 5
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; REPORTING; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS

Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information and Protected Health Information.
The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted uses and disclosures with
respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the separately executed
Business Associate Agreement. If Account desires access to a Member’s mental health
information, Account shall file an applicable statement with the lowa Insurance Division or
have its employees or agents sign a statement indicating awareness that Members’
mental health information shall not be used or disclosed, except in accordance with the
provisions of lowa Code Section 228.7. If Account utilizes third-party vendors to provide
any administrative services to the Plan and directs Wellmark to provide or exchange any
Confidential Information or PHI with such vendors, Account agrees to the following
additional provisions: (a) Account represents it has the legally required business associate
and data security agreements in place with such third-party vendors, and (b) Account
agrees that third party must enter into a confidentiality and data use agreement with
Wellmark, which identifies the purpose for which the Wellmark Confidential Information is
disclosed, limits the use and disclosure of that data to the specific purpose stated in the
data use agreement, and requires third party to return or remove the Wellmark
Confidential Information from third-party’s systems or database when Account’s
relationship with Wellmark terminates or when Account’s relationship with third-party
vendor terminates.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information.

a. Subiject to the terms of the Business Associate Agreement and Section 5.1 and as
permitted by applicable law, the Receiving Party will: (i) not disclose Confidential
Information to any third party that is not an agent, consultant or business associate
to Receiving Party without the written authorization of the Disclosing Party; (ii)
restrict disclosure of Confidential Information only to those employees, agents or
consultants who have a need to know the Confidential Information for purposes
related to this Agreement or the administration of the Plan and who are bound by
confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in this Agreement; (iii) use the
same degree of care as for its own information of like importance, but at least use
reasonable care, in safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential Information;
and (iv) without unreasonable delay and in accordance with applicable law notify
the Disclosing Party of any unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential
Information and take reasonable steps to regain possession of the Confidential

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 13 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

75




5.3

Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this
Agreement.

b. If the Receiving Party is required to disclose Confidential Information pursuant to
applicable law, statute, or regulation, or court order, for a purpose other than
contemplated in this Agreement, the Receiving Party will give to the Disclosing
Party prompt written notice of the request and a reasonable opportunity to object
to such disclosure and seek a protective order or appropriate remedy. If, in the
absence of a protective order, the Receiving Party determines, upon the advice of
counsel, that it is required to disclose such information, it may disclose only
Confidential Information specifically required and only to the extent compelled to
do so.

C. All Confidential Information remains the property of the Disclosing Party and will
not be copied or reproduced without the express written permission of the
Disclosing Party, except for copies that are necessary to fulfill the confidentiality
obligations contained in this Agreement, to render the services under this
Agreement, or as otherwise allowed under the Business Associate Agreement or
applicable law. A party may retain Confidential Information when obligated to do
so as a matter of law, and may also retain any Protected Health Information as set
forth in the Business Associate Agreement.

d. Wellmark Confidential Information that is released by Wellmark to Account or to a
third-party at Account’s request may only be used strictly for the purpose of claims
administration or Account Servicing, which is defined as Account-specific reporting
and analytics, benchmarking, development of benefit designs, Wellmark
performance/experience, pre-sales/retention, and audits. Account, and/or third
party, as recipients of Wellmark Confidential Information, are prohibited from
reselling Wellmark Confidential Information. To the extent Wellmark Confidential
Information is disclosed in an aggregated format to Account and/or its third party,
Account and third party are prohibited from de-aggregating the data to identify
Wellmark, the Account and/or individual Members. Wellmark Confidential
Information disclosed to Account and/or third party shall be limited to the minimum
necessary information to fulfill the purpose for which it is being disclosed. Wellmark
Confidential Information shall not be comingled by Account or third party with data
from other sources. Wellmark may audit the Account or third party to ensure
compliance with the limitations on data use and disclosure that are set forth in this
section. Account or third party shall return or securely destroy the Wellmark
Confidential Information it receives upon conclusion of the purpose for which it was
disclosed.

Wellmark’s Right to Use Confidential Information. Wellmark shall have the right to de-
identify or remove direct identifiers from the Confidential Information so that it no longer
constitutes Protected Health Information, and so that such Confidential Information is no
longer identifiable with respect to Account, and to aggregate such de-identified
Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever; provided that such use is in
accordance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to HIPAA. Such Confidential
Information, after it is de-identified or limited pursuant to HIPAA, shall no longer be subject
to Section 5.2 and shall thereafter be Wellmark’s property.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 14 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

76




5.4

5.5

Right to Examine Records; Audit. Wellmark or its authorized representative may at its
own expense examine or audit the financial, enroliment, eligibility, and claims records of
Account reasonably related to the administration of this Agreement, as reasonably often
as Wellmark deems appropriate, to reconcile eligibility and enrollment information and
records, to determine whether Account can make the payments required by this
Agreement, or to determine payment of benefits under the Plan. Such examination if at
Account’s location, shall be conducted during regular business hours, upon reasonable
advance written notice. The examination period will be limited to information relating to the
most recent twenty-four (24) months only, if applicable. Upon completion of the
examination, Wellmark shall share its examination findings with Account and conduct an
exit conference with Account. Any third party conducting such audit on Wellmark's behalf
must agree in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Business Associate
Agreement between Account and Wellmark.

Account's third-party authorized representative or auditor may, at Account's own expense,
examine Wellmark’s records reasonably and necessarily related to Wellmark’s discharge
of its responsibilities under this Agreement no more frequently than once annually.
Account shall provide Wellmark with written authorization specifying the Account or Plan
information that Wellmark may disclose to the auditor and Account represents that it will
have entered into a business associate agreement with its auditor prior to the date of
requesting disclosure of Confidential Information. The auditor must be acceptable to
Wellmark, must not compete directly or indirectly with Wellmark, and must execute a non-
disclosure agreement with Wellmark prior to receiving any Protected Health Information
or Wellmark Confidential Information. Such examination shall be conducted during regular
business hours, upon advance written notice reasonable under the circumstances and
shall include the following Wellmark records: claims records (but not including individually
identifiable sensitive diagnosis information unless Account specifically authorizes such
disclosure), third-party explanations of health care benefits, enrollment records, and
coordination of benefits procedures. Any other audit or examination request must be
coordinated with Wellmark. The examination period will be limited to information relating
to the most recent twenty-four (24) months only, notwithstanding the period for claim
adjustments as may be specified in Section 3.1. Upon completion of the examination,
Account shall share its examination findings with Wellmark and conduct an exit conference
with Wellmark. Audits conducted by auditors or consultants compensated on a
contingency fee basis are not permitted by Wellmark as such compensation arrangements
are not consistent with professional auditing standards. Such standards consider these
compensation arrangements to impair the auditor's or consultant's independence and
objectivity. Audit scope, methodology, and procedure under this Agreement will conform
to generally accepted professional auditing standards, including statistically valid random
sample (as applicable) or other acceptable audit technique as reasonably agreed to by
Wellmark.

Website Access and Reporting. Wellmark may provide Account while this Agreement is
in force with secured access to Wellmark’s website, web-based applications, or other
electronic databases with respect to the Plan and Members for the purpose of Plan
administration and health care operations, reporting, billing, or for self-service. Web-based
applications or databases with Member and Plan specific Confidential Information may be
hosted or supported by third parties on Wellmark's behalf. If Account or a third party acting
on Account's behalf accesses such websites or information, Account is subject to and
agrees to all of the terms and conditions, including the confidentiality requirements of this
Agreement, and security restrictions and user requirements as established by Wellmark

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 15 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

77




5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

with respect to such access, as such terms are set forth in a data use agreement and in
the applicable Terms and Conditions posted at Wellmark's website (Wellmark.com).

Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Agreement
survive any termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6

PROVIDER PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS; LAWSUIT RECOVERIES; VALUE-BASED

PROGRAMS; DISCLOSURE OF COMPENSATION

Provider Payment Arrangements. Wellmark will be responsible for negotiating and
entering into separate payment arrangements with health care providers. Such provider
payment arrangements and agreements shall apply to services by such providers for all
Members entitled to benefits under plans insured or administered by Wellmark, including
Members under this Plan.

Wellmark shall determine, in its sole discretion, the payment arrangements with health
care providers including, without limitation, the Maximum Allowable Fees for Incurred
Claims. Without limiting the foregoing, Wellmark may compensate providers pursuant to
a variety of payment arrangements, including the following:

a. Fee for service arrangements, including, without limitation, per diem and percent
of charge arrangements;

b. Fixed fee or other payment methodology that is based on pre-determined criteria;
or
C. Episode of care arrangements under which payment is based on a pre-established

rate for a health care encounter, including, without limitation, a hospital stay or
outpatient visit. In the event such an arrangement is utilized, consistent with the
methodology established by Wellmark for such arrangement, Wellmark is not
required to impose cost share responsibility on Members for each Covered Service
Members receive. An episode of care arrangement payment may cover both
Covered Services and non-Covered Services that are incidental to the Covered
Services.

Network Savings Allocations. Any Network Savings amounts allocated to the Account
shall be reflected in the amount of Claims Paid. Based on Wellmark’s payment
arrangements with health care providers, and in accordance with Section 6.1, the amount
paid on an individual claim may be more or less than the Covered Charge minus any
applicable Amounts Not Covered, deductible, copayment, and coinsurance amounts. If
the amount paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charge, the Network
Savings is reflected as a negative dollar amount. Any Network Savings amounts allocated
to Plan Members shall be reflected in the calculation of coinsurance, where applicable.
The calculation of coinsurance depends on the type and location of the services provided
and the contracting status of the health care provider. The calculation of coinsurance is
further described in the applicable Benefits Document.

Non-Contracting or Non-Network Providers. If the applicable Benefits Document

provides benefits for Covered Services rendered by health care providers that have not
contracted with Wellmark or another Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan (“Non-Contracting

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 16 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

78




6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

7.2

Providers”), Members may be liable to Non-Contracting Providers for any difference
between the Covered Charges and the Maximum Allowable Fee and Members are
responsible for paying the provider in full.

Lawsuit Recoveries. From time to time, Wellmark, Account, or Plan may receive notice
of a pending or potential lawsuit being pursued by another entity (including, without
limitation, a class action lawsuit) that seeks recovery of health care claims expenses on
behalf of one or more group health plans or payers and that may include Wellmark,
Account, or the Plan as a potential party or potential class member (a “Lawsuit”).
Wellmark shall not participate in such a Lawsuit on behalf of Account or the Plan unless
Wellmark and Account enter into a separate written agreement relating to participation,
recovery, and expenses in such Lawsuit. Wellmark has no duty to notify Account or Plan
of Wellmark’s receipt of any notices in connection with any Lawsuit and each party is free
to make its own determination whether to initiate or participate in any Lawsuit on its own
behalf.

Value-Based Programs. Wellmark or Host Blues may enter into collaborative
arrangements with Value-Based Programs under which the health care organizations
participating in such programs are eligible for financial incentives relating to quality and
cost-effective care of Wellmark members. Identifiable Data regarding Account's Members
may be included in information Wellmark or Host Blues provide to Value-Based Programs
and used by the Value-Based Program and its providers. Regardless whether Account
elects to participate in the Value-Based Program, known as Total Care, Account’s
Members may access Covered Services from providers that participate in a Host Blue’s
Value-Based Program as described in Section 9.3, Special Cases: Value-Based
Programs. If Account has elected to participate in the Value-Based Program, a separate
Value-Based Program Exhibit is attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this
reference.

Disclosure of Compensation. Wellmark shall comply with Department of Labor
requirements regarding the disclosure of compensation received from all sources in
connection with this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7
LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES

Account’s Responsibility for Claims Paid. Account is solely responsible for all Claims
Paid for its Members, including, without limitation, an individual added or deleted as a
result of a retroactive eligibility change, or any Claims Paid at Account’s direction to
Wellmark to make payment regardless of Plan limitations or exclusions. Wellmark
provides Administrative Services and network access only and does not assume any
financial risk or obligation with respect to claims, including, without limitation, any Claims
Paid. Wellmark has no obligation to pay Incurred Claims if Account fails to pay or
reimburse Wellmark timely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

No Duty to Defend. Wellmark shall have no duty or obligation to defend against any action
or proceeding brought against Account or the Plan to recover a claim for benefits.
Wellmark shall, however, make available to Account and its counsel, such evidence
relevant to such action or proceeding as Wellmark may have as a result of its
administration of the contested benefit determination.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 17 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

79




7.3

Account’s Liability. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Account
shall accept the tender of defense and have the liability for all Plan benefit claims and all
expenses incident to the Plan, and agrees to release, hold harmless, and indemnify
Wellmark and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts,
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges,
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys'
fees and court costs, for which Wellmark may become liable:

a.

due to any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or plan-
related charge, surcharge or assessment, federal tax, excise tax, or fee imposed
on group health plans or plan sponsors under ACA, however denominated,
including any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto, assessed against
Wellmark on the basis of and/or measured by the amount of Plan benefits
administered by Wellmark pursuant to this Agreement;

due to any action or proceeding brought by a Member or a third party to recover
benefits under the Plan;

due to any action or proceeding brought by a Member or a third party alleging
Wellmark provided significant assistance to Account to aid or perpetuate any
discrimination activity;

due to a release of Confidential Information to Account, the Plan, or a third party
at Account’s direction or arising out of any alleged improper use of Confidential
Information by Account or such third party;

due to Account’s failure to timely provide requested information to Wellmark for
inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other disclosures that
relate to Account’s size and status, EIN(s), the Medicare enroliment of Members,
Account enrollment, and related information (including, without limitation, Member
Social Security numbers), or such other information requested by Wellmark
resulting in processing of claims not in compliance with MSP laws and other
requirements in accordance with Section 2.5;

due to Account’s failure to comply with applicable law relating to issuing or failing
to issue the required notices in accordance with Section 2.1(d);

due to Account’s failure or delay in providing accurate reports, data, and
information regarding eligibility, enrollment, and Social Security numbers for each
Member, benefit selection, limitations, exclusions, or benefit changes for the Plan,
claims history, and other information necessary for Wellmark to administer the
terms, coordination of benefits, limitations, and exclusions contained in the Plan;

due to the Account’s or its employees’ or agents’ negligence or material breach of
their obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent that any such losses
are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Wellmark;

arising from any other acts or omissions of Account that constitute a material
breach of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure
on the part of Account to perform its obligations under this Agreement in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; or

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 18 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

80




7.4

7.5

7.6

j- due to or arising out of Wellmark’s adherence with any direction from Account or

decision made by Account with regard to the Plan design, benefits, or eligibility
provisions in the Benefits Document, or the Administrative Services provided under
this Agreement.

Selection of Counsel. In the event litigation is instituted by a Member or third party
against the Account and/or Wellmark concerning any matter under the Plan, including a
suit for Plan benefits, each party to this Agreement shall, to the extent possible, advise
the other of the legal action, and shall have sole authority to select legal counsel of its
choice.

Wellmark’s Liability. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, Wellmark shall
use reasonable diligence and that degree of skill and judgment possessed by one
experienced in furnishing claim administration services to group health plans of similar
size and characteristics as the Plan. Wellmark agrees to release, hold harmless, and
indemnify Account and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts,
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges,
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys'
fees and court costs, for which Account may become liable:

a. arising from any acts or omission of Wellmark which constitute a material breach
of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure on the
part of Wellmark to perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement; and

b. arising from any allegation of a breach of confidentiality arising out of the release
of Confidential Information to Wellmark or a third party at Wellmark’s direction or
arising out of any improper use of Confidential Information by Wellmark or such
third party.

Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY
DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING ANY OF THE SERVICES WELLMARK
PROVIDES OR ARRANGES TO PROVIDE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IN NO EVENT
SHALL ANY PARTY BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL,
PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA OR LOST PROFITS, EVEN IF
THAT PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE
FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY REPRESENTS THE ALLOCATION OF RISK
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING HEREUNDER AND IS AN
ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES ARE EDUCATIONAL AND
INFORMATIONAL TOOLS ONLY AND DO NOT CONSTITUTE CLINICAL SERVICES.
HEALTH INFORMATION PROVIDED BY WELLMARK OR VENDORS OR THEIR
AFFILIATES IS BASED ON MEDICAL LITERATURE. HOWEVER, USE OF SUCH
INFORMATION IS NOT INTENDED TO REPLACE PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL ADVICE
AND CARE FROM A HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONAL. THE HEALTH INFORMATION
IS INTENDED TO HELP PEOPLE MAKE BETTER HEALTH CARE DECISIONS AND

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 19 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

81




7.7

7.8

7.9

8.1

8.2

8.3

TAKE GREATER RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR OWN HEALTH, BUT MAY NOT
RESULT IN ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT OF THESE GOALS. ACCOUNT EXPRESSLY
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT WELLMARK IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
RESULTS OF ITS MEMBERS' USE OF SUCH INFORMATION INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, MEMBERS CHOOSING TO SEEK OR NOT TO SEEK PROFESSIONAL
MEDICAL CARE, OR MEMBERS CHOOSING OR NOT CHOOSING SPECIFIC
TREATMENT. WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES,
THEIR ABILITY TO REDUCE COSTS, OR IMPROVE OUTCOMES.

Grandfathered Health Plan Disclaimer. Account has the sole obligation to determine the
status of its Plan as either a Grandfathered Health Plan or a Non-Grandfathered Health
Plan and has advised that its Plan is Non-Grandfathered.

No Testing for Health Plans. Wellmark will not determine whether coverage is
discriminatory or otherwise in violation of nondiscrimination requirements of the ACA,
Internal Revenue Code Section 105(h), or other applicable state or federal law. Wellmark
also will not provide any testing for compliance with the ACA, Internal Revenue Code
Section 105(h) nondiscrimination requirements, or other applicable state or federal law
and will not be held liable for any penalties or other losses resulting from Account offering
coverage in violation of any such provision.

Survival. The indemnities set forth in this Article, including any liability of either party to
the other for indemnification, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8
TERM AND TERMINATION

Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and
shall continue in force for the Rating Period (the “Term”). Certain guarantees and
programs as more fully described in the Exhibits to this Agreement may be modified or
terminated on an earlier date as specified in the applicable Exhibit without termination of
the entire Agreement.

Renewal Terms. Upon expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall continue in force from
year to year upon Wellmark’s receipt of written documentation of Account’s renewal in
advance of the termination date, until replaced by a subsequently executed Agreement,
or as amended or terminated as provided in this Agreement. Wellmark shall have the right
to change any of the Administrative Fees or other fees for any Rating Period or any
renewal term upon not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice. Any such changes
shall be reflected on a revised or new Exhibit “A” issued by Wellmark, to be attached to
this Agreement and incorporated by this reference.

Termination Notice. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving
written notice of termination delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days in advance
of the effective date of termination. If Wellmark has not received Account’s documented
intent to renew at least ten (10) business days prior to the end of the Term, the Agreement
may not be renewed.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 20 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

82




8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Agreement at any time, upon
ten (10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments,
including late fees, when due in accordance with this Agreement or Wellmark determines
that Account has inadequate funds to make payments required by this Agreement and, in
either case, Account fails to cure such non-payments or cure the inadequacy of funds
within the ten (10) day notice period. Account is solely responsible for notifying its Plan
Members of the termination of this Agreement for nonpayment or for any other reason.
Wellmark, in its sole discretion, may permit Account to reinstate this Agreement upon
payment of a reinstatement fee and all other outstanding amounts due.

Effects of Termination for Nonpayment. If Wellmark terminates this Agreement for
nonpayment, Wellmark shall not pay on behalf of Account any Incurred Claims beyond
the effective date of the termination and Wellmark reserves all rights to recoup any Paid
Claims for which Account has not paid Wellmark, regardless of when services were
received.

Claims Administration Following Termination. If, following termination of this
Agreement for reasons other than Account’s nonpayment, and either Claims Paid are
adjusted to revise a payment amount, or Incurred Claims with Incurred Dates prior to the
date of termination are submitted to Wellmark in the period specified in the Benefits
Document for timely filing of claims, Wellmark shall pay these claims on behalf of Account
in accordance with this Agreement and submit bills to Account for the payment of Claims
Paid for a period of twelve (12) months following termination. Any credits due to Account
for recoveries, e.g., recoveries from third-party liability, rebates attributable to Member
claims, or Claims Paid adjustments, shall be applied during this same twelve (12) month
period. The bills shall include a Network Access Fee amount when Account makes
retroactive changes to add a Plan Member to coverage during the Rating Period. Account
shall pay all bills in accordance with the time and procedures set forth in Section 4.1 and
in Exhibit “A”. Wellmark shall not, on behalf of Account, pay Incurred Claims with dates of
service following the date of termination. Unless Account and Wellmark otherwise agree
in writing, Wellmark shall not continue any other services for Account after the effective
date of termination.

Availability of Records. Upon written request by the Account, Wellmark will make
available to any successor benefit services administrator, designated by the Account,
standard reports and materials in its possession at the time of termination that are
reasonably necessary to continue the administration of the Plan. Wellmark shall provide
such materials in its standard format and Account shall pay a reasonable fee for such
services.

Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this
Agreement, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the
termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURES AND INTER-PLAN ARRANGEMENTS

9.1

Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account on behalf of itself and its
Members, hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding this Agreement constitutes
a contract solely between Account and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation
operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 21 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

83




9.2

9.3

independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (the "Association"), permitting Wellmark
to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service Marks in the state of lowa, and that
Wellmark is not contracting as the agent of the Association. Account on behalf of itself and
its Members, further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Agreement
based upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity,
or organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Agreement. This section shall not
create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those
obligations created under other provisions of this Agreement.

Account Locations or Members Outside of lowa. Account understands and agrees that
Wellmark defines a National Account as a company headquartered and located in lowa
that also has employees in other states whose claims are processed through Inter-Plan
Arrangements. If Account is headquartered in lowa, any employees or persons associated
with Account are eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, including those employed
or working at Account locations outside lowa. If Account is not headquartered in lowa,
only those employees or individuals associated with the lowa business locations are
eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, and coverage will be void for any persons
associated with Account locations outside of lowa. Eligibility of persons located outside of
lowa, or associated with Account locations outside of lowa, is subject to applicable law
and Association guidelines.

Out-of-Area Services. Wellmark has a variety of relationships with other Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield Licensees referred to generally as “Inter-Plan Arrangements.” These
Inter-Plan Arrangements operate under rules and procedures issued by the Association.
Whenever Members access health care services outside the geographic area Wellmark
serves, the claim for those services may be processed through one of these Inter-Plan
Arrangements. The Inter-Plan Arrangements are described generally below.

Typically, when accessing care outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, Members
obtain care from health care providers that have a contractual agreement (“participating
providers”) with the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee in that other geographic
area (“Host Blue”). In some instances, Members may obtain care from health care
providers in the Host Blue geographic area that do not have a contractual agreement
(“nonparticipating providers”) with the Host Blue. Wellmark remains responsible for
fulfilling its contractual obligations to Account and Wellmark’s payment practices in both
instances are described below.

This disclosure describes how claims are administered for Inter-Plan Arrangements and
the fees that are charged in connection with Inter-Plan Arrangements.

a. BlueCard® Program. The BlueCard® Program is an Inter-Plan Arrangement.
Under this Arrangement, when Members access Covered Services within the
geographic area served by a Host Blue, the Host Blue will be responsible for
contracting and handling all interactions with its participating providers. The
financial terms of the BlueCard® Program are described generally below.

i. Member Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. Unless subject to a
fixed dollar copayment, the calculation of the Member liability on claims for
Covered Services processed through the BlueCard® Program will be based
on the lower of the participating provider’s billed charges for Covered

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 22 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

84




Services or the negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host
Blue.

Account Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. The calculation of
Account’s liability on claims for Covered Services processed through the
BlueCard® Program will be based on the negotiated price made available
to Wellmark by the Host Blue under the contract between the Host Blue
and the provider. Sometimes, this negotiated price may be greater for a
given service or services than the billed charge in accordance with how the
Host Blue has negotiated with its participating provider(s) for specific health
care services. In cases where negotiated price exceeds the billed charge,
Account may be liable for the excess amount even when the Member’s
deductible has not been satisfied. This excess amount reflects an amount
that may be necessary to secure (a) the provider’s participation in the
network and/or (b) the overall discount negotiated by the Host Blue. In such
a case, the entire contracted price is paid to the provider, even when the
contracted price is greater than the billed charge.

Claims Pricing. Host Blues determine a negotiated price, which is
reflected in the terms of each Host Blue’s provider contracts. The
negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host Blue may be
represented by one of the following:

a) An actual price. An actual price is a negotiated rate of payment in
effect at the time a claim is processed without any other increases
or decreases; or

b) An estimated price. An estimated price is a negotiated rate of
payment in effect at the time a claim is processed, reduced or
increased by a percentage to take into account certain payments
negotiated with the provider and other claim- and non-claim-related
transactions. Such transactions may include, but are not limited to,
anti-fraud and abuse recoveries, provider refunds not applied on a
claim-specific basis, retrospective settlements, and performance-
related bonuses or incentives; or

c) An average price. An average price is a percentage of billed
charges for Covered Services in effect at the time a claim is
processed representing the aggregate payments negotiated by the
Host Blue with all of its health care providers or a similar
classification of its providers and other claim- and non-claim-related
transactions. Such transactions may include the same ones as
noted above for an estimated price.

The Host Blue determines whether it will use an actual, estimated, or
average price. The use of estimated or average pricing may result in a
difference (positive or negative), between the price Account pays on a
specific claim and the actual amount the Host Blue pays to the provider.
However, the BlueCard® Program requires that the amount paid by the
Member and Account is a final price; no future price adjustment will result
in increases or decreases to the pricing of past claims.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 23 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

85




In some instances federal or state laws or regulations may impose a
surcharge, tax or other fee. If applicable, Wellmark will disclose any such
surcharge, tax or other fee to Account, which will be Account’s liability.

Any positive or negative differences in estimated or average pricing are
accounted for through variance accounts maintained by the Host Blue and
incorporated into future claim prices. As a result, the amounts charged to
Account will be adjusted in a following year, as necessary, to account for
over- or underestimation of the past years’ prices. The Host Blue will not
receive compensation from how the estimated price or average price
methods, described above, are calculated. Because all amounts paid are
final, neither positive variance account amounts (funds available to be paid
in the following year), nor negative variance amounts (the funds needed to
be received in the following year), are due to or from Account. If Account
terminates, Account will not receive a refund or charge from the variance
account.

Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid
claims amounts and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their
liquidation depends on variables, including, but not limited to, overall
volume/number of claims processed and variance account balance.
Variance account balances may earn interest. Host Blues may retain
interest earned, if any, on funds held in variance accounts.

iv. BlueCard® Program Fees and Compensation. Account understands and
agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which
Wellmark is obligated under the BlueCard® Program to pay to the Host
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of BlueCard® Program-related
services. The specific BlueCard® Program fees and compensation that are
charged to Account, if any, are set forth in Exhibit “A”. BlueCard® Program
Fees and compensation may be revised from time to time as described in
subsection f below. All BlueCard® Program-related fees, including any
Access Fees paid to Host Blues, and Administrative Expense Allowance
(“AEA”) Fees, are included in Wellmark's general Administrative Fee as set
forth in Exhibit “A”. Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any
Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account.

b. Special Cases: Value-Based Programs. Account's Members may access
Covered Services from providers that participate in Wellmark’s or a Host Blue’s
Value-Based Program. Value-Based Programs may be delivered through the
BlueCard® Program. These Value-Based Programs may include, but are not
limited to, Accountable Care Organizations, Global Payment/Total Cost of Care
arrangements, Patient Centered Medical Homes, and Shared Savings
arrangements.

i. Value-Based Programs under Wellmark and/or the BlueCard®
Program; Program Administration. Under Value-Based Programs,
Wellmark or a Host Blue may pay providers for reaching agreed-upon
cost/quality goals in the following ways: retrospective settlements, Provider
Incentives, share of target savings, Care Coordinator Fees and/or other

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 24 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

86




Item 11.

allowed amounts. The Host Blue may pass these provider payments to
Wellmark, which Wellmark will pass directly on to Account as either an
amount included in the price of the claim or an amount charged separately
in addition to the claim.

When such amounts are included in the price of the claim, the claim may
be billed using one of the following pricing methods, as determined by the
Host Blue:

a) Actual Pricing: The charge to accounts for Value-Based Programs
incentives/Shared Savings settlements is part of the claim. These
charges are passed to Account via an enhanced provider fee
schedule.

b) Supplemental Factor: The charge to accounts for non-attributed
Value-Based Programs incentives/Shared Savings settlements is a
supplemental amount that is included in the claim as an amount
based on a specified supplemental factor (e.g., a small percentage
increase in the claim amount). The supplemental factor may be
adjusted from time to time.

When such amounts are billed separately from the price of the claim, they
may be billed as follows:

c) Per Member Per Month (“PMPM”) billings for Value-Based
Programs incentives/Shared Savings settlements to accounts are
outside of the claim system. Wellmark will pass these Host Blue
charges (and any Wellmark Value-Based Program charges) directly
through to Account as a separately identified amount on Account’s
bill.

The amounts used to calculate either the supplemental factors for
estimated pricing or PMPM billings are fixed amounts that are estimated to
be necessary to finance the cost of a particular Value-Based Program.
Because amounts are estimates, there may be positive or negative
differences based on actual experience and such differences will be
accounted for in a variance account maintained by the Host Blue (in the
same manner as described in the BlueCard® claim pricing section above)
until the end of the applicable Value-Based Program payment and/or
reconciliation measurement period. The amounts needed to fund a Value-
Based Program may be changed before the end of the measurement
period if it is determined that amounts being collected are projected to
exceed the amount necessary to fund the programs or if they are projected
to be insufficient to fund the program.

At the end of the Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation
measurement period for these arrangements, Wellmark and/or Host Blues
will take one of the following actions:

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 25 Version: 10/20 87




a) Use any surplus in funds in the variance account to fund Value-
Based Program payments or reconciliation amounts in the next
measurement period.

b) Address any deficit in funds in the variance account through an
adjustment to the PMPM billing amount or the reconciliation billing
amount for the next measurement period.

Wellmark and the Host Blue will not receive compensation resulting from
how estimated, average, or PMPM price methods, described above, are
calculated. If Account terminates, Account will not receive a refund or
charge from the variance account. This is because any resulting surpluses
or deficits would be eventually exhausted through prospective adjustment
to the settlement billings in the case of Value-Based Programs. The
measurement period for determining these surpluses or deficits may differ
from the term of this Agreement.

Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid
claims amounts and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their
liquidation depends on variables, including, but not limited to, overall
volume/number of claims processed and variance account balance.
Variance account balances may earn interest. Host Blues may retain
interest earned, if any, on funds held in variance accounts.

Note: Members will not bear any portion of the cost of Value-Based
Programs except when a Host Blue uses either average pricing or actual
pricing to pay providers under Value-Based Programs.

i. Care Coordinator Fees. Host Blues may also bill Wellmark for Care
Coordinator Fees for provider services which Wellmark will pass on to
Account as follows:

a) PMPM billings; or

b) Individual claim billings through applicable care coordination codes
from the most current edition of either Current Procedural
Terminology (“CPT”) published by the American Medical
Association (“AMA”) or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding
System (“HCPCS”) published by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (“CMS”).

As part of this Agreement, Wellmark and Account will not impose Member
cost sharing for Care Coordinator Fees.

C. Return of Overpayments. Recoveries of overpayments from a Host Blue or its
participating providers can arise in several ways including, but not limited to, anti-
fraud and abuse recoveries, health care provider/hospital bill audits, credit balance
audits, utilization review refunds, and unsolicited refunds. Recoveries will be
applied in general, on either a claim-by-claim or prospective basis. If recovery
amounts are passed on a claim-by-claim basis from a Host Blue to Wellmark they
will be credited to Account. In some cases, the Host Blue will engage a third party

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 26 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

88




to assist in identification or collection of overpayments. The fees of such a third
party may be charged to Account as a percentage of the recovery of its claims.

d. Nonparticipating Providers Outside Wellmark’s Service Area.
i. Member Liability Calculation.

a) In General. When Covered Services are provided outside of
Wellmark’s service area by nonparticipating providers, the
amount(s) a Member pays for such services will be based on either
the Host Blue’s nonparticipating provider local payment or the
pricing arrangements required by applicable state law. In these
situations, the Member may be responsible for the difference
between the amount that the nonparticipating provider bills and the
payment Wellmark will make for the Covered Services as set forth
in this paragraph. Payments for out-of-network emergency services
will be governed by applicable federal and state law.

b) Exceptions. In some exception cases, Wellmark may pay claims
from nonparticipating providers for Covered Services outside of
Wellmark's service area based on the provider’s billed charge. This
may occur in situations where a Member did not have reasonable
access to a participating provider, as determined by Wellmark or by
applicable law. In other exception cases, Wellmark may pay such
claims based on the payment Wellmark would make if Wellmark
were paying a nonparticipating provider for the same Covered
Services inside of Wellmark’s service area. This may occur where
the Host Blue’s corresponding payment would be more than
Wellmark’s in-service area nonparticipating provider payment.
Wellmark may choose to negotiate a payment with such a provider
on an exception basis.

Unless otherwise stated, in any of these exception situations, the
Member may be responsible for the difference between the amount
that the nonparticipating provider bills and the payment Wellmark
will make for the Covered Services as set forth in this paragraph.

i. Fees and Compensation. Account understands and agrees to reimburse
Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which Wellmark is obligated
under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangement requirements to pay to the Host
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-
related services. The specific fees charged to Account, if any, are set forth
in Exhibit “A”.

e. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core.

i. General Information. If Members are outside the United States, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands (hereinafter:
“BlueCard® service area”), they may be able to take advantage of the Blue

Cross Blue Shield Global® Core when accessing Covered Services. The
Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core is not served by a Host Blue.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 27 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

89




10.1

10.2

Inpatient Services. In most cases, if Members contact the Blue Cross Blue
Shield Global® Core Service Center for assistance, hospitals will not require
Members to pay for covered inpatient services, except for their cost-share
amounts. In such cases, the hospital will submit Member claims to the Blue
Cross Blue Shield Global® Core Service Center to initiate claims
processing. However, if the Member paid in full at the time of service, the
Member must submit a claim to obtain reimbursement for Covered
Services. Members must contact Wellmark to obtain precertification
for non-emergency inpatient services.

i. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core Related Fees. Account
understands and agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and
compensation which Wellmark is obligated under applicable Inter-Plan
Arrangement requirements to pay to the Host Blues, to the Association,
and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-related services. The specific
fees charged to Account under Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core, if any,
are set forth in Exhibit “A”.

f. Modifications or Changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement Fees or Compensation.
Modifications or changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement fees are generally made
effective January 1 of the calendar year but they may occur at any time during the
year. In the case of any such modifications or changes, Wellmark shall provide
Account with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of any modification or
change to such Inter-Plan Arrangement fees or compensation describing the
change and the effective date thereof and Account’s right to terminate this
Agreement without penalty by giving written notice of termination before the
effective date of the change. If Account fails to respond to the notice and does not
terminate this Agreement during the notice period, Account will be deemed to have
approved the proposed changes, and Wellmark will then allow such modifications
to become part of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10
MISCELLANEOUS

Change of Agreement. If Account makes changes in the Plan or Benefits Document,
Account shall give Wellmark sufficient advance notice of such changes. If Account makes
any material changes in the Plan, or if material changes are required by law, including the
addition or deletion of benefits, a material change in group composition or membership or
eligibility requirements, such as a change in the number of eligible or enrolled individuals
of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of individuals enrolled, types of coverage
offered, business entities covered, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Agreement, including
an adjustment to the financial terms shown on Exhibit “A”, or to terminate this Agreement
in accordance with Section 8.3.

lowa Code Chapter 509A Compliance; No Actuarial Certification. Nothing contained
in this Agreement or on Exhibit “A” shall be construed or considered to be an actuarial
opinion or certification by Wellmark in connection with lowa Code Chapter 509A regarding
the adequacy of reserves, rates, or financial condition of Account or the Plan. Account is
solely responsible for compliance with all provisions of lowa Code Chapter 509A and

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 28 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

90




10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

implementing regulations and, if applicable, is responsible for reporting any paid losses
for the Account’s self-funded operation of the Plan, as required by lowa Code Section
513C.10, and for paying any assessment related to those paid losses.

Use of Trademarks and Names. Wellmark and Account reserve the right to control the
use of their respective corporate names and any other respective symbols, assumed
names, trademarks, and service marks, presently existing or subsequently established.
Wellmark and Account agree not to use the corporate name, symbol, assumed names,
trademarks, or service marks of the other in advertising, promotional materials, or
otherwise without the prior written consent of the other. Any previously approved usage
shall cease immediately upon the termination of this Agreement and any materials using
such names or marks are the property of the appropriate namesake and shall be returned
to the appropriate property owner upon request or at the termination of this Agreement.

Complete Agreement; Amendments. The parties agree that this Agreement, including,
without limitation, all Exhibits or amendments hereto, applicable Business Associate
Agreement, and COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum, if any,
constitute the complete and exclusive agreement and statement of the relationship
between the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes
all related discussions, understandings, proposals, exhibits, amendments, prior and
concurrent agreements, representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any
other communications between the parties in regard to the subject matter hereof. This
Agreement, including, without limitation, any Exhibits hereto, may be amended from time
to time by the parties. Any amendment to this Agreement, or change, modification, or
waiver of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be effective only when
made in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party and delivered in
accordance with Section 10.11. This Agreement shall take precedence over any other
documents that may be in conflict with it.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement supersedes a prior Agreement, health
services with an Incurred Date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be
processed pursuant to the terms of the applicable superseded Agreement.

Force Majeure. The parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any performance
under this Agreement, other than payment of amounts due, for any period and to the extent
they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from performing under this Agreement as a
result of an act of God, war, civil disturbance, legislative enactment, court order, labor
dispute, act of terrorism, or other cause beyond their reasonable control.

Effectiveness of Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed to be effective and in full
force as of the Effective Date upon the affixation of Wellmark’s authorized signature below
and the Account's payment to Wellmark of the premium, Network Access Fee,
Administrative Fee, or other fees as billed by Wellmark required by this Agreement.

Assignment. The Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective
successors and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Agreement to any third
party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other; provided, however,
Wellmark may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with Wellmark. Further, Wellmark may, in its
sole and unfettered discretion, contract with a third party to perform some Administrative
Services or other of Wellmark’s duties under this Agreement, including, without limitation,

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 29 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

91




10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

the subrogation recovery services for Claims Paid. To the extent Wellmark contracts with
a third party to perform any such services or duties, the term “Wellmark” as used in this
Agreement shall be deemed to include the contracted third party, as the context so
requires.

Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Agreement shall
not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision.
Similarly, the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the
Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver
of any provision of this Agreement, and any consent to any departure from the terms of
any provision of this Agreement, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the
specific purpose for which made or given.

Nature of Relationship; Authority of Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement and
no action taken or omitted to be taken by Account or Wellmark pursuant hereto shall be
deemed to constitute Account and Wellmark a partnership, an association, a joint venture
or other entity whatsoever. Wellmark shall at all times be acting as an independent
contractor under this Agreement. No party has the authority to bind the other in any respect
whatsoever.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark
and not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark
and any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or
equitable, under the terms of this Agreement or of the Plan.

Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any
communication or notice from the other in connection with this Agreement to be genuine,
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity.

Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage
prepaid), delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid),
or sent by electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished in writing. Until
another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the address
shown on Exhibit "A" attached to this Agreement.

Notice to Wellmark may be addressed:

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota
Attention: Procurement and Contracts

1331 Grand Avenue

Des Moines, lowa 50309-2901

State of Issue; Applicable Law. This Agreement is issued and delivered in the state of
lowa and is performed in Des Moines, lowa. To the extent not superseded by the laws of
the United States and without regard to any conflict of law rule, this Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the state of lowa.

ARTICLE 11
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 30 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

92




11.1

Dispute Resolution; Mandatory Arbitration.

a.

In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement,
or the breach hereof (each a “Dispute”), prior to proceeding with arbitration under
the further provisions of this Section, a party shall give notice (a “Dispute Notice”)
to the other party setting out, in writing and in detail, the nature and specifics of the
Dispute and a good faith estimated value of the Dispute. A meeting (which may be
via teleconference or other electronic communications) between representatives
of the parties must take place within 30 days after the date of delivery of the
Dispute Notice in an attempt to resolve the Dispute through direct negotiations.
The provisions of this paragraph and the remaining provisions of this Section are
the sole and exclusive method of resolving any Disputes, and arbitration under this
Section shall be mandatory except in the limited circumstances provided under
paragraphs (j), (k) and (o) below and Section 11.2.

If the Dispute has not been resolved by direct negotiations within 30 days after the
date of delivery of the Dispute Notice, or such further time as the parties may
mutually agree in writing, then either party may commence, and the Dispute shall
be finally resolved by, binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration
Association (“AAA”) in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules in effect
at the time of the commencement of the arbitration (the “Rules”). The parties agree
that the arbitrator(s), and not a court, will decide in the first instance all questions
of substantive arbitrability, including without limitation the validity of this Section.
The parties do not consent to the incorporation of the AAA Supplementary
Rules for Class Arbitration into the rules governing the arbitration of any
Dispute (any such arbitration is referred to in this Section as the
“Arbitration”), and hereby voluntarily and irrevocably waive any right to
arbitrate any Disputes through representative or class arbitration. All
Disputes will proceed in arbitration solely on an individual basis, and the
authority of the arbitrator(s) to resolve any Dispute and to make written
awards will be limited to the individual Disputes under this Agreement.

A party shall have the right to withdraw without prejudice a Dispute that it submitted
to Arbitration prior to the appointment of the arbitrator(s) for the Arbitration. In such
event, all of the provisions of this Section shall again apply with respect to such
Dispute.

This Agreement concerns matters in interstate commerce. The Arbitration shall be
governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, to the exclusion of any state laws
inconsistent therewith, and the Rules. In the event of a conflict, the Rules shall
govern.

No demand for arbitration of a Dispute may be made more than two (2) years after
the Dispute arose.

The Arbitration shall be conducted in English and shall take place in Des Moines,
lowa, unless the parties mutually agree in writing to an alternate location.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 31 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

93




If the monetary value of the Dispute as described in the Demand for Arbitration, or
as the parties may otherwise mutually agree in writing, is equal to or less than
$1,000,000, then the number of arbitrators shall be one (1). The arbitrator shall be
selected from the AAA’s National Roster of Arbitrators in accordance with Rule R-
12 of the Rules.

If the monetary value of the Dispute as described in the Demand for Arbitration, or
as the parties may otherwise mutually agree in writing, is greater than $1,000,000,
then either party may elect to have the tribunal consist of three arbitrators by
notifying the AAA in writing of its election within seven (7) days after receiving the
list of arbitrators from the AAA under Rule R-12(a). Each party shall have twenty
(20) days after delivery of the foregoing notice of election to submit to the AAA the
name of its co-arbitrator. If either party fails to timely nominate an arbitrator, the
AAA shall make the appointment. The co-arbitrators shall have thirty (30) days, or
such further period of time as the parties may mutually agree in writing, to nominate
a chairperson of the tribunal. If the co-arbitrators fail to timely nominate a
chairperson, the AAA shall appoint the chairperson from the National Roster of
Arbitrators.

Pursuant to Rule R-1 of the Rules, the parties agree that the Expedited Procedures
under the Rules shall apply if the monetary value of the Dispute as described in
the Demand for Arbitration is equal to or less than $250,000.

The parties shall not be precluded from seeking remedies in small claims court for
Disputes within the scope of that court’s jurisdiction.

Prior to the appointment of the arbitrator(s), a party may elect either to make
recourse to emergency relief under the Rules, or to seek from any court of
competent jurisdiction, emergency, temporary, or preliminary injunctive relief, or
an order in aid of arbitration; provided, however, that once a party has filed or
served papers to seek recourse for emergency, temporary, or preliminary
injunctive relief in either the arbitral or judicial forum, no party can seek or oppose
any such relief from or in the other forum. The foregoing types of relief may only
be sought within the Arbitration after the appointment of the arbitrator(s).

A party may make a motion for summary adjudication of one or more particular
claims or issues to be decided by the arbitrator(s).

The arbitrator(s) must render a reasoned award, in writing, and judgment on the
award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction
thereof.

The parties waive any claim for, and the arbitrator(s) shall not have any
power to award, any punitive or exemplary damages, and each party hereby
waives any right to seek or recover such damages with respect to any
Dispute. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses of legal representation,
including attorneys’ fees, witness expenses, and costs associated with preparation
and presentation of its case. All arbitration and administration fees and expenses,
and all arbitrator costs and expenses shall be paid equally, regardless of which
party prevails. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any party who fails or refuses to

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 32 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

94




p.

submit to arbitration following a demand by any other party shall bear all costs and
expenses incurred by such other party in compelling arbitration of any Dispute.

The existence and content of the Arbitration proceedings, documents produced
during the Arbitration, submissions to the tribunal, including testimony and exhibits,
and any rulings or award shall be kept confidential by the parties and members of
the arbitral tribunal except (i) to the extent that disclosure may be required of a
party to fulfill a legal duty, protect or pursue a legal right, or enforce or challenge
an award in legal proceedings before a court or other judicial authority, (ii) with the
written consent of all of the parties, (iii) where such information is already in the
public domain other than as a result of a breach of this paragraph, (iv) as is
necessary in communications with auditors or accountants retained by any party,
or federal or state regulators, or (v) by order of the arbitral tribunal upon application
of a party. The breach or threatened breach of this paragraph will cause immediate
and irreparable harm to the non-breaching party and an adequate remedy at law
for such harm may not exist. Accordingly, in the event of such breach or threatened
breach, the non-breaching party shall have the right to seek specific performance
by, or obtain injunctive or other equitable relief against, the breaching party as a
remedy for any such breach or threatened breach. If the breach or threatened
breach of this paragraph occurs prior to the conclusion of the Arbitration, the
foregoing relief may only be sought within the Arbitration. If the breach or
threatened breach of this paragraph occurs after the conclusion of the Arbitration,
the foregoing relief may only be sought within any court of competent jurisdiction.

The provisions of this Section 11.1 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

11.2 Jurisdiction and Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial and Punitive and Exemplary Damages.

a.

If an arbitrator determines a particular Dispute is excluded from mandatory
arbitration for any reason (including, but not limited to, by applicable federal or
state law), the parties agree that the terms in this Section 11.2 will apply to any
legal or equitable action brought in court because of such Dispute. Each of the
parties submits to the jurisdiction and venue of the state or federal courts sitting in
Des Moines, Polk County, lowa, for any action or proceeding arising out of or
relating to this Agreement, and each of the parties waives any defense of
inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any action or proceeding in the state or
federal courts sitting in Des Moines, Polk County, lowa. ACCOUNT AND
WELLMARK HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY
IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR ANY INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH. THE PARTIES ALSO WAIVE ANY CLAIM FOR
AND ANY RIGHT TO SEEK OR RECOVER ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY
DAMAGES WITH RESPECT TO ANY DISPUTE.

Notwithstanding Sections 5.6, 7.9, and 8.8, no legal or equitable action or claim
may be brought against the parties for an action or claim arising under or relating
to this Agreement more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose.

The provisions of this Section 11.2 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

IAWBCBSSD LG SF 33 Version: 10/20

Item 11.

95




Item 11.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first

stated above.

City of Cedar Falls

By:

Print Name:

Title:

IAWBCBSSD LG SF

Wellmark of South Dakota, Inc., doing business as
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South
Dakota

By:

David S. Brown

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

34 Version: 10/20

96




Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota
Administrative Services Agreement
Exhibit A
Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Name and Address:
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726

Item 11.

Benefit Plan(s) Administered By:
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Rating Period:
The Rating Period begins on 7/01/2021 and ends on 6/30/2022.

Plan Year:
The Plan Year begins on 07/01 and ends on 06/30.

Administrative Fee:

Health: $42.14 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on
last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing
and Payment Method below).

Pharmacy Vendor Admin Fee:

$2.00 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on
last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under
Billing and Payment Method below).

Network Access Fee: $8.01 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on
last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing
and Payment Method below).

External Review:

External review fees for Independent Review Organizations (IROs), if applicable, will be on a per case
or per external review basis and all such fees attributable to Members under the Plan shall be billed to
Account in the amount billed to Wellmark by the IRO.

Third Party Liability Vendor Fees:

The third party liability recovery vendor(s) retain a service fee calculated as a percentage of the recovered
amount after deductions for attorneys’ fees and costs.The recovery vendor’s service fee is 19.5% of the
recovered amount. This fee is subject to change. The final amount recovered as a result of the actions of
the vendor (less the vendor's service fee) is credited to Account. Wellmark’s agreement with the recovery
vendor may from time to time allow for the application of no vendor service fees to amounts recovered
during that period of time. Any recovery amount obtained by the vendor on behalf of the Account during
such time period will be provided to Account without application of the vendor service fee.

Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary — Confidential Treatment Requested - lowa Code § 22.7

97




Item 11.

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Administrative Services Agreement
Exhibit A
Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Name and Address:

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726

BlueCard Program-related Fees:

All BlueCard Program-related fees, including any Access Fees paid to Host Blues and Administrative
Expense Allowance (“AEA”) Fee, are included in Wellmark’s general Administrative Fee stated above.
Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account. The
general Administrative Fee encompasses fees Wellmark charges to Account for administering Account’s
benefit plan. Fees may include both local and Inter-Plan fees. Other BlueCard Program-related fees
included in the general Administrative Fee include the Central Financial Agency Fee, ITS Transaction

Fee, Toll-Free Number Fee, PPO Provider Directory Fee, and the Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Coverage
Fees, if applicable.

Billing and Payment Method:

Wellmark shall notify Account weekly of the total Claims Paid amount for the week. Account shall
make payment to Wellmark within forty-eight hours of receipt of the notification. Wellmark shall bill
Account monthly for Claims Paid (if any), Administrative Fee, other fees, and reflect the
payments/credits received.

Limitations: Any adjustments to Administrative Fee, Network Access Fee, and other fees due to
membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the
membership or eligibility change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to
the date Wellmark processes the Member eligibility change.

Exhibit A Issue Date: 6/1/2021

98

Page 2 of 2 3

Confidential & Proprietary — Confidential Treatment Requested - lowa Code § 22.7



Item 12.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Mayor Green and City Council Members
FROM:  Paul Kockler, Accountant
DATE: June 14, 2021

SUBJECT: FY22 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Health Plan
Stop Loss Policy

Attached for your approval is Stop Loss Policy and rate exhibit for FY22 with Wellmark
Blue Cross and Blue Shield related to the City’s health plan. The rate exhibit shows a
$37.29 increase in the per plan member per month individual stop loss premium for
FY22 which is projected to increase the fixed costs of the City’s health insurance plan
by approximately $99,341 during FY22 based on current enrollment. This premium
increase is due to a high number of large health claims incurred by plan members.
There is no proposed increase from the prior year to the City’s aggregate stop loss
premium per plan member per month. City staff recommends approval. If you have
guestions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or Jennifer
Rodenbeck at 268-5108.

Attachment

99




P2
/AN

Wellmark. ke

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield is an Independent
Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association.

STOP LOSS POLICY

WELLMARK, INC.

issued to

City of Cedar Falls

Stop Loss Policy Effective Date: July 1, 2021
Stop Loss Period: July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Form Number: IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP Version: 08/20 100




STOP LOSS POLICY

THIS STOP LOSS POLICY (herein “Policy”) is issued by Wellmark, Inc., doing business

as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of lowa, an lowa mutual insurance company (herein
“Wellmark”), effective as of the first day of July, 2021 (“Effective Date”), to City of Cedar Falls,
an lowa public entity, with its principal location in lowa (herein “Account”).

RECITALS

Account is the plan sponsor of a self-funded group health plan (herein called “the Plan”)
within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common
law employees and other eligible individuals. The Plan is designed, maintained and funded
by Account and Account is solely responsible for making Member eligibility determinations
and for Claims.

Account desires that Wellmark reimburse it for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement that
satisfy the amounts and terms specified in this Policy. Account acknowledges this Policy
provides it with reimbursement only for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement meeting the
terms and conditions specified in this Policy and Wellmark provides no insurance
coverage for the Plan or for any Member. Wellmark assumes no financial risk or
obligations with respect to Claims except as expressly specified in this Policy.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

ARTICLE 1
POLICY DEFINITIONS

‘Aggregate Deductible” means the percentage of expected Claims Eligible for
Reimbursement for all Members during the Stop Loss Period that is Account’s liability
before any reimbursement is made under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy.
The Aggregate Deductible amount is shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and
Financial Terms, which is attached to this Policy and incorporated by this reference.

“Attachment Point” means the amount of expected Claims Eligible for Reimbursement
per Plan Member for each benefit classification. The Attachment Point is used to
determine Account’s Aggregate Deductible and Minimum Aggregate Deductible and is
shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms, which is attached to
this Policy and incorporated by this reference.

“‘Benefit Services Administrator’ means the company or companies specified on
Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms, which provides health benefit
plan administration services to Account pursuant to a separately executed administrative
services agreement in effect during the Stop Loss Period.

“‘Benefits Document” means the written document(s) Account makes available to
Members that describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may
be titled Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar.

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 1 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

101




1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

“Claims” means the dollar amount of the Benefit Services Administrator's payment on
behalf of the Account for covered health care services provided to Members under the
terms of the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator. Claims do not
include any: (a) amounts paid for health care services as a Plan exception made at the
direction of Account; (b) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits
Services Administrator to be investigational or experimental as defined under the terms of
the Plan; (c) amounts paid at the direction of the Plan for health care services that Benefits
Services Administrator deems to be investigational or experimental, but for which Account
has waived the general limitation or exclusion for investigational or experimental
procedures, (d) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits Services
Administrator to be not medically necessary as defined under the terms of the Plan; (e)
amounts paid for health care services for an individual not eligible for coverage under the
terms of the Plan; or (f) amounts paid that are not for covered health care services under
the terms of the Plan.

“Claims Eligible for Reimbursement” means Claims that have both an Incurred Date
within the Run-in Period or Stop Loss Period and a Paid Date within the Stop Loss Period
specified on Exhibit “A”.

“Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With
regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the
facility is considered as the Incurred Date.

‘Individual Deductible” means the fixed dollar amount of Claims Eligible for
Reimbursement per Member as specified on Exhibit “A”, which is the Account’s liability
before any reimbursement is made under the individual stop loss coverage of this Policy.

‘“Member’ means a person, including a Plan Member’'s spouse or eligible dependent
children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits in accordance with the
terms of the Plan, specifically including the Plan’s eligibility criteria, as determined and
identified by Account. The Member must be eligible and enrolled in the Plan on the
Incurred Date of the Claims.

“‘Minimum Aggregate Deductible’ means an amount that is the Account's minimum
liability under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy. The Minimum Aggregate
Deductible is the product of the number of Plan Members in effect for each Attachment
Point, multiplied by each Attachment Point shown on Exhibit "A", multiplied by 90%. The
results of the calculations shall be added together each month during the Stop Loss Period
resulting in the year-to-date (“YTD”) Minimum Aggregate Deductible. The Minimum
Aggregate Deductible is calculated at the beginning of the Stop Loss Period, based on the
enroliment under each Attachment Point and may be recalculated during the Stop Loss
Period due to a benefit change.

“Paid Date” means the date on which a Claim payment is made by the Benefit Services
Administrator. The Benefit Services Administrator may adjust Claims for a period of up to
eighteen (18) months after the Claim is first processed. If a Claim is subsequently
adjusted, the date of the final adjustment is considered the Paid Date, provided, however,
that if a Claim is adjusted in accordance with a decision of an Independent Review
Organization (IRO) making an external review determination under applicable law, the

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 2 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

102




2.1

2.2

date of the Benefit Services Administrator's internal adverse benefit determination is
considered the Paid Date for purposes of this Policy.

‘Plan” means the self-funded group health plan or plans established, sponsored and
maintained by Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits
Document.

“Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account
as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents as administered by the
Benefit Services Administrator.

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR §160.103.

“‘Run-In Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” prior to beginning of the
Stop Loss Period, during which Claims may have Incurred Dates.

“Stop Loss Claims” mean dollar amounts for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement that
exceed the applicable Individual Deductible under this Policy.

“Stop Loss Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent
revision to Exhibit “A” issued to Account and attached to this Policy and incorporated by
this reference.

“Stop Loss Premium” means the amount Wellmark charges Account for stop loss
coverage. The Stop Loss Premium may include broker fees or commissions and is shown
on Exhibit “A”.

ARTICLE 2
RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT

Payment of Stop Loss Premiums. Wellmark shall bill Account monthly and Account
agrees to pay Wellmark the amount of the Stop Loss Premiums and any applicable taxes
or fees billed for the preceding month. Such payment may be made by wire transfer,
electronic (ebilling) payment, or automatic funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic
funds withdrawal, it shall execute the necessary authorization, including an authorization
for automatic withdrawal of any changed amount as reflected on Account's bill. Any
adjustments due to membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for
the month in which the membership or eligibility change is made. Adjustments to Stop
Loss Premiums shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date the Benefit
Services Administrator processes the Member eligibility change. The bill will show the
amounts due and will also show any credits during the preceding month. Account shall
promptly pay Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due, no later than the due
date on the bill.

Late Payments. All payments due from Account to Wellmark must be paid on time and
when due in accordance with Section 2.1. If the Account fails to make payments in full
when due, Wellmark may discontinue the reimbursement of all Stop Loss Claims for the
Account, impose interest or late fees, or may setoff or recoup late payments from other
amounts that may be due to Account. Payments not made when due shall include an

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 3 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

103




2.3

24

2.5

2.6

interest charge on the outstanding amounts from the due date until payment is made in
full at the then current prime rate as published periodically in the Midwest edition of The
Wall Street Journal plus two percent (2%) per annum. Late fees are calculated on the
entire amount due regardless of any partial payments. The acceptance by Wellmark of
any late payments or partial payments shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this
Policy. If Account fails to make payments when due for two or more consecutive months,
Wellmark may impose additional late fees of up to eighteen percent (18%) per annum.

Providing Information; Account Representations. Account shall provide all information
and representations reasonably necessary and as may be requested by Wellmark during
the underwriting and issuance of this Policy and to establish loss for which reimbursement
is claimed under this Policy. Account shall provide such information in a time, form, format,
and manner required by Wellmark and is responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention,
and accuracy of information and records provided to Wellmark. Wellmark shall be entitled
to rely upon such information in underwriting and issuing this Policy and in discharging its
responsibilities under this Policy. Account’s failure to provide complete and timely
information may cause Stop Loss Claims to be denied.

Notice of Persons Eligible for Coverage. Account or its Benefit Services Administrator
shall notify Wellmark of individuals eligible and enrolled in the Plan and of changes in
eligibility in accordance with the manner, time, and procedures set forth in the separate
administrative services agreement entered into between Account and the Benefit Services
Administrator. Notwithstanding the effective date Account establishes for Member
eligibility, no eligibility change shall be effective under this stop loss coverage more than
three (3) months prior to the date the Benefit Services Administrator processes the
Member eligibility change.

Right of Reimbursement or Recovery. In the event Account receives or is eligible to
receive a payment or credit from a third-party or the Benefit Services Administrator for any
portion of Claims, including, but not limited to, pharmaceutical manufacturer rebates, if
applicable, and Wellmark has previously paid or reimbursed Account for all or any portion
of such Claims pursuant to this or a prior Stop Loss Policy, Account shall repay Wellmark
the full amount of the recovery received by Account up to the full extent of Wellmark’s stop
loss payment(s), regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the date of Account’s
recovery. Such recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy any deductible or
attachment point under this Policy.

Third Party Liability Recovery. Account acknowledges and agrees that Wellmark, as the
stop loss carrier, has priority of any third-party liability recovery in the event Stop Loss
Claims for a Member have been credited to Account. Account may delegate responsibility
for subrogation and third-party liability recovery services to Benefit Services
Administrator’'s subrogation and third-party liability recovery vendor (“Subrogation
Vendor”) on Account’s behalf, which shall pursue and prosecute any and all subrogation
interests or other valid claims that Account may have against a third-party or any current
or former Member who recovers or has a right of recovery from a third-party as a
consequence of any occurrence resulting in Claims. If Account or Subrogation Vendor
initiates any action for recovery, Account shall notify Wellmark of such action within ten
(10) days of filing such action. Account shall cooperate with Wellmark and, upon request
of Wellmark, Account shall execute and deliver to Wellmark an assignment and any other
instrument that may be necessary to secure Wellmark’s right of recovery. Account shall

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 4 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

104




3.1

3.2

Item 12.

not waive any rights to pursue recovery from a third-party without Wellmark's written
consent.

In the event Account recovers all or any portion of Claims from a third-party or from a
current or former Member, or any Claim is reversed in full or in part due to payment or
acceptance of responsibility by a third-party, and Wellmark has previously paid or
reimbursed Account for all or any portion of such Claims pursuant to this or a prior Stop
Loss Policy, Account shall repay Wellmark the full amount of the recovery received or
Claim reversed by Account up to the full extent of Wellmark’s stop loss payment(s),
regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the date of Account’s recovery. Such
recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy any deductible or attachment point
under this Policy. On a case by case basis, and only if Wellmark has agreed in writing and
in advance, Account may reduce the amount it repays to Wellmark by reasonable and
necessary expenses incurred directly by Account in obtaining recovery from the third

party.

ARTICLE 3
STOP LOSS COVERAGE

Individual Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall reimburse Account for the amount by
which the Claims Eligible for Reimbursement for a specific Member exceed the Individual
Deductible amount for the specific Member shown on Exhibit “A”, subject to any Policy
limitations set forth on Exhibit “A”. Reimbursement for Stop Loss Claims is generally
provided as a statement credit on Account's next statement from the Benefit Services
Administrator. All Stop Loss Claims reimbursements shall be subject to audit or review as
provided in sections 2.3 and 4.3 of this Policy that Wellmark determines in its sole
discretion may be required to verify a Member’s eligibility and enrollment in the Plan, verify
the proper payment of Claims, or verify Stop Loss Claims are reimbursed correctly.

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall determine the aggregate stop loss
coverage reimbursement as described in this Section.

a. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the monthly Claims Eligible for
Reimbursement shall be calculated by accumulating all Claims for that month, less
any reimbursement made under the individual stop loss coverage during the same
Stop Loss Period, less any Claims excluded from the aggregate stop loss
coverage. The monthly Claims Eligible for Reimbursement shall be added together
for all months during the Stop Loss Period, resulting in the YTD Claims Eligible for
Reimbursement;

b. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the number of Plan Members in effect for
each benefit classification shall be multiplied by the Attachment Point for each
benefit classification shown on Exhibit “A”. The results of the calculations shall then
be added together, resulting in the monthly Aggregate Deductible. Each monthly
Aggregate Deductible shall be added together for all months during the Stop Loss
Period, resulting in the YTD Aggregate Deductible; and

C. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement exceed the greater of the YTD
Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate Deductible, Wellmark shall
reimburse Account for the excess amount within sixty (60) days after the end of
the Stop Loss Period. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement is less than

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 5 Version: 08/20

105




41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

the greater of the YTD Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate
Deductible, no reimbursement by Wellmark will be made.

ARTICLE 4
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS

Protected Health Information. The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted
uses and disclosures with respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the
separately executed Business Associate Agreement.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. The rights and responsibilities of the
parties and permitted uses and disclosures with respect to information and data collected
or developed by Wellmark related to Claims, cost, utilization, outcomes, quality, and
financial performance of the Plan during the term of this Policy (“Confidential
Information”) shall be as set forth in the separately executed administrative services
agreement between Account and the Benefit Services Administrator.

Right to Examine Records; Record Retention. Wellmark or its authorized
representative may at its own expense examine the financial, enroliment, eligibility
standards, and Claims records of Account, its Benefit Services Administrator(s), or other
third parties providing services to Account, reasonably related to the administration of this
Policy, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems appropriate, to reconcile eligibility or
enroliment information and records or to determine appropriate payment of Stop Loss
Claims under this Policy. Such examination may be conducted either before or after
reimbursement of Stop Loss Claims and, if at Account's location, shall be conducted
during regular business hours, upon reasonable advance written notice. Account shall
provide any information reasonably requested by Wellmark. Account shall ensure that all
records relating to the matters described in this Section 4.3 will be maintained for at least
twenty-four (24) months following the end of the Stop Loss Period. The examination period
may cover the most recent Stop Loss Period and the preceding twenty-four (24) months
only, if applicable, and may cover Account's prior or third-party Benefit Services
Administrator.

Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Policy survive
any termination of this Policy.

ARTICLE 5
TERM AND TERMINATION

Term; Termination of Plan or Administrative Services Agreement. This Policy shall
become effective on the Effective Date and shall continue in force for the Stop Loss Period
as set forth on Exhibit “A”, unless earlier terminated as provided in this Policy. If the Plan
is terminated, or if Account’s administrative services agreement with the Benefit Services
Administrator is terminated, this Policy shall terminate as of the date the Plan is terminated
or as of the date the administrative services agreement is terminated, whichever is
applicable and whichever date is earlier.

Renewal Terms; Notice of Non-Renewal. This Policy may be renewed for successive
Stop Loss Periods only when a new or amended Policy with an updated Exhibit “A”
specifying a new Stop Loss Period is issued and executed by Wellmark. Wellmark shall
have the right to change the Stop Loss Premiums for any renewal term as reflected on an

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 6 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

106




5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

updated Exhibit “A”. If Wellmark decides not to renew the Policy, it shall provide Account
written notice of non-renewal at least forty-five (45) days prior to the end of the Stop Loss
Period.

Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Policy at any time, upon ten
(10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments, including
late fees, when due in accordance with this Policy. The notice shall include the reason for
the termination. Wellmark may recoup or setoff from any Stop Loss Claims any premiums
or other fees or amounts owed to Wellmark or to Benefit Services Administrator by
Account.

Effects of Termination. If Wellmark terminates this Policy for nonpayment by the
Account, Wellmark shall not reimburse Account for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement
beyond the effective date of the termination regardless of when services were received or
the Claims were paid. If this Policy terminates other than at the expiration of the Stop Loss
Period, the effective date of the termination shall become the end of the Stop Loss Period.

Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this
Policy, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the termination
of this Policy.

ARTICLE 6
MISCELLANEOUS

Complete Policy; Amendment. This Policy, including any exhibits or amendments,
constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement and statement of relationship between
the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Policy and supersedes all related
discussions, proposals, prior policies, agreements, understandings, prior and concurrent
agreements, representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any other
communications between the parties in regard to the subject matter of this Policy.
Changes or amendments to this Policy shall be effective only when the written amendment
has been signed by an authorized representative of Wellmark and delivered in accordance
with Section 6.10. This Policy shall take precedence over any other documents that may
be in conflict with it.

Change of Policy. If Account makes changes in the Plan or Benefits Documents, Account
shall give Wellmark sufficient advance written notice of such changes. If Account makes
any material changes in the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator, or if
material changes are required by law, including the addition or deletion of benefits, a
material change in group composition or membership or eligibility requirements, such as
an increase in the ratio of family to single contracts of twenty percent (20%) or more, a
change in the number of eligible individuals of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of
individuals enrolled, type of coverage offered, business entities covered, change in Benefit
Services Administrator, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Policy, including an
adjustment of stop loss premiums or Individual Deductible shown on Exhibit “A”, or
terminate this Policy.

Provider Payment Arrangements; Claims Submission. The Benefit Services
Administrator has entered into payment arrangements or contracts with health care
providers or other service providers that affect the submission, timing, frequency, and the

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 7 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

107




6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

amount of payment of Claims. Not all health care providers participate in or agree to such
payment arrangements and the Benefit Services Administrator does not determine, direct,
or control the timing or accuracy of any Claims submissions. Claims do not become Claims
Eligible for Reimbursement unless both the Incurred Dates and Paid Dates are within the
required periods set forth in this Policy and Exhibit “A”.

State of Issue; Applicable Law. The Policy is issued and delivered in the state of lowa
and is performed at Wellmark's offices in Des Moines, lowa. To the extent not superseded
by the laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict of law rule, this Policy
shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the state of lowa.

Force Majeure. The parties to this Policy shall be excused from performance under this
Policy for any period and to the extent they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from
performing under this Policy (other than payment) as a result of an act of God, war, civil
disturbance, court order, labor dispute, acts of terrorism, or other cause beyond their
reasonable control and such nonperformance shall not be grounds for termination or
default.

Effectiveness of Policy. This Policy shall be deemed to be effective and in full force as
of the Effective Date upon the affixation of Wellmark’s authorized signature below and the
Account’s payment to Wellmark of the premium required by this Policy.

Assignment. The Policy shall be binding on the parties and their respective successors
and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Policy, in whole or in part, without
the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, Wellmark may assign this Policy,
in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with Wellmark.

Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Policy shall not
be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. Similarly,
the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the Policy shall
not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver of any provision of
this Policy, and any consent to any departure from the terms of any provision of this Policy,
shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which made
or given.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Policy is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark and
not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark and
any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or equitable,
under the terms of this Policy or of the Plan.

Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any
communication or notice from the other in connection with this Policy to be genuine,
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity.

Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Policy shall be in writing and be
deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage prepaid),
delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid) or sent by
electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished by the respective party.

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 8 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

108




7.1

8.1

Until another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the
address shown on Exhibit “A” attached to this Policy.

Notice to Wellmark may be addressed:

Wellmark, Inc.

Attention: Procurement and Contracts
1331 Grand Avenue

Des Moines, lowa 50309-2901

ARTICLE 7
BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURE

Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account hereby expressly
acknowledges its understanding this Policy constitutes a contract solely between Account
and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation operating under licenses from the
Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of independent Blue Cross and Blue
Shield Plans (the “Association”), permitting Wellmark to use the Blue Cross and Blue
Shield Service Marks in the state of lowa, and that Wellmark is not contracting as the
agent of the Association. Account further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered
into this Policy based upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that
no person, entity, or organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to
Account for any of Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Policy. This
section shall not create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark
other than those obligations created under other provisions of this Policy.

ARTICLE 8
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Dispute Resolution; Mandatory Arbitration.

a. In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Policy, or
the breach hereof (each a “Dispute”), prior to proceeding with arbitration under the
further provisions of this Section, a party shall give notice (a “Dispute Notice”) to
the other party setting out, in writing and in detail, the nature and specifics of the
Dispute and a good faith estimated value of the Dispute. A meeting (which may be
via teleconference or other electronic communications) between representatives
of the parties must take place within 30 days after the date of delivery of the
Dispute Notice in an attempt to resolve the Dispute through direct negotiations.
The provisions of this paragraph and the remaining provisions of this Section are
the sole and exclusive method of resolving any Disputes, and arbitration under this
Section shall be mandatory except in the limited circumstances provided under
paragraphs (j), (k) and (o) below and Section 8.2.

b. If the Dispute has not been resolved by direct negotiations within 30 days after the
date of delivery of the Dispute Notice, or such further time as the parties may
mutually agree in writing, then either party may commence, and the Dispute shall
be finally resolved by, binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration
Association (“AAA”) in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules in effect
at the time of the commencement of the arbitration (the “Rules”). The parties agree
that the arbitrator(s), and not a court, will decide in the first instance all questions

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 9 Version: 08/20

Item 12.

109




Item 12.

of substantive arbitrability, including without limitation the validity of this Section.
The parties do not consent to the incorporation of the AAA Supplementary
Rules for Class Arbitration into the rules governing the arbitration of any
Dispute (any such arbitration is referred to in this Section as the
“Arbitration”), and hereby voluntarily and irrevocably waive any right to
arbitrate any Disputes through representative or class arbitration. All
Disputes will proceed in arbitration solely on an individual basis, and the
authority of the arbitrator(s) to resolve any Dispute and to make written
awards will be limited to the individual Disputes under this Policy.

C. A party shall have the right to withdraw without prejudice a Dispute that it submitted
to Arbitration prior to the appointment of the arbitrator(s) for the Arbitration. In such
event, all of the provisions of this Section shall again apply with respect to such
Dispute.

d. This Policy concerns matters in interstate commerce. The Arbitration shall be
governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, to the exclusion of any state laws
inconsistent therewith, and the Rules. In the event of a conflict, the Rules shall
govern.

e. No demand for arbitration of a Dispute may be made more than two (2) years after
the Dispute arose.

f. The Arbitration shall be conducted in English and shall take place in Des Moines,
lowa, unless the parties mutually agree in writing to an alternate location.

g. If the monetary value of the Dispute as described in the Demand for Arbitration, or
as the parties may otherwise mutually agree in writing, is equal to or less than
$1,000,000, then the number of arbitrators shall be one (1). The arbitrator shall be
selected from the AAA’s National Roster of Arbitrators in accordance with Rule R-
12 of the Rules.

h. If the monetary value of the Dispute as described in the Demand for Arbitration, or
as the parties may otherwise mutually agree in writing, is greater than $1,000,000,
then either party may elect to have the tribunal consist of three arbitrators by
notifying the AAA in writing of its election within seven (7) days after receiving the
list of arbitrators from the AAA under Rule R-12(a). Each party shall have twenty
(20) days after delivery of the foregoing notice of election to submit to the AAA the
name of its co-arbitrator. If either party fails to timely nominate an arbitrator, the
AAA shall make the appointment. The co-arbitrators shall have thirty (30) days, or
such further period of time as the parties may mutually agree in writing, to nominate
a chairperson of the tribunal. If the co-arbitrators fail to timely nominate a
chairperson, the AAA shall appoint the chairperson from the National Roster of
Arbitrators.

i. Pursuant to Rule R-1 of the Rules, the parties agree that the Expedited Procedures
under the Rules shall apply if the monetary value of the Dispute as described in
the Demand for Arbitration is equal to or less than $250,000.

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 10 Version: 08/20

110




Item 12.

j- The parties shall not be precluded from seeking remedies in small claims court for
Disputes within the scope of that court’s jurisdiction.

k. Prior to the appointment of the arbitrator(s), a party may elect either to make
recourse to emergency relief under the Rules, or to seek from any court of
competent jurisdiction, emergency, temporary, or preliminary injunctive relief, or
an order in aid of arbitration; provided, however, that once a party has filed or
served papers to seek recourse for emergency, temporary, or preliminary
injunctive relief in either the arbitral or judicial forum, no party can seek or oppose
any such relief from or in the other forum. The foregoing types of relief may only
be sought within the Arbitration after the appointment of the arbitrator(s).

A party may make a motion for summary adjudication of one or more particular
claims or issues to be decided by the arbitrator(s).

m. The arbitrator(s) must render a reasoned award, in writing, and judgment on the
award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction
thereof.

n. The parties waive any claim for, and the arbitrator(s) shall not have any

power to award, any punitive or exemplary damages, and each party hereby
waives any right to seek or recover such damages with respect to any
Dispute. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses of legal representation,
including attorneys’ fees, witness expenses, and costs associated with preparation
and presentation of its case. All arbitration and administration fees and expenses,
and all arbitrator costs and expenses shall be paid equally, regardless of which
party prevails. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any party who fails or refuses to
submit to arbitration following a demand by any other party shall bear all costs and
expenses incurred by such other party in compelling arbitration of any Dispute.

0. The existence and content of the Arbitration proceedings, documents produced
during the Arbitration, submissions to the tribunal, including testimony and exhibits,
and any rulings or award shall be kept confidential by the parties and members of
the arbitral tribunal except (i) to the extent that disclosure may be required of a
party to fulfill a legal duty, protect or pursue a legal right, or enforce or challenge
an award in legal proceedings before a court or other judicial authority, (ii) with the
written consent of all of the parties, (iii) where such information is already in the
public domain other than as a result of a breach of this paragraph, (iv) as is
necessary in communications with auditors or accountants retained by any party,
or federal or state regulators, or (v) by order of the arbitral tribunal upon application
of a party. The breach or threatened breach of this paragraph will cause immediate
and irreparable harm to the non-breaching party and an adequate remedy at law
for such harm may not exist. Accordingly, in the event of such breach or threatened
breach, the non-breaching party shall have the right to seek specific performance
by, or obtain injunctive or other equitable relief against, the breaching party as a
remedy for any such breach or threatened breach. If the breach or threatened
breach of this paragraph occurs prior to the conclusion of the Arbitration, the
foregoing relief may only be sought within the Arbitration. If the breach or
threatened breach of this paragraph occurs after the conclusion of the Arbitration,
the foregoing relief may only be sought within any court of competent jurisdiction.

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 11 Version: 08/20

111




8.2

p.

Item 12.

The provisions of this Section 8.1 shall survive any termination of this Policy.

Jurisdiction and Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial and Punitive and Exemplary Damages.

a.

If an arbitrator determines a particular Dispute is excluded from mandatory
arbitration for any reason (including, but not limited to, by applicable federal or
state law), the parties agree that the terms in this Section 8.2 will apply to any legal
or equitable action brought in court because of such Dispute. Each of the parties
submits to the jurisdiction and venue of the state or federal courts sitting in Des
Moines, Polk County, lowa, for any action or proceeding arising out of or relating
to this Policy, and each of the parties waives any defense of inconvenient forum to
the maintenance of any action or proceeding in the state or federal courts sitting in
Des Moines, Polk County, lowa. ACCOUNT AND WELLMARK HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION,
PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO
THIS POLICY, OR ANY INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH. THE PARTIES ALSO WAIVE ANY CLAIM FOR AND ANY RIGHT
TO SEEK OR RECOVER ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY DISPUTE.

Notwithstanding Sections 4.4 and 5.5 no legal or equitable action or claim may be
brought against the parties for an action or claim arising under or relating to this
Policy more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose.

The provisions of this Section 8.2 shall survive any termination of this Policy.

Wellmark, Inc.

" DD RS

David S. Brown
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 12 Version: 08/20

112




Wellmark, Inc.
Stop Loss Policy

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Account Full Name and Address

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613-2726

Item 12.

Benefit Services Administrator(s)

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota
Pharmacy Benefits Manager: Express Scripts

Stop Loss Period:

The Stop Loss Period begins on 7/01/2021 and ends on 6/30/2022.

Claims Eligible for Reimbursement. Claims shall be considered for reimbursement under this

Policy only if all of the following conditions are completely satisfied as determined by Wellmark.

Stop loss coverage is administered with a Run-in Period as a 48/12 arrangement, which means:
- The Claims shall have Incurred Dates within the Stop Loss Period or within 36 months prior to

the beginning of the Stop Loss Period (the Run-in Period); and
- The Claims shall have Paid Dates within the Stop Loss Period.

Claims with Paid Dates following the end of the Stop Loss Period are not Claims Eligible for

Reimbursement.

Monthly Stop Loss Premiums-Health (subject to any policy limitations listed below):

$182.91 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of billing month.

Individual Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations listed below):

Individual Deductible: $85,000 per Member

Covered Benefits: Health Pharmacy

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations listed below):

Aggregate Deductible: 125 % of expected Paid Claims.
Covered Benefits: Health I:l Dental Pharmacy
Attachment Point: per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of
billing month.
Single Family
Plan A $861.41 $2,153.53
Plan B $861.41  $2,153.53

Policy Limitation(s):
Claims in excess of the Account's Individual Stop Loss deductible level will not be covered
under the Aggregate Stop Loss coverage.

Any adjustments to monthly stop loss premiums and attachment points due to membership or

eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the membership or eligibility

change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark
processes the Member eligibility change.

Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary — Confidential Treatment Requested - lowa Code § 22.7

113




Wellmark, Inc.
Stop Loss Policy

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Item 12.

Exhibit "A" Issue Date: 6/1/2021

Page 2 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary — Confidential Treatment Requested - lowa Code § 22.7

114




Item 13.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Mayor Green and City Council Members
FROM:  Toni Babcock, Human Resources Manager
DATE: June 16, 2021

SUBJECT: Job Classification Updates

As part of our standard procedures, it's important to review job classifications on a
regular basis. We recently completed a review of most of our job classifications which
you will find included in this packet. These updates included changes such as:
updating the division, confirming the job duties are reflective of the position, and in
some cases we updated the job classification to encompass duties from several
divisions.

After your review and approval of the updated job classifications, we will begin using
these for advertising and performance evaluation purposes. If you have any questions
regarding the changes, please feel free to contact me or Jennifer Rodenbeck.

115




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Accountant Job Code 341
Department Finance and Business Operations Pay Band 409

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 3/2018 Adopted 4/2/2018
Amended 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a variety of technical and analytical work involved in the administration of the City's accounting
operations, including but not limited to: auditing, budgeting, cash management, asset inventory, debt
service, grant, benefit, and compensation administration, and human resource management programs.
The Accountant is also responsible for providing highly responsible technical and administrative
assistance to the Controller/City Treasurer or other Finance and Business Operations staff.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Controller/City Treasurer.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities; however, —Mmay provide lead direction to
positions such as Financial Clerks_and Payroll/HR Tech.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Prepare and maintain a variety of accounting and budgeting files.
e Prepare financial reports, fiscal statements, schedules, analyses, and audits.
e Input, update, and retrieve data. Oversee the maintenance of financial records and files.

e Assistin the preparation of the annual audit, including workpaper preparation and cash to accrual
adjustments.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Accountant 1

116




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Assist in the preparation of the annual budget, including workpaper preparation and capital
improvements program; monitor department spending in accordance with the budget.

Assist the Controller/City Treasurer in the administration of various grants received by the City
and ensure compliance with the reporting requirements and grant documentation.

Assist Controller/City Treasurer and other Finance and Business Operations staff in the
supervision of the payroll process_and staff. Produce periodic payroll compilation reports,
including monthly, quarterly, and annual printouts. Maintain files regarding employee
withholdings, W-2 information and 1099 data; ensure conformance with all applicable laws,
regulations, and procedures.

Assist Controller/City Treasurer and other Finance and Business Operations staff in the review
and coordination of benefits, plan documents, service contracts, and policies of the City to
determine appropriateness and recommend changes. Work with outside benefit providers to
develop most advantageous programs for the City.

Conduct meetings with City staff and distribute information about benefits packages, including
annual open enrollment meetings. Work with and assist City employees in accessing and
researching benefits as needed, including preparing applications, processing forms, invoices and
related materials; compile analytical reports regarding benefits claims and submit to
Controller/City Treasurer.

Serve as the City’s group health plan Privacy and Security Officer. Oversee all ongoing activities
related to the development, implementation, administration, and adherence to the plan’s policies
and procedures covering the privacy and security of, access to, amendment of, and other
individual protected health information requirements in compliance with federal and state laws
and the plan’s privacy notices.

Oversee and direct the delivery of privacy training, initial and periodic risk assessments, and
conduct related ongoing monitoring activities in conjunction with the City’s business associates
and other compliance and operational assessment functions. Ensure that all privacy and security
concerns, requirements, and responsibilities are addressed.

Oversee and monitor the receipt of property tax and other revenue sources received by the City.
Prepare, review, and adjust employee accrual computations. Assist in processing changes in
employee job classifications, pay rates, benefits, deductions, and other changes necessary for
payroll or personnel record processing.

Reconciles subsidiary records and bank statements to the general ledger and research
discrepancies; assists with period end and year end processing in General Ledger including
preparing journal entries, clearing checks and preforming other analysis.

Supervise maintenance of City-wide inventory systems and capital asset systems.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Participate in the work of subordinate level staff as necessary.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Accountant

Item 13.

117




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Assistin the research and data collection necessary to prepare for collective bargaining
discussions, mediation, fact finding or arbitration.

o Complete compensation surveys.

e Ensure employees understand their duties or delegated tasks.

e May monitor employee productivity and provide constructive feedback.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services and activities of a comprehensive financial management program.
¢ Principles and practices of grant administration.

e Principles and practices of governmental accounting and the regulations governing the reporting
of municipal government financial activities.

¢ Principles and practices of accounting, financial planning, investment planning, internal auditing,
and budgeting. Advanced principles and procedures of financial record reporting.

e Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.

e Principles of personnel classification, compensation, and performance management.

e Principles of administration of group benefit plans and knowledge of all applicable benefit laws.
o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Principles and procedures of procurement.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

o Pertinent federal, state, and local taxation laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Accountant 3 118




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions, and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

o Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations.

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.
o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

o Effectively handle time sensitive deadlines.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of increasingly responsible experience in accounting, auditing, financial management, or a
related field. Knowledge of governmental accounting preferred.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in accounting or
finance.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Ability to obtain certification as a municipal finance officer from the lowa Municipal Finance Officers
Association (IMFOA) or Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).

Certified Public Accountant (CPA) certification preferred.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting for prolonged
periods of time; occasional lifting or carrying of items up to 40 pounds; occasional standing, walking, or
climbing; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Accountant 4

Item 13.

119




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Administrative Assistant Job Code 154
Department Various Pay Band 305

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/5/2011 Adopted 1/10/2011
Amended 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide range of responsible municipal bookkeeping, records management, administrative, and
clerical duties in support of and assistance to the management, supervisory, or other staff of an assigned
department or division.

Duties include: word processing, data entry, file management, photocopying, document imaging,

processing incoming and outgoing mail, distribute documents, answering of telephones and responding to
requests for information.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the respective department supervisor or manager.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Prepare department invoices for Council approval, submit invoices for payment, maintain supply
and fixed assets inventories.

e Requisition supplies and materials, including the collection of uniform sizing.
e Process invoices as assigned and enter invoice data.

e Prepare and maintain a variety of files and filing systems.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant 1

Item 13.

120




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Prepare, maintain, and update various records for the department or assigned area. Verify and
distribute information. Photocopy, mail, fax, and purge materials as necessary.

e Answer the telephone and obtain information from and provide information to the public, outside
agencies, and other departments in a courteous manner. Receive complaints and questions and
refer to appropriate department staff member for resolution; provide information on departmental
and City policies and procedures as required. Monitor calls, visitors, and correspondence for
department director, division manager, or supervisor.

e Collect and enter information for payroll and distribute checks to appropriate personnel. Process
all requests and documentation of vacation, holiday, and sick leave within assigned area of
responsibility.

o Assist City-Clerk-with maintenance of municipal records; distribute public records and information.
Ensure that all filings and processing of information are in conformance with local, state, and
federal ordinances, laws, and regulations.

e Process applications and payments for permits, fees, licenses, and other various certifications,
registrations, and forms.

e Respond to inquiries regarding parking citations, payments, and account status.
e Prepare, type, and proofread documents, agendas, and reports. Enter data and information, track
files and provide follow-up correspondence related to the area of assignment; take dictation and

transcribe notes.

e Receive, sort, and distribute incoming and outgoing mail. Operate postage machine to prepare
outgoing mail; operate computer equipment including loading paper into printers.

e Prepare and distribute agendas, packets, and minutes for meetings. Compile departmental
financial and statistical reports, submit monthly financial transaction reports to the Board,
distribute supplements to the City Code; may provide election forms and voter information upon
request.

e Assist in conducting departmental statistical analyses.

e Research data needed to prepare and process collection notices. Correspond in effort to collect
delinquent accounts. Monitor collection status and update records and necessary parties.

e Assist with recruiting and employment processing. Compile and update new hire materials,
applicant processing, tracking, and correspondence. Process and mail Civil Service exams.

e Enter daily checks in the computerized cash register. Count, verify and prepare deposit records.
e Prepare and image various documents for the department and other departments as requested.

e Maintain and update subscription reports.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant 2 121




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Assist in designing layouts of reports and charts for presentations; issue plans and specifications
to prospective bidders.

o Assist Gity-Atterney-with preparation of time-sensitive legal documents, such as contracts,
memos, resolutions, ordinances, amendments to policies, and tracking of legal expenses.

e Assist customers with various processes available on City websites, process website
updates/postings, and send automated email notifications.

e Prepare documentation and process transactions related to the City’s refuse, yard waste, transfer
station, dumpsters, and cart systems.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist in the orientation and training of employees.

e Maintain a calendar of activities, meetings, inspections, City vehicle registrations, and events for
assigned department manager. Maintain schedule of meeting room events.

e May act as a Notary Public.

e Attend staff meetings and assist City employees. Answer questions, provide information, or refer
to appropriate agencies or personnel.

e Coordinate luncheons, travel, and registration for conferences or training.

o Perform other duties as assigned or specific to department.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Practices, procedures, methods and equipment used in posting invoices and collection of
delinquent accounts.

e Basic mathematics.

e Basic principles and practices of record keeping and maintaining official municipal records.
e Basic techniques of document imaging, and retrieval of flmed/imaged documents.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Understanding of related City ordinances and department policies.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant 3 122




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and associated
equipment.

e Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

e Policies and procedures related to labor union contracts.

¢ United States Post Office delivery service information.

e As applicable, audio/video equipment operation and procedures used for operating dubbing
equipment and sound mixing boards. Techniques used with creating computer graphics,
databases and spreadsheets for the television media environment using specialized software

programs (i.e. Photoshop, Access, Excel), as applicable.

e As applicable, basic regulations in the Criminal Code of lowa and procedures of the criminal
justice system and procedures related to municipal fire operations.

e As applicable, electronic media, television broadcasting, or related fields.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work; maintain these relationships in difficult situations.

o Work independently in the absence of supervision.

e Perform routine mathematical calculations.

e Type or word process at a speed necessary for successful job performance.

e Maintain confidentiality of information.

e Handle a variety of projects simultaneously and complete projects according to deadlines.

e Understand/follow instructions and communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Ability to be trained in electronic media, television broadcasting, or related field, as necessary.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant

Item 13.

123




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

One year of experience of a combination of secretarial/administrative/clerical and bookkeeping with
significant public contact, including experience with computer data entry, word processing, and
spreadsheet applications.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent supplemented with specialized training in clerical/secretarial, financial,
accounting, or bookkeeping procedures and practices.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, photocopiers,
scanners, plotters and audio/visual equipment; subject to high levels of public contact with frequent

interruptions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing or
sitting for prolonged periods of time; occasional crouching, kneeling, and bending is required; occasional
lifting or carrying of items up to 40 pounds; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged
periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant

Item 13.

124




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Administrative Assistant - Lead Job Code 155

. | .
Department . ionRs\/arious Pay Band 306
FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 6/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018
Amended 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide range of responsible municipal bookkeeping, records management, administrative,
clerical and specialized programming duties in support of and assistance to the management,
supervisory, or other staff of an assigned department or division.

Assist in supervising and coordinating clerical and other program staff and activities.

Duties include: word processing, file management, processing incoming and outgoing mail, distribute

documents, answering of telephones, document imaging, eable-televisien-programming;-and responding
to requests for information.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the respective department supervisor or managers.

Provides assistance in supervising and coordinating clerical and program staff and activities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Prepare department invoices, reports or licenses for Council approval; submit invoices for
payment; maintain supply and fixed assets inventories.

e Requisition supplies and materials.

e Process invoices as assigned and enter invoice data.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant — Lead — Public Records 1

Item 13.

125




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Organize, coordinate, and maintain City’s document imaging systems.

e Prepare, maintain, and update various records for the department or assigned area. Verify and
distribute information. Photocopy, mail, fax, and purge materials as necessary.

o Answer the telephone and obtain information from and provide information to the public, outside
agencies, and other departments in a courteous manner. Receive complaints and questions and
refer to appropriate department staff member for resolution; provide information on departmental
and City policies and procedures as required. Monitor calls, visitors, and correspondence for
department director, division manager, or supervisor.

e Collect and enter information for payroll and distribute checks to appropriate personnel. Process
all requests and documentation of vacation, holiday, and sick leave within assigned area of

responsibility.

e Process applications and payments for permits, licenses, memberships, and other various
certifications, reqgistrations, and forms.

e Prepare, type, and proofread documents, agendas, and reports. Enter data and information, track
files and provide follow-up correspondence related to the area of assignment; take dictation and
transcribe notes.

e Receive, sort, and distribute incoming and outgoing mail. Operate postage machine to prepare
outgoing mail; operate computer equipment including loading paper into printers.

+—QOrganize, coordinate and maintain the City’s document imaging system. Frain-administrative
. . . ital i - . _

+—Coordinate special City projects and events. such-as-the-annual-Business-&-tndustry-Awards
banguet:

e Assist with recruiting and employment processing. Compile and update new hire materials,
applicant processing, tracking, and correspondence-—Process-and-mail-Civil Service-exams-

e Count, verify and prepare deposit records.

e Assistin designing layouts of reports and charts for presentations; issue plans and specifications
to prospective bidders.

¢ Post information from various City meetings to the City website.

e Operate audlo for studio shows program teIeV|S|on shows for Channel 15, MedlaCOm and Publlc

e Set up registration process and assist patrons

e Assist other department staff as a back-up, including payroll and permits.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant — Lead — Public Records 2 126




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assistin the orientation and training of employees.

¢ Maintain a calendar of activities, meetings, inspections, City vehicle reservations and events for
assigned department manager. Maintain schedule of meeting room events.

e May act as a Notary Public.
¢ Attend staff meetings.
e Answer questions, provide information, or refer to appropriate agencies or personnel.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Practices, procedures, methods and equipment used in posting invoices and collection of
delinquent accounts.

e Basic mathematics.
e Basic principles and practices of record keeping and maintaining official municipal records.

e Basic techniques of document imaging and associated scanners and plotters, and retrieval of
filmed/imaged documents.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.
e Understanding of related City ordinances and department policies.

e Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and associated
equipment.

e Principles of business letter writing and basic report preparation.
e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.
e Policies and procedures related to labor union contracts.

e United States Post Office delivery service information.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant — Lead — Public Records 3 127




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Audio/video equipment operation and procedures used for operating dubbing equipment and
sound mixing boards. Techniques used with creating computer graphics, databases and
spreadsheets for the television media environment using specialized software programs (i.e.
Photoshop, Access, Excel), as applicable.

e Electronic media, television broadcasting, or related fields.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work; maintain these relationships in difficult situations.

o Work independently in the absence of supervision.

e Perform routine mathematical calculations.

e Type or word process at a speed necessary for successful job performance.
¢ Maintain confidentiality of information.

¢ Handle a variety of projects simultaneously and complete projects according to deadlines.

¢ Understand/follow instructions and communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Ability to be trained in electronic media, television broadcasting, or related field, as necessary

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of experience of a combination of secretarial/administrative/clerical and bookkeeping, with
significant public contact, including experience with computer data entry, word processing, and
spreadsheet applications.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree in business, finance, management, or a related field or an Executive
Assistantadministrative diploma from a higher education institutione.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant — Lead — Public Records

Item 13.

128




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, photocopiers,
scanners, plotters and audio/visual equipment; subject to high levels of public contact with frequent
interruptions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing or
sitting for prolonged periods of time; occasional crouching, kneeling, and bending is required; occasional
lifting or carrying of items up to 40 pounds; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged
periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Assistant — Lead — Public Records

Item 13.

129




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Administrative Supervisor Job Code 151
. I .
Department OperationsVarious Pay Band 409
FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 2/25/1999 Adopted
Amended 3/8/1999, 2/21/2001, 8/25/2003, 6/23/2014, 4/18/2016, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide variety of responsible secretarial, administrative, and supervisory work in support of the
Finance and Business Operations, Community Development, the Mayor, the City Administrator, and other
city departments. Prepare and edit documents and correspondence to provide information and assistance
to the public regarding department policies and procedures. Supervise, monitor, direct, and evaluate
administrative, clerical, and/or parking enforcement staff. Assist in the coordination of the register and
records of the city;; issue a variety of licenses and permits.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the City Clerk-ef, department Director, or division Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the—Administrative Assistants,—and Parking
Enforcement, clerical and other program staff and activities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Supervise, coordinate schedules, monitor, direct, and evaluate administrative, secretarial, clerical,
programming -and parking enforcement persernelstaff. Work with employees to correct
deficiencies, provide and coordinate training, complete and conduct performance evaluations.

e Assist with interviewing, hiring, recommending disciplinary action, and termination of
administrative, secretarial, clerical, programming and parking enforcement staff.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Supervisor 1

130




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Assist City-Clerk-with maintenance of municipal-records; work with the public to distribute records
and information needed. Ensure that all filings and processing of information are in conformance
with all local, state, and federal ordinances, laws, and regulations.

Prepare, type, proofread, and edit documents, including correspondence, agendas and reports.

Prepare and enter payroll records; maintain financial documentation, records, invoices and
accounts.

Assist in coordinating and monitoring division budgets, month end cash receipts, compile year-
end financial reports, and maintain records on new accounts.

Answer the telephone and provide assistance to the general public. Provide information on
policies and procedures as required; resolve complaints in an efficient and timely manner.

Coordinate, facilitate, and supervise new or ongoing projects.
Perform a variety of general and complex clerical/secretarial work, including the maintenance of
accurate and detailed files and records. Verify accuracy of information, research discrepancies,

and record information.

Operate a variety of office equipment including copiers, facsimile machines, and computers. Input
and retrieve data; organize and maintain records.

Compile departmental information and materials for City Council, Plarring-and-Zeningboards and
commissions, department, and committee meetings.

Oversee, monitor, and requisition supplies and equipment for the department as required.

Train department members-staff in the use of relevant computer programs. Assist in
troubleshooting issues with relevant software applications.

Attend meetings and prepare agendas and minutes; prepare and post meeting notifications.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Supervisor

May Sserve as Notary Public for department and citizens.

Monitor the interior and exterior conditions of assigned buildings; suggest improvements or
changes when needed.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

Item 13.

131




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, programs, and activities of assigned department(s).

e Policies and procedures of department as well as general City policies and procedures.
e Standard operations and activities of municipal government.

e Basic principles of departmental programs and activities.

o Advanced principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Basic mathematical principles.

e Basic principles and practices of filing and maintaining official municipal records.

e City ordinances related to areas of responsibility.

e Application processes

aleehel—heenses—tel%eee—pe#nﬁs—and—e&he#sfor various Ilcenses & permits related to subject

areas.

e English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.
e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Advanced personal computer and network applications used in complex word processing and
report generation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Work independently in the absence of supervision.

e Operate and train others in the use of advanced or complex personal computer or network
applications (i.e. advanced word processing, spreadsheet development and application, database
development and maintenance, etc.).

e Interpret and explain policies and procedures.

e Type or word process at a speed necessary for successful job performance.

e Prepare a variety of documents, reports, and correspondence.

e Basic bookkeeping and accounting functions.

e Routine mathematical calculations.

e Understand and carry out oral and written directions.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Supervisor 3 132




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of responsible administrative, secretarial, bookkeeping, financial, or public administration
experience which includes some lead supervision.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree in business, finance, management, or a related field or an Executive
Assistartadministrative diploma from a higher education instituteinstitution.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, photocopiers,
scanners, plotters and audio/visual equipment; subject to high levels of public contact with frequent

interruptions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing or
sitting for prolonged periods of time; occasional crouching, kneeling, and bending is required; occasional
lifting or carrying of items up to 40 pounds; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged

periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Administrative Supervisor 4

133




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Arborist Job Code 605
Department P"IE eipa P;uabelilcawt Eol 'rSkSE“ d Pay Band 308

FLSA Status  Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 6/12/1995, 7/1/1999, 8/25/2003, 6/28/2010, 6/23/2014, 4/18/2016, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Provide skilled work in arboriculture and tree care. Coordinate tree care and maintenance service within
the park section. Provide responsible staff assistance to the Public Works & Parks Supervisor.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public Works & Parks Supervisor.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Perform a variety of tree maintenance activities including removal, pruning, trimming, etc. and
application of herbicides, fungicides, and pesticides.

e Plan, participate, and oversee the planting of new trees; develop programs for care of trees.

o |dentify equipment needs for each assigned project. Carry out prescribed work methods and
procedures; maintain records of time, materials, and equipment usage.

e Operate and drive specialized equipment utilized in projects including loaders, dump trucks, aerial
truck, tree spade, chippers, chain saws, and related equipment.

e Coordinate the work of assigned staff as appropriate.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Arborist 1

134




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Train and mentor staff on use of equipment and procedures for tree care and maintenance.

e Maintain inventory of city-maintained trees; prepare surveys showing number, types, and
condition of trees at city facilities and lands.

e Conduct inspections of trees at all city facilities and lands. Identify dead, diseased or damaged
trees and remove trees as appropriate. Determine care and maintenance requirements for
damaged and diseased species; remove stumps.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Check vehicles, tools and equipment for maintenance and repair. Make minor repairs and report
major repair needs to Public Works & Parks Supervisor and division mechanic.

e Assist in snow removal activities.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Arboriculture and tree care practices and techniques.

e Operation of all equipment and vehicles used in the City's arboriculture program.
e Principles of lead supervision and staff training.

e Various diseases indigenous to trees in the area.

o Safety rules and procedures for all applicable equipment and activities.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Analyze and resolve concerns and issues in an efficient and effective manner.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
o Effectively handle working on a variety of projects simultaneously.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work
including city officials, community groups, and the general public.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Arborist

Item 13.

135




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of experience in arboricultural operations and activities.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent supplemented by training in tree care and maintenance services and
activities.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, Class B lowa Commercial Driver’s license (CDL).

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate state pesticide license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Field environment; exposure to hazardous chemicals and materials, fumes, electrical hazards, dust, dirt
and noise (>85dB); work in inclement and extreme weather conditions; work in close proximity to moving
machinery, equipment, and traffic.

Work irregular work hours, including weekends, holidays, and extended hours in emergencies, disasters
or other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, stooping,
climbing, or walking for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds;
kneeling and bending while performing work activities; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder
motions; operating a motor vehicle.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Arborist 3

Item 13.

136




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Building Maintenance Supervisor Job Code 645
Department PHIH etpa P;usbalilcawt Eol II’SkSEH ; Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 10/25/1999, 11/14/2005, 6/11/2012, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Responsible for a variety of tasks related to the custodial services and facilities maintenance activities
and operations. Coordinate the work of staff and contractors assigned to custodial services and facilities
maintenance and provide administrative and technical assistance to upper level supervisory staff within

the MunicipalOperations-and-ProgramsPublic Works Department.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Public\Werks-&-ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as:the Maintenance Worker and Laborer.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Supervise and participate in tasks related to the custodial services and facilities maintenance
activities and operations for all city buildings, including cleaning and maintaining buildings and
conducting repairs of electrical, plumbing, mechanical, alarm, and entry systems.

e Select and hire city custodial staff; conduct or coordinate meetings with and training of staff;
assign and monitor work; work with staff to resolve problems; assist in disciplining employees;
plan, schedule, and monitor related programs, projects and employees related to areas of
responsibility. Complete the work of unavailable staff. Complete employee performance
evaluations and discuss with staff.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Building Maintenance Supervisor 1

Item 13.

137




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

¢ |dentify equipment needs for each assigned project; set up and organize work methods and
procedures; ensure that proper materials are available to staff.

e Complete and maintain records of time, material, expenses, and equipment usage.

e Collect, maintain, and distribute inventory, cleaning supplies, and equipment; prepare bid
specifications for various services and equipment and meet with vendors; purchase and pick up
supplies and equipment as appropriate.

e Assist with preparation of budget for assigned areas of responsibility; make recommendations for
staffing, resources, materials, and supplies.

e Maintain records and inventories of projects, work orders, and routine work schedules; develop
reports of work activities, resource use, staff assignments, and other data and information for
areas of assigned work.

e Plan and coordinate with other departments the completion of work, projects, and repairs at city
facilities by staff or contractual agencies; work with contractors to address problems with work
and schedules; recommend changes; monitor work in progress; ensure work is completed to city
specifications.

e Monitor and adjust HVAC programming software as needed; perform HVAC troubleshooting to
determine problem areas, coordinate with related contractors to correct malfunctions and ensure
operational equipment.

e Review and maintain public buildings within established ADA guidelines for public accessibility

e Test and maintain emergency energy sources such as generators and related equipment and
controls; test and repair emergency and exit lighting.

e Assistin the design, installation, and maintenance of energy saving lighting and related systems
and controls.

e Solicit bids and proposals for repairs and improvements to city buildings and grounds and assist
in selection of contractor services.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Coordinate the recycling program for city facilities; monitor and maintain recycling materials drop-
off containers.

e Supervise and assist with snow removal activities at city facilities; operate snow and ice removal
equipment; spread materials to remove or treat ice and snow on city sidewalks, stairs, parking
lots, and other facilities; coordinate staff assigned to shovel walks and remove ice and snow at
city buildings.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Building Maintenance Supervisor 2 138




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations of a comprehensive facilities maintenance and custodial care program.

e Advanced principles and procedures for maintenance, repair, and technical knowledge for
ongoing development of a comprehensive building maintenance program related to building
electrical, plumbing, HVAC (heating, venting and air conditioning), alarm, entry, and mechanical
systems.

e Principles and procedures of scheduling facilities maintenance and custodial services.

e Basic municipal purchasing procedures and practices.

e Carpentry, painting, and plaster repair.

e Principles and procedures of record keeping.

e Modern office procedures, methods and equipment including computers, software programs and
associated equipment.

e Principles of supervision and training.

o Methods, materials, equipment, and supplies used in facilities maintenance operations and
custodial services.

o Safe work practices, safety requirements and safety training. Specifically, but not limited to,
knowledge of work related chemicals, SDS (Safety Data Sheets) and safety procedures.

¢ Applicable federal, state and local ordinances, statues and laws.

e Recycling practices, procedures, and operations for city buildings

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Operate hand and power tools and equipment driven tools.

e Understand and follow oral and written directions.

e Work independently in the absence of supervision.

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing with internal and external parties.

e Establish and maintain effective relationships with those contacted in the course of work

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Building Maintenance Supervisor 3 139




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of experience in building management, facilities maintenance, and/or custodial services work.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent, in addition to specialized technical training, typically vocational in
nature, or job-related college-level course work.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Officeffield environment; exposure to cleaning chemicals and materials, electrical hazards, dusty and dirty
environments, extreme temperatures and weather conditions; loud noises (>85dB); bodily
fluids/communicable diseases; confined spaces; working alongside moving traffic on roads as well as in
close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment; work irregular work hours; travel to various work
locations

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, crouching,
crawling, kneeling, standing, or sitting for prolonged periods of time; heavy lifting and moving of furniture,
equipment, and heavy objects greater than 40 pounds; climbing stairs/ladders; performing strenuous
manual labor; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; general manual dexterity;

| operating a motor vehicle as well as other heavy equipment, such as forklifts:.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Building Maintenance Supervisor 4 140




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Cable TV & Telecommunications Supervisor Job Code 750
Department Finance and Business Operations Pay Band 412

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status  Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 6/12/1995, 2/21/2001, 8/25/2003, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise and coordinate the City of Cedar Falls’ cable television programs and services; work with the
public in the development and production of a variety of cable television programs; perform a variety of
technical tasks in the production of programs for the city; provide highly responsible administrative
support to the Information Systems Manager; and supervise and coordinate all cable television fees for
the City.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Information Systems Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Video Production Supervisor, Video Production
Specialist, Administrative AdministrativeAssistant, and Production Assistants.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Oversee and supervise programs and services related to cable television programming and
production for the City of Cedar Falls; assist with research, program review, preparation, and
analysis of administration for cable communications system, including telephonic, data, or video.

e Produce and direct local cable programming; assist members of the community in developing and
producing cable television programs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cable T.V. and Telecommunications Supervisor 1

Item 13.

141




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Supervise and oversee the work of employees and volunteers in the production of television
programming; assign tasks and review work products; train employees and volunteers in use of
equipment.

e Prepare a variety of reports and correspondence related to programs, productions, services, and
operations; present materials to other agencies and groups; prepare and present information
about cable television services and operations.

e Assist with unresolved complaints between local cable company and subscribers by redirecting to
the local cable company.

e Plan, review and recommend new and revised equipment, resources, and programs; contact
vendors to review equipment and materials; coordinate work of contractors.

e Assistin the review of Federal Communication Commission materials, rulings, and actions to
assess impact on local programming and operations.

e Oversee telecast of City Council, Planning & Zoning Commission meetings, and meetings of
other public bodies.

o Assume responsibility for all cable television services and activities including operations, systems
analysis, and programming; recommend and implement policies and procedures as determined
by the Information Systems Manager.

e Recommend, develop, and implement the department goals, objectives, policies, and priorities;
make recommendations, within city policy, for appropriate service and staffing levels; forecast
and allocate resources accordingly.

¢ Monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery and operational methods
and procedures; assess and monitor workload; identify opportunities for improvement.

o Represent cable television programs and services to other city personnel and outside agencies;
assist city staff with various aspects of the cable TV and telecommunications operations;
troubleshoot, determine systemic or operational problems; make recommendations for training
programs, equipment purchases, and upgrades as appropriate.

e Maintain contacts with outside vendors, service, and maintenance agencies for cable TV and
telecommunications equipment; manage outside contracts and monitor work of contractual
agencies as necessary; maintain records of warranties, service, and maintenance to equipment;
maintain inventory of cable TV and telecommunications equipment; make minor repairs of
equipment and systems as appropriate.

e Coordinate cable television’s work plan; meet with management staff to identify and resolve
problems; assign projects and programmatic areas of responsibility; review and evaluate work
methods and procedures.

e Participate in the development and administration of the cable TV budget; forecast funds needed
for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies and make recommendations for expenditures;
monitor and approve purchases and expenditures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cable T.V. and Telecommunications Supervisor 2 142




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Select, train, motivate and evaluate personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with
employees to correct deficiencies.

Oversee the daily operations of cable TV computer system and networks and the operations of all
systems and peripheral equipment; oversee and monitor the security of the network and systems.

Constantly update knowledge of cable TV systems and telecommunications industries; make
recommendations for purchases of equipment, hardware, software applications; install, repair,
upgrade and supervise use of equipment.

Develop administrative policies for the proper use of cable TV systems to ensure compliance with
federal copyright law; enforce policies throughout organization.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Perform a variety of special projects as requested.

Attend and participate in professional seminars and conferences to stay abreast of services,
operations, and programs related to cable television industry.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Modern programs, services, and operations of cable television productions.

Laws, rules, legislation, statutes, and ordinances related to cable television and
telecommunications industry and programming.

Modern office methods, techniques, and procedures.
Television production, video, and audio equipment.

Principles and procedures of record keeping.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

Basic budgeting and accounting procedures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cable T.V. and Telecommunications Supervisor 3

Item 13.

143




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Understand and follow oral and written instructions.
¢ Work independently in the absence of supervision.
e Communicate clearly and concisely.

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of experience in television production activities, including two years of lead or supervisory
experience

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in electronic media,
television broadcasting, communications, or a related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Majority of work performed in standard office setting; travel to various work locations involving equipment
setup and tear down is required; some exposure to inclement weather and extreme temperatures (>90
degrees/<40 degrees), dust and dirt, and electrical hazards; production and programming work may be at
various locations indoors and outdoors and may include working alongside moving traffic on roads;
performing functions of this positon may require working irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or
walking for prolonged periods of time; bending and kneeling during work activities; pushing, pulling, and
reaching above the shoulder motions; climbing stairs or ladders; carrying and lifting items greater than 40
pounds; general manual dexterity; the ability to distinguish color.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cable T.V. and Telecommunications Supervisor 4

Item 13.

144




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title City Attorney Job Code 370
Department Finance and Business Operations Pay Band 419

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 6/12/1995, 6/23/2014, 7/1/2017, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Provide legal advice to the elected officials and city staff in matters related to operations, services, and
activities of the municipality; draft city ordinances, resolutions, and other legislative documentation; review
policies and procedures for compliance with legal requirements; and provide complex professional legal
assistance to the Mayor, City Council, and Finance and Business Operations Director of the City of Cedar
Falls.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives administrative direction from the Director of Finance and Business Operations.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Act as legal advisor and counsel for the City of Cedar Falls and all officers of the city, including all
boards and commissions as applicable; conduct legal research and provide legal opinions; advise
city officials and staff concerning legality of operations, policies, procedures, and activities.

o Draft ordinances, resolutions, and other documents for review and action by the Mayor and City
Council; draft other legal documents for city staff.

¢ Review and approve contracts with vendors, bidders, sellers, and all other outside entities

e Prepare opinions about questions of law regarding the interest of the city;

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Attorney 1

Item 13.

145




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Represent city in general litigation matters; prosecute or defend all suits and actions to be
brought and pending in any court in the State of lowa or United States; attend administrative
hearings and other meetings to represent the city's position.

Review legal periodicals and cases; attend classes and meetings to maintain proficiency;
constantly update knowledge about state, federal, and local laws, statutes, and codes.

Review actions and motions filed against city; prepare and present clear and concise staff reports
and other necessary correspondence.

Attend City Council meetings and provide legal advice and opinion during legislative, special, and
executive sessions.

Coordinate outside legal services when deemed appropriate.

Oversee city's risk management and loss control programs and activities

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Conduct special projects and research as assigned by the Finance and Business Operations
Director or elected officials.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Modern and complex principles and practices of criminal, constitutional, municipal, personnel,
labor relations, and contract law.

Methods and techniques of legal research.

Courtroom procedures.

Principles of legal and business letter writing and report preparation.
English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Present statements of law and fact clearly and logically.

Gain cooperation through discussion and persuasion.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Attorney 2

Item 13.

146




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Properly interpret and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations, and policies.
¢ Communicate concisely and clearly both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Eight years of responsible experience in municipal or government law, including extensive legal research.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Juris Doctorate from an accredited law school.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Membership in good standing in the State Bar of lowa.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
work closely with others.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, sitting, or walking
for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Attorney 3

Item 13.

147




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title City Engineer Job Code 409
Department Public Works Pay Band 417

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 6/12/1995, 8/25/2003, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Manage and oversee the programs and activities of the Engineering Division within the Cemmunity
DevelopmentPublic Works Department, including reviewing and approving plans, specifications, and bids;
directing inspection activities; coordinating infrastructure construction and resolving highly sensitive
issues with citizens and other departments; coordinate assigned activities with other departments,
divisions and outside agencies; provide highly responsible and complex administrative support to the

Director of Cemmunity-DevelopmentPublic Works.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Director of Community-BevelepmentPublic Works.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Principal Engineers, Civil Engineer Il, and-Land
Surveyor, Engineering Technician |, Engineering Technician Il, Storm Water Specialist and Civil CAD
Technician.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Manage all services and activities of the engineering division, including mapping, infrastructure
construction projects, field survey, and contractual agreements.

e Maintain and monitor operations of the Cedar Falls river dam in coordination with the Public
WoerksOperations & Maintenance division.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Engineer 1

Item 13.

148




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Manage the development and implementation of the engineering division goals, objectives,
policies, and priorities within each service area; establish, within city and department policy,
appropriate service and staffing levels; allocate resources accordingly.

e Continuously monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods
and procedures; assess and monitor work load, administrative and support systems and internal
reporting relationships; identify opportunities for improvement; direct the implementation of
changes.

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate engineering division personnel; provide or coordinate staff
training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline and termination
procedures.

o Compose, prepare, and review a variety of documents, including technical reports and letters,
memoranda, specifications, proposals, design criteria, cost estimates, construction contracts, and
other related correspondence.

¢ Plan, manage, coordinate, and review the work plan for the engineering division; meet with staff
to identify and resolve problems; assign work activities, projects, and programs; monitor work
flow; review and evaluate work products, methods, and procedures; meet with the Director of
Cemmunity-DevelopmentPublic Works to forecast and plan division needs and objectives.

¢ Manage and participate in the development and administration of the engineering division budget
relative to assigned operations and services; forecast additional funds needed for staffing,
equipment, materials, and supplies; monitor and approve expenditures; implement adjustments
as necessary.

e Serve as liaison for the engineering division with other city divisions and departments and outside
agencies; negotiate and resolve significant and controversial issues.

e Provide responsible staff assistance to the Director of Community-DevelopmentPublic Works;
prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.

¢ Review and make recommendations on plats and subdivision construction plans; make final
recommendations for acceptance of subdivision plans; direct and participate in the formulation,
preparation and implementation of long range engineering planning.

e Direct and participate in the preparation of complex engineering reports; conduct a variety of
engineering related surveys and studies including traffic and flood control; maintain records and
reports from past projects for future use.

¢ Review and approve plans, specifications, designs, and related documents, reports, and studies;
direct, oversee, and coordinate the development and preparation of plans, specifications, and
cost estimates for proposed public improvement projects.

e Direct and participate in the construction and inspection of field projects; establish project
schedules; verify project status; ensure compliance with contract specifications and city, federal,
and state codes.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Engineer 2 149




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Ensure engineering functions and activities adhere to federal, state and local guidelines, laws and
codes.

¢ Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.
¢ Manage and supervise the city’s storm water management program.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of engineering.

¢ Coordinate and monitor vehicle maintenance for the Community-BevelepmentPublic Works
Department.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Principles and practices of civil engineering, including design and construction.

e Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of programs,
policies, and operational needs.

e Modern and complex principles and practices of program development and administration.

e Principles of urban planning and zoning.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

¢ Recent developments, current literature, and sources of information regarding civil engineering.
e Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates.

e Principles and practices of project management.

e Advanced principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations including lowa Department of
Transportation engineering specifications.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Engineer 3 150




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions
and implement recommendations in support of goals.

e Operate various types of office equipment including computers and engineering software.

e Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally with respect,
firmness, and tact.

e Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
e Self-motivation and ability to work independently.

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work including city and other government officials, community groups and the general public.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Eight years of increasingly responsible professional civil engineering experience, including two years of
administrative and supervisory responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or a
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license.

Possession of a valid Certificate of Registration as a Professional Engineer for the State of lowa.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Engineer 4

Item 13.

151




JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
Field environment with exposure to dust and inclement weather conditions; work on uneven surfaces;
irregular work hours; work around heavy construction equipment; travel from site to site; work closely with
others and independently.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending for prolonged periods of time; and
frequent pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder movements.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — City Engineer 5

Item 13.

152




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Civil Engineer | Job Code 329
Department Community Pay Band 410
DevelopmentPublic Works
FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
| Amended 4/23/2007, 6/23/2014, 7/20/2015, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform professional civil engineering work, including designing various projects, preparing cost
estimates, drafting specifications, and collecting site data; preparing and participating in various surveys
and construction projects; preparing computerized drawings and performing various engineering
calculations and project quantities for payment; respond to inquiries regarding code compliance and
complaints; provide staff support to the City Engineer and Principal Engineer.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Employees within this class perform a range of civil engineering duties as assigned, including designing
projects, preparing specifications, and cost estimates. Employees at this level may receive instruction or
assistance with new or unusual situations and are in training of the operating procedures and policies of
the work unit.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the City Engineer or Principal Engineer.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist technical staff in the review and design of construction of public infrastructure projects
| within the Engineering Division of the Coemmunity-BevelopmentPublic Works Department.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer | 1 153




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Evaluate and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical reports and
letters, proposals, and studies; participate in the development and preparation of plans,
specifications, and cost estimates for proposed and public improvement.

e Review preliminary and final plans for proposed subdivisions; ensure plans comply with codes,
regulations, and ordinances; recommend changes.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers, and
the general public; respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Review and rate the city’s roads for the Pavement Management System; analyze and evaluate
existing city streets for resurfacing and reconstruction; update city maps; conduct traffic counts
and maintain the traffic map.

e Maintain and update computer generated water, sanitary sewer, and storm water maps as well as
subdivision and address maps by utilizing GIS software.

e Review and monitor compliance under the city’s storm water management program.

e |ssue permits to contractors, including driveways, encroachments, and sidewalks; ensure permit
work is performed in the right-of-way.

e Interact with the public, contractor, and contractor’'s employees and subcontractors on a daily
basis, providing the first level of response to the public during the construction of public
infrastructure projects.

e Prepare preliminary plans and cost estimates; review commercial and residential site plans;
respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments.

e Research, analyze, and prepare written reports; conduct a variety of engineering studies; collect,
record, and summarize statistical data; develop effective and efficient project models.

e Assist with coordinating engineering projects with other city divisions and departments, utility
agencies, and other outside agencies.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Prepare and participate in a variety of land, design, construction, and topographic survey
projects, including the collection of survey information and staking construction projects.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer | 2 154




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Prepare detailed engineering drawings with AutoCAD computer software; perform a variety of
engineering calculations including earthwork quantities, and project quantities for payment.

e Prepare or review easement and property acquisition documents.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer and Principal Engineer; conduct special
projects and research.

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of engineering.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Principles and practices of civil engineering, including public construction and structural design.
e Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates.
e Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections.

e Public infrastructure construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications.

¢ Urban planning and zoning principles and practices.

e Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including computer aided drafting
software

e Advanced drafting methods and techniques.

e Civil engineering theory, principles, construction, and maintenance practices and their application
to a wide variety of civil engineering programs and projects.

e Operations, services, and activities of a municipal engineering program.
e Various technical survey equipment.

e Basic principles and techniques of cost analysis.

e Principles of report preparation.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer | 3 155




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations, including safety regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Analyze problems, help identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions
and make recommendations in support of goals.

e Handle problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with respect, firmness,
and tact.

¢ Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work including city staff and the general public

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

No formal experience required.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or a
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.
Possession of, or ability to obtain, the following certifications: Aggregate Sampler, Aggregate Technician,

Level | HMA, Level | PCC, and Erosion Control through the State of lowa and the lowa Stormwater
Education Partnership.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer | 4

Item 13.

156




JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally
be subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards,
and close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads;
travel from site to site.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities;
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general
manual dexterity.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer | 5

Item 13.

157




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Civil Engineer Il Job Code 330

Department Community Pay Band 411
DevelopmentPublic Works

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 4/23/2007, 6/23/2014, 7/20/2015, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform complex professional civil engineering work, including designing various projects, preparing cost
estimates, drafting specifications and collecting site data; preparing, interpreting and participating in
various surveys, construction projects, and field adjustments; preparing computerized drawings and
performing various complex engineering calculations and project quantities for payment; respond to
inquiries regarding code compliance and complaints; provide complex staff support to the City Engineer
and Principal Engineer.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Employees within this class perform a range of civil engineering duties as assigned, including designing
projects, preparing specifications, and cost estimates. Employees at this level receive limited instruction
or assistance unless new or unusual situations arise and are aware of the operating procedures and
policies of the work unit.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the City Engineer or Principal Engineer.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Oversee technical staff in the review and design of construction of public infrastructure projects
within the Engineering Division of the Community-DevelopmentPublic Works Department.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer Il 1

Item 13.

158




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Compose, evaluate, and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical
reports and letters, proposals, and studies; participate in the development and preparation of
plans, specifications and cost estimates for proposed and public improvement.

¢ Review preliminary and final plans for proposed subdivisions; ensure plans comply with codes,
regulations, and ordinances; recommend changes.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers, and
the general public; respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Review and rate the city’s roads for the Pavement Management System; analyze and evaluate
existing city streets for resurfacing and reconstruction; update city maps; conduct traffic counts
and maintain the traffic map.

e Maintain and update computer generated water, sanitary sewer, and storm water maps as well as
subdivision and address maps by utilizing GIS software.

e Prepare preliminary plans and cost estimates; review commercial and residential site plans;
respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments.

e Review and monitor compliance under the city’s storm water management program.

e Issue permits to contractors, including driveways, encroachments, and sidewalks; ensure permit
work is performed in the right-of-way.

e Interact with the public, contractor, and contractor’'s employees and subcontractors on a daily
basis, providing the first level of response to the public during the construction of public
infrastructure projects.

e Research, analyze, and prepare written reports; conduct a variety of engineering studies; collect,
record, and summarize statistical data; develop effective and efficient project models.

e Coordinate engineering projects with other city divisions and departments, utility agencies, and
other outside agencies.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Prepare and participate in a variety of land, design, construction and topographic survey projects
including the collection and interpretation of survey information, staking construction projects and
making field adjustments.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer Il 2 159




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Prepare detailed engineering drawings with AutoCAD computer software; perform a variety of
complex engineering calculations including earthwork quantities, and project quantities for
payment.

e Prepare or review easement and property acquisition documents.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer and Principal Engineer; conduct special
projects and research; make recommendations about sensitive or complex projects.

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of engineering.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Principles and practices of civil engineering, including public construction and structural design.
¢ Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates.

e Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections.

e Public infrastructure construction materials, methods, procedures, and applications.

e Urban planning and zoning principles and practices.

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment including computer aided drafting
software.

e Advanced drafting methods and techniques.
¢ Principles and techniques of computer aided design software.

e Civil engineering theory, principles, construction, and maintenance practices and their application
to a wide variety of civil engineering programs and projects.

e Operations, services, and activities of a municipal engineering program.
e Various technical survey equipment.

e Basic principles and technigues of cost analysis.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer Il 3 160




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Principles of report preparation.
e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.
e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations, including safety regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

o Develop, review, and document specifications for assigned projects.
e Prepare clear and concise technical engineering reports.
e Design and construct engineering plans.

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

¢ Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with respect,
firmness, and tact.

¢ Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work including city staff and the general public.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of technical engineering experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or a
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of an Engineer in Training certificate issued by the State of lowa.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer Il 4

Item 13.

161




JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally
be subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards,
and close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads;
travel from site to site.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities;
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general
manual dexterity.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Civil Engineer Il 5

Item 13.

162




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Cultural Programs Supervisor Job Code 813
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 4/4/2013 Adopted

Amended 4/22/2013, 6/23/2014, 6/5/2017, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan and coordinate the activities and operations of the cultural arts programs and services, including the
Hearst Center for the Arts; coordinate assigned activities with other city departments and divisions,
outside agencies and the general public; provide responsible staff assistance to the \isitors-&
TFourism/CulturalTourism & Cultural Programs Manager and the Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Visitors-& Fourism/CulturalTourism & Cultural Programs Manager and policy
and program direction from the Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: Hearst Coordinators and full-time and seasonal
Hearst Assistants.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Plan, prioritize, supervise, and coordinate the cultural arts programs with policy direction from the
Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board and the Tourism & Cultural Visiters-& Fourism/Cultural-Programs
Manager; participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and

priorities for the cultural arts services and programs within the Municipal-Operations—&
ProgramsCommunity Development Department.

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with
employees to correct deficiencies; recommend discipline and termination procedures to the
Tourism & Cultural Visiters-& TFeurism/Cultural-Programs Manager.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cultural Programs Supervisor 1

Item 13.

163




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

¢ Identify opportunities for improving service delivery methods and procedures; identify resource
needs and allocate resources appropriately; recommend and implement improvements, policies,
and procedures.

e Direct, coordinate, and review the work plan for the cultural arts programs; assign work activities
and projects; monitor work flow; review and evaluate work products, methods and procedures;
meet with staff to identify and resolve problems; make adjustments as necessary.

e Assist and administer the cultural division's budget as part of the Municipal-Operations—&
PregramsCommunity Development Department budget; forecast additional funds needed for
staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; monitor and approve expenditures; make
adjustments as appropriate.

e Coordinate programs and services with those of other divisions and outside agencies and
organizations; serve as liaison for the Hearst Center with other city departments, divisions and
outside agencies; negotiate and resolve issues; oversee the facility maintenance activities and
operations for the center; oversee the security procedures and activities.

e Compose, compile, prepare, review and distribute a variety of correspondence, reports, and
documents; maintain and update files and records as needed.

e Serve as staff liaison to the Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board in developing programs and policies
for the Hearst Center for the Arts; develop and administer programs; work with a variety of
outside groups, agencies and associations to promote and supervise programs and services;
perform a variety of marketing activities related to cultural arts activities.

e Prepare grant applications; actively seek out alternate funds such as private donations, special
program grants, matching funds, and others; work with the Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board to
develop endowment, capital and special project funds.

e Provide staff assistance to the Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board and the Tourism & Cultural
Visitors-& TFeurism/Cultural-Programs Manager; participate on a variety of committees; prepare
and present staff reports and other correspondence as appropriate and necessary.

e Collect, preserve and display a permanent art collection for the City of Cedar Falls as approved

by the board; work with artists to develop exhibits and programs; make recommendations to the
Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board for purchase of art works.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of cultural arts.

e Perform other related duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cultural Programs Supervisor 2 164




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational characteristics, services, and activities of comprehensive community cultural arts
programming.

e Modern principles and practices of cultural art services and program administration.
¢ Basic facility maintenance and custodial operations.

e Principles of municipal budget preparation and control.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e Principles of volunteer management.

e Modern principles and practices of supervising a museum.

e Collection development and preservation practices and principles.

e Principles and practices of marketing.

e Principles of fundraising and development, including membership development.
e Modern administrative procedures, methods, and practices.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment.

¢ Principles of record keeping and reporting.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Interpret and explain city policies and procedures.
e Prepare clear and concise reports.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cultural Programs Supervisor 3 165




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Three years of increasingly responsible experience in the management/supervision of programs, service
administration, or facility management, including two years of supervisory experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in recreation
administration, art, art history, business administration, business management, or a related field

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
work closely with others; irregular working hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, sitting, or walking
for prolonged periods of time; occasional squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending, pushing, pulling, and
reaching above the shoulder motions while performing work activities; assembling art displays which may
require carrying or lifting items up to 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Cultural Programs Supervisor 4

Item 13.

166




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Education Coordinator Job Code 812
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 308

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 2/1999 Adopted

Amended 5/24/1999, 8/25/2003, 3/10/2008, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, develop, and coordinate materials, collections-and-collection-materials, services, programs, and
events relative to art education; implement secial-programming goals and objectives; train and supervise
volunteers and other personnel within the related and applicable programs; perform a variety of
administrative and professional tasks in support of assigned area of responsibility.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Education Assistant, Ceramic Lab Technician,
and Instructors.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Establish_and -maintain_partnerships; and collaborativee partrerships-programs with community
and ether-outside organizations to promote_arts learning and instill an appreciation for the arts.

o Develop, plan, and supervise various activities and-processes-including classes, workshops,

lectures, outreach activitiesevents-forthe-community,-and-newsletter publication..

A
e Communicate program schedule with staff and public; contribute information for quarterly
publications

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator 1

Item 13.

[Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt

)

{Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or

numbering

|

167




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

, herfa v 0 - Supervise roster
r camps, classes, and workshops; supervise and assign duties of
Ceramics Lab Tech and Education Assistant.

7

N b [Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt ]
e Orders, verifies receipt of, and maintains classroom equipment and supplies; places supply “ Formatted: Indent: Left: 05" No bullets or
orders and maintains costs within approved budget {numbering- o }
e Ensures attendance is tracked for each class, workshop, camp, tour, off-site education program,
on-site education program, learning opportunities and special events.
e Collaborate on special programs, projects, and events with area facilitiespartners.
e As applicable, respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
e Maintain awareness of new developments in specified area; incorporate new developments as
appropriate into programs.
e Provide general support and assistance to assigned-superserCultural Programs Supervisor;
assignhed:
e Perform other duties as assigned.
MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE
e Operations, services, programming, and activities of the facility and targeted audiences.
e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
e Artinstruction methodology
ABILITY TO PERFORM
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES
City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator 2

168




JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two to four years of experience in art education, working in a cultural facility, or related work experience
(experience level dependent upon education below).-

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree in art education, art history, or related field, with two years of relevant work experience
OR

Associate’s degree in art education, art history, or related field, with four years of relevant work
experience.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.working-closely-with-others.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for extended periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching
above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting
items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator 3

Item 13.

169




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Engineering Technician | Job Code 220
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 307

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 2/21/2001, 6/11/2012, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform technical inspection and design for the Engineering Division within the Cemmunity
DevelopmentPublic Works Department; perform sidewalk and driveway inspections and surveying;
perform permit reviews; issue various permits; perform a variety of technical tasks relative to assigned
area of responsibility.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Employees within this class are distinguished from the Engineering Technician Il by the performance of
more routine tasks and duties, including project design, construction inspection under the direct
supervision of upper level staff, and responsibility for the city's sidewalk program and related inspections.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Principal Engineer.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist senior technicians with the preparation of engineering projects, including project design
and preparation of cost estimates.

e Assist senior technicians with inspection of construction activities to ensure compliance with plans
and specifications. This duty also includes the maintenance of project records.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician | 1

Item 13.

170




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Coordinate the city's sidewalk replacement program; monitor construction contracts involving
sidewalk replacement and driveway installation; inspect sidewalk and driveway construction
activities and complaints; conduct final street inspections upon completion of construction.

e Ensure compliance with construction specifications, plans, and federal, state, and city codes,
regulations, and ordinances.

e |ssue permits to contractors, including driveways, encroachments, and sidewalks; ensure permit
work is performed in the right-of-way.

e Prepare, maintain, and update a variety of files and records, including permits, daily logs, and
construction progress; conduct street and excavation inspections including curb and street
replacement and ground compaction; prepare records of street inspections.

e Prepare and participate in land, design, construction, and topographic survey projects including
the collection and interpretation of survey information, staking construction projects, and
determining sidewalk and driveway elevations.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers, and
the general public; respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Assist with the coordination of assigned engineering projects including drafting upcoming
construction projects; draw and update city maps; record and catalog new developments and
subdivisions.

e Update city maps; conduct traffic counts and maintain the traffic map.

e Prepare detailed engineering drawings with AutoCAD computer software

e Assist in the maintenance and updating of computer generated water, sanitary sewer, and storm
water maps as well as subdivision and address maps by utilizing GIS software.

e Assistin the review and monitoring of compliance under the City’s storm water management
program.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide staff support to the Engineering Division; conduct special projects and research.
e Assist in ordering the necessary engineering supplies and equipment.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician | 2 171




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

¢ Basic drafting methods and techniques.
¢ Basic principles and techniques of computer aided design software.
e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

¢ Operational capabilities and limitations of equipment, supplies, and materials used in engineering
projects.

e Principles, practices, and techniques of civil engineering, construction, contract administration,
and land surveying.

e Basic mathematical principles and practices.

e Various technical survey instruments and equipment.

e Basic surveying methods, practices, and technigues.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.

o Handle problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally with respect, firmness, and
tact.

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

No previous formal experience required. One year of technical engineering experience is preferred.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or
a related field.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician | 3 172




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, the following certifications: Aggregate Sampler, Aggregate Technician,
Level | HMA, Level | PCC, and Erosion Control through the State of lowa and the lowa Stormwater
Education Partnership.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers.
Field environment with exposure to inclement and potentially extreme weather; loud noises (>85dB);
working in close proximity to moving equipment/machinery and alongside moving traffic; travel from site to
site; irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; bending, crawling, kneeling and pushing, pulling, reaching above the
shoulder movements during inspection activities; frequent carrying or lifting of items more than 40
pounds; climbing ladders/stairs; ability to distinguish color.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician | 4 173




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Engineering Technician Il Job Code 221
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 309

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 2/21/2001, 6/28/2010, 6/11/2012, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform highly technical inspection and design for the Engineering Division within the Cemmunity
DevelopmentPublic Works Department; perform land survey work and cost estimates; monitor and ensure
site compliance; perform permit reviews; issue various permits; perform a variety of technical tasks
relative to assigned area of responsibility.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Positions at this level are distinguished from other classes within the series by the level of responsibility
assumed and the complexity of duties assigned. Employees perform the most difficult and responsible
types of duties assigned to classes within this series with minimal supervision, including project designs
and inspecting public works projects. Employees at this level are required to be fully trained in all
procedures related to assigned area of responsibility.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Principal Engineer.

This position may provide lead direction to interns.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist with the coordination of assigned engineering projects, including designing, preparing cost
estimates and specifications for a variety of engineering projects; compose municipal
specifications; suggest and perform changes to project design.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician Il 1

Item 13.

174




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Monitor construction contracts; inspect and investigate construction activities and complaints;
ensure compliance with construction specifications and plans and federal, state and city codes,
regulations and ordinances.

e Inspect, monitor, and test the quality of materials used in engineering projects to ensure
specification compliance; gather materials for independent testing and interpret results; measure,
calculate, and provide detailed accounting of the amount of materials used in various engineering
projects.

e Prepare, maintain, and update a variety of files and records including daily logs, work orders, bi-
weekly pay estimates and construction progress; maintain a variety of records including street
ordinance grades, addressing, city and utility owned properties, street index, street surface
mileage summary, and sanitary sewer tabulation.

e Prepare and participate in a variety of land, design, construction, and topographic survey projects
including the collection and interpretation of survey information, staking construction projects, and
making field adjustments.

¢ Review a variety of engineering documents including construction plans and specifications,
preliminary and final subdivision plats, and parking lot and storm water detention plans; compose
and review legal descriptions.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers, and
the general public; respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Update city maps; conduct traffic counts and maintain the traffic map.
e Prepare detailed engineering drawings with AutoCAD computer software; perform a variety of
complex engineering calculations including earthwork quantities, and project quantities for

payment.

e Maintain and update computer generated water, sanitary sewer, and storm water maps as well as
subdivision and address maps by utilizing GIS software.

e Review and monitor compliance under the city’s storm water management program.

e Issue permits to contractors including driveways, encroachments and sidewalks; ensure permit
work is performed in the right-of-way.

e Interact with the public, contractor, and contractor’'s employees and subcontractors on a daily
basis, providing first level response to the public during the construction of public works projects.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide staff support to the Engineering Division; conduct special projects and research.

¢ Monitor various river gauge stations throughout the Cedar Falls watershed.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician Il 2 175




JOB CLASSIFICATION

May provide technical or functional supervision over part-time, summer employees.
Maintain city mapping records; plot the city's cross sectional mapping system.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Construction and engineering principles, practices, and techniques.

Principles and procedures of construction and engineering inspections.

Principles and techniques of computer aided design software and drafting methods.
Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

Operational capabilities and limitations of equipment, supplies, and materials used in engineering
projects.

Civil engineering theory, principles, construction and maintenance practices and their application
to a wide variety of civil engineering programs and projects, including municipal civil engineering
programs.

Principles and practices of contract administration and land surveying.

Methods, materials, and techniques used in the construction of public works and utilities projects.
Basic principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates.

Mathematical and statistical principles and practices.

Various technical survey instruments and equipment.

Basic surveying methods, practices and techniques.

Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

Handle problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally with respect, firmness, and
tact.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician Il 3

Item 13.

176




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of technical engineering experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering
technology or a related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, the following certifications: Aggregate Sampler, Aggregate Technician,
Level | HMA, Level | PCC, and Erosion Control through the State of lowa and the lowa Stormwater
Education Partnership.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers.
Field environment with exposure to inclement and potentially extreme weather; loud noises (>85dB);
working in close proximity to moving equipment/machinery and alongside moving traffic; travel from site to
site; irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; bending, crawling, kneeling and pushing, pulling, reaching above the
shoulder movements during inspection activities; frequent carrying or lifting of items more than 40
pounds; climbing ladders/stairs; ability to distinguish color.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Engineering Technician Il 4

Item 13.

177




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Fitness Coordinator Job Code 801

| Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 409
FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/23/2006 Adopted 7/1/2006

| Amended 10/13/2008, 2/25/2013, 6/23/2014, 11/6/2017, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise the development and implementation of fitness program for the Recreation & Community
Programs Division; supervise and coordinate the policies governing the Recreation Center’s facilities and
users; respond to requests for information; enforce the rules and regulations of the facility.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Recreation & Community Programs Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over fitness instructors, personal trainers, massage therapists and other staff
associated with the fithess programs.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Supervise the fitness program by developing, scheduling, and implementing new programs,
researching trends in fitness, and providing outreach to the community regarding fithess
programs.

e Hire, train, schedule, evaluate, and submit payroll for the fithess staff who will serve as the
instructors, personal trainers, massage therapists and other staff associated with the fitness
programs.

e Hold staff meetings/training at least six times per year with fithess/wellness staff. Report to
Recreation & Community Programs Manager important issues from these meetings.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fitness Coordinator 1 178




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Monitor equipment and building conditions for weight room and exercise rooms.
Develop and assist with the promotion of the fitness programs and services the city has to offer.

Assist in the promotion and support of the wellness program for all City of Cedar Falls employees;
assist in the coordination of positive health promotions, including blood pressure tests, flu shots,
health screenings, and others.

Prepare monthly report of statistics relating to all wellness services. Update the Recreation &
Community Programs Manager’s monthly report statistics for the above items as well as other
bookkeeping and accounting functions.

Review staff informational notebook periodically to keep abreast of current issues with regards to
the Recreation Center; inform full-time staff of all problems concerning the Recreation Center’s
facilities and procedures; attend weekly staff meetings.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Assist with the purchase, repair, and upkeep of the exercise equipment and the facility.
Update the Information Line as needed.
Conduct all opening and closing procedures for the facility as needed.

Assess and determine the appropriate actions for all serious disciplinary problems and fill out
proper incident reports.

Ensure that proper procedures are followed in the event of an accident.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fitness Coordinator

Administration of fitness programs and personal training.
Knowledge of the proper function and operation of fithess equipment.
Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

Item 13.

179




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Operations, services and activities of a recreation facility and related programs.
¢ Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment.
e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

One year of experience in the coordination of fithess programs, as an active instructor, and/or facility
management including supervisory experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in exercise science,
health promotion, health education, or related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, CPR, First Aid, and AED certification.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, national fithess or personal training certification.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
working closely with others; exposure to bodily fluids/communicable diseases; irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for extended periods of time; occasional squatting, kneeling, crouching, pushing, pulling, and reaching
above shoulder motions while performing work activities; must be able to operate assigned equipment;
carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fitness Coordinator 3

Item 13.

180




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Fleet Maintenance Supervisor Job Code 634
Municipal-Operations-and

Department P Public Works Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise and coordinate the services and activities of the equipment and vehicle maintenance activities
and operations with the Vehicle Maintenance Section of the Municipal-Operations-and-ProgramsPublic
Works Department; coordinate assigned activities with other city departments, divisions, units, and
outside agencies; provide highly responsible and complex administrative support to the Public\Werks-&
ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public-Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as:-Greundskeepers, Equipment Operators,
Maintenance Workers,-and Equipment Mechanics, and Laborers-

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Supervise all services and activities of the city equipment and vehicle maintenance activities and
operations; assign and oversee work of staff assigned to equipment and vehicle maintenance

within the Vehicle Maintenance Section of the Municipal-Operations-and-ProgramsPublic Works

Department.
e Manage and participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and

priorities for equipment and vehicle maintenance services, including the maintenance and repair
of all light and heavy vehicles and all appropriate non-rolling equipment.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 1

181




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Recommend, within departmental policy, appropriate service and staffing levels; recommend and
administer policies and procedures.

e Continuously monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods
and procedures; assess and monitor work load; identify opportunities for improvement and review
with the Public- Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager; implement improvements.

e Train, motivate and evaluate equipment and vehicle maintenance personnel; provide or
coordinate staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; recommend discipline and
termination procedures; participate in the hiring process for new employees.

e Plan, direct, coordinate, and review the work plan for the vehicle maintenance unit; assign work
activities, projects and programs; monitor work flow; review and evaluate work products, methods
and procedures.

o Patrticipate in the development and administration of the vehicle maintenance budget; forecast
funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; monitor expenditures.

e Serve as liaison for the vehicle maintenance unit with other city departments, divisions, units and
outside agencies; help negotiate and resolve significant and controversial issues.

o Provide responsible staff assistance to the Public-\Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance
Manager; prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.

e Develop and monitor schedules for maintaining and repairing vehicles and equipment; work with
various city staff members to schedule vehicles and ensure appropriate turn around for repairs
and maintenance.

¢ Make recommendations for new equipment purchases; prepare specifications for new purchases
as assigned; assist in the preparation of specifications for new vehicles and equipment for other
departments, divisions, and units; order and purchase supplies and equipment as appropriate.

e Establish and monitor complete, accurate, and accountable controls for all fuel, parts, supplies
and tools used.

e Maintain records and inventory of all repairs and maintenance completed on city vehicles and
equipment; maintain records and inventory of all parts and supplies procured for vehicle and
equipment maintenance operations.

e Participate in union contract negotiations; participate in the resolutions of employee grievances.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of fleet maintenance and repair.

¢ Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive inquiries and complaints.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 2 182




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e May participate in supervision of other units within Public\Werks-& ParksOperations &
Maintenance Division as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fleet Maintenance Supervisor

Item 13.

183




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Participate and supervise snow removal program for city as assigned; oversee crews assigned to
snow removal operations; operate vehicles and equipment to remove snow and ice from city
streets.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational characteristics, services, and activities of a municipal vehicle and equipment
maintenance and repair program.

¢ Materials, methods, practices and equipment used in the maintenance and repair of a wide
variety of light and heavy vehicles and other equipment.

e Occupational hazards and standard safety precautions necessary in the work environment.
e Operating and repair characteristics of the entire range of city owned vehicles and equipment.

¢ Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of vehicle
and equipment maintenance services, policies and operational needs

e Modern and complex principles, practices, and procedures of automotive and equipment
maintenance and repair.

e City and state purchasing procedures and policies.
e Advanced principles and practices of budget preparation and administration.
e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e Pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, codes and regulations

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Analyze problems; identify alternative solutions and implement recommendations in support of
goals.

o Interpret and apply Federal, State and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 4 184




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Six years of increasingly responsible experience in the maintenance and repair of all types of light and
heavy automotive and other equipment including one year of lead supervisory responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent, supplemented with advanced training in automotive and equipment
maintenance and repair.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid commercial driver's license with tank, air brake
and tractor trailer endorsements from the State of lowa.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office/vehicle repair shop environment; exposure to heavy equipment, dust, dirt, noise (>85dB), and
grease; exposure to hazardous materials and waste, electrical hazards, flammable materials, gas fumes,
and other potentially harmful vapors, outdoor and extreme weather conditions; irregular hours; confined
spaces; working alongside moving traffic on roads.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, walking, kneeling,
bending, and crouching for prolonged periods of time; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder
motions while performing work activities; carrying or lifting greater than 40 pounds; operating motorized
equipment and vehicles.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 5 185




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Hearst Coordinator Job Code 818
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 308

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 2/1999 Adopted

Amended 5/24/1999, 8/25/2003, 3/10/2008, 6/23/2014, 10/19/2015, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, develop, and coordinate materialsexhibitions, installations, collections and collection materials,
services, programs, and events and implement seeial-programming goals and objectives for the Hearst
Center.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from Cultural Programs Supervisor.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Plan and schedule the various exhibits for the Hearst Center; manage and present exhibits,
collections, or other facility-sponsored programs.

e Develop, plan, and supervise various activities and processes including educational classes,
workshops, lectures, events for the community, and publication related to those educational
events.

e Coordinate, train, and supervise volunteers and personnel within the related curation or

reqgistration programs.apphicable-programs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Coordinator 1

Item 13.

186




JOB CLASSIFICATION

y—Assist with research of hing
fundlng sources aneLappr%gior—appropnateﬁfundmgappllcable to exhibitions and collections with

direction from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.

e Collaborate on special programs, projects, and events with area facilities.

e Steward relationships with artwork donors

e Provide oversight of facility environmental conditions; maintain appropriate art storage and
exhibition environments for owned and loaned artwork.

e Purchase supplies and materials needed for assigned-programcollections and exhibitions.

e Communicate program schedule with staff and public; contribute information for quarterly

publlcatlon

e Monitor, maintain, and assist with the upkeep of gallery conditions.
e Respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Create and maintain appropriate collections management records.

e Monitor and coordinate maintenance of offsite public art collection

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Maintain awareness of new developments in specified area; incorporate new developments as
appropriate into programs.

) Provrde support and assrstance to the CuIturaI Program Supervrsor—meludmg—wnﬂng—and

assrqned—Perform other dut|es as aSS|qned

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Coordinator 2

Item 13.

187




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Operations, services, programming, and activities of the facility and targeted audiences.
e General departmental policies and regulations.

e Principles of training and coordinating.

¢ Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

o Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

¢ Project management techniques.

e Audience development, including audience assessment and analysis.

e Knowledgeable in the proper care and handing of fine art objects

e Knowledgeable in museum database management, specifically PastPerfect

e Ability to use power tools and properly install artwork in a variety of settings

e Basic knowledge of conservation practices

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

o Work closely with and lead a broad range of people from a variety of professions and social
situations.

e Organize, prioritize, and meet the demands of numerous projects, activities and deadlines.

o Effectively analyze and make sound judgments and decisions.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Coordinator 3 188




JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two to ten years of experience working in a cultural facility or related field_(experience level dependent
upon education below).

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in art education, art history, or related field with
two years of relevant work experience.

OR

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university in art education, art history, or related field
with four years of relevant work experience.

OR

High school diploma or equivalent with 10 years of experience working in a cultural facility or related
experience.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.
WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irreqular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.werking-closely-with-others. Occasional
outdoor work as related to special events and community activities with potential exposure to extreme
and outdoor weather conditions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for extended periods of time; may require squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending, pushing, pulling, and

reaching metions-during-werk-activitiesabove the shoulder; carrying or lifting items greater than 40
pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Coordinator 4

Item 13.

189




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Human Resources Manager Job Code 440
Department Finance and Business Operations Pay Band 414

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 7/2020 Adopted 8/3/2020
Amended 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Manage and oversee the activities and operations of the Human Resources Division, including: job
classifications, compensation administration, performance management, benefit administration, labor
relations, workers compensation, leaves, accommodations, and recruiting and training systems.

Coordinate assigned activities with other city departments and outside agencies; provide highly
responsible and complex administrative support to the Director of Finance and Business Operations.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Director of Finance and Business Operations.

Exercises direct supervision over the Persennel-SpecialistsHR Specialist. May exercise supervision over
clerical staff.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assume management responsibility for Human Resources Division activities, including job
classifications, compensation administration, performance management, benefit administration,
labor relations, discipline, workers compensation, leaves, accommodations, and recruiting and
training systems for the organization; recommend and administer policies and procedures.

e Participate in the development and implementation of the Human Resources Division goals,
objectives, policies, and priorities for each assigned service area; recommend, within city policy,

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Human Resource Manager 1 190




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

appropriate service and staffing levels; monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of
service delivery methods and procedures; allocate resources accordingly.

e Oversee the classification system for the city; respond to requests for re-classifications from
management and supervisory staff; review classifications, make recommendations to the Finance
& Business Operations Director; assist management and supervisory staff in development or
update of class specifications and job descriptions.

o Oversee the compensation systems for the organization; conduct or coordinate market surveys
as appropriate; review assignment of job classes to pay grades and make recommendations to
department director; develop and implement salary administration guidelines as appropriate.

o Review benefits policies of the city to determine appropriateness; recommend changes; work with
outside benefit providers to develop most advantageous programs for city; conduct various
meetings with city staff to distribute information about benefits packages, including annual open
enrollment meetings; work with and assist city employees in accessing benefits as needed,
including preparing applications;& processing forms, invoices and related materials; compile
analytical reports regarding benefits claims and submit to department director.

e Serve as the city’s group health plan Privacy Officer; oversee all ongoing activities related to the
development, implementation, administration and adherence to the plan’s policies and
procedures covering the privacy of, access to, amendment of, and other individual protected
health information requirements in compliance with federal and state laws and the plan’s privacy
notices. Oversee and direct the delivery of privacy training, initial and periodic risk assessments
and conduct related ongoing monitoring activities in conjunction with the city’s business
associates and other compliance and operational assessment functions to ensure that all privacy
concerns, requirements and responsibilities are addressed.

conduction-of tests:Serve as the staff liaison to various boards, commission, or committees as
assigned, which may include being considered director of the commission

¢ Coordinate with the legal services division on labor negotiations with organized labor groups and
grievance processes.

e Administer the city's recruitment and selection processes; ensure compliance of selection and
hiring processes with all applicable laws and guidelines; make recommendations for hiring of
candidates; maintain applicable records.

e Plan, direct, and coordinate, through subordinate level personnel, the Human Resources
Division’s work plan; assign projects and programmatic areas of responsibility; review and
evaluate work methods and procedures; meet with management staff to identify and resolve
problems.

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate staff; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement
discipline and termination procedures.

e Direct and oversee the preparation of various reports related to human resources as assigned by
the Director of Finance & Business Operations.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Human Resource Manager 2 191




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Ensure compliance with city, state, and federal policies, procedures and regulations pertaining to
human resource management.

Participate in the development and administration of the Finance and Business Operations
Department budget relative to Human Resources Division activities; recommend funds needed
for staff, equipment, materials, and supplies; approve expenditures and implement budgetary
adjustments as appropriate and necessary.

Explain, justify, and defend division programs, policies, and activities; help negotiate and resolve
sensitive and controversial issues.

Represent the Human Resources Division to other city departments, elected officials, and outside
agencies; coordinate activities with those of other departments and outside agencies and
organizations.

Provide staff assrstance to the Director of Frnance and Business Operatrons and other city
officials; 3 d-prepare
and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence

Recommend and draft changes to the city's personnel policies and procedures.

Serve as C|tys Afﬁrmatrve—Aetren—@#reerEqual Opportumtv Emplover Off|cer establrsh—geals—and

statutes—e@nanees—and—reguiaﬁensensures compllance wrth EEO requlatrons oversees Cltvs

diversity, equity and inclusion employment efforts

Coordinate training

programs for the organrzatron

Supervise personnel record keeping functions for the City and maintains the confidentiality of the
records; oversees the release of any employment related information.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Attend City Council, board and commission meetings as required; attend and participate in
professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations in the field of human
resource management.

Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

Participate in the work of subordinate level staff as necessary; process various human resource
paperwork and data; input information into the computer; access files; and maintain records.

Perform other duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Human Resource Manager 3

Item 13.

192




JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive human resource management program.
Management skills to analyze programs, policies, and operational needs.

Principles and practices of program development and administration.

Principles and practices of job classification, compensation, and performance management.

Principles of administration of group benefit plans and knowledge of all applicable benefit laws,
including those applicable to the position’s Privacy Officer duties (i.e. privacy laws).

Principles and procedures for recruitment, selection and hiring of employees.
Basic principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.
Principles and programs of risk management and loss control.

Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

Job evaluation principles and procedures.

Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Pertinent federal, state, and local taxation laws, codes, and regulations.

Municipal record keeping policies and procedures.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Human Resource Manager

Delegate authority and responsibility.

Prepare and present clear and concise administrative reports pertaining to human resource
activities and planning.

Item 13.

193




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

o Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Six years of increasingly responsible experience in human resource management, business management
or a related field, including two years of administrative or supervisory responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in human resources,
management, business, or public administration or a related field.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
sensitive deadlines and irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Human Resource Manager 5 194




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Inspection Services Manager Job Code 425
Department Community Development Pay Band 414

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
Amended 4/28/2008, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 6/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Manage the activities and operations of the Inspection Services Division within the Community
Development Department, including enforcing codes related to the construction, repair, and maintenance
of buildings and structures; oversee and manage all city building construction projects; provide highly
responsible and complex administrative support to the Director of Community Development.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general direction from the Director of Community Development.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Inspectors and Code Enforcement Officer- May
exercise direct supervision over Code-Enfercement-Officerand-Storm Water Specialist.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Manage the activities and operations of the Inspection Services division within the Community
Development Department including enforcing all building, mechanical (HVAC-heating, ventilation
and air-conditioning), plumbing, and electrical codes.

e Oversee field operations of the Inspection Services division; delegate assignments to inspectors;
analyze inspector assignment areas for efficient inspection services.

e Manage the development and implementation of the Inspection Services Division goals,
objectives, policies and priorities for each assigned service area.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Inspection Services Manager 1

Item 13.

195




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Assist in the implementation of the City’s Storm Water Management Program.

e Plan and coordinate the division's work plan and workload; assign projects and programmatic
areas of responsibility; review and evaluate work methods and procedures; meet with staff to
identify and resolve problems; direct and implement changes.

e Responsible for the selection and training of division personnel; motivate and evaluate division
personnel; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline and termination
procedures; approve vacation requests from division personnel.

¢ Interpret and enforce city codes; recommend and implement new and revised codes.

¢ Initiate proceedings for the condemnation and removal of sub-standard buildings; enforce codes
related to the removal of condemned buildings; issue permits to move buildings and ensure
compliance with related moving codes.

o Represent the Inspection Services Division to other city departments and outside agencies;
coordinate division activities with those of other departments and outside agencies and organi-
zations.

¢ Manage and participate in the preparation and administration of department's budget relative to
building inspection activities and operations; make recommendations for resource need
projections; oversee purchasing process for division materials and supplies; prepare
specifications for materials and equipment.

e Oversee and manage all city building construction projects; ensure projects meet specifications
and terms of contracts; work with contractors to solve problems and make change orders.

e Serve as the City’s Building Official.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide legal testimony related to building trade code compliance.
e Provide staff support to the Board of Appeals of the Building Code.
e Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of building inspections.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Inspection Services Manager 2 196




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

¢ Modern techniques and practices of all phases and methods of building construction.

e Building codes and ordinances enforced by the city, including the International Building,
International Mechanical, National Electrical, and Uniform Plumbing codes.

e Principles and techniques of building, mechanical, plumbing and electrical inspection work.
¢ Principles of structural design and engineering.

e General accounting and budgeting principles.

e Basic practices of municipal law as it applies to building inspections.

o Management skills to analyze programs, policies, and operational needs.

e Principles and practices of program development and administration.

e Application process of building, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, and related permits.

e Principles of supervising and managing staff.

e Accepted safety standards and methods of building construction for commercial, industrial and
residential buildings.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations including building, mechanical,
electrical and plumbing codes.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Interpret electrical, structural, mechanical, plumbing, and building construction plans and
specifications.

e Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally with respect,
firmness, and tact.

o Make arithmetical computations rapidly and accurately.
o Exhibit strong problem-solving skills
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Inspection Services Manager 3 197




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

8 to 10 years of increasingly responsible experience in construction and code enforcement with at least
two years of supervisory experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university, supplemented by specialized training in
building, construction technology, code enforcement, or related field in addition to 10 years of experience.

OR
Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in addition to 8 years of experience.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license required.

Possession of certification as a plans examiner or as an electrical, plumbing, mechanical, or building
inspector preferred.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally
be subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, electrical hazards, and close proximity
to moving machinery and/or equipment.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, and
walking for prolonged periods of time. While performing the duties of this position, the employee is also
frequently required to squat, crouch, kneel, bend, crawl, and climb.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Inspection Services Manager 4

Item 13.

198




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Land Surveyor Job Code 260
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 7/1/1999, 6/23/2014, 6/5/2017, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise, assign, review, and participate in the city's land surveying activities and services of the
Engineering Division within the Cemmunity-DevelopmentPublic Works Department; provide highly
responsible staff assistance to the City Engineer.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the City Engineer.

May exercise direct supervision over positions such as: Engineering Technicians and interns.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Perform construction surveying for infrastructure improvement projects; define elevations and
definitions, control points, curve data, angles, boundaries, cross sections and areas to ensure
projects are constructed according to the plans; adjust design alignments and grades as
necessary; perform additional construction survey related needs.

e Prepare a variety of topographic survey sketches; assemble accurate plats and legal descriptions
for the acquisition, maintenance, and disposal of city property and rights-of-way.

e Conduct field surveys to design street reconstruction plans; design centerline and gutter grades;
locate field evidence for determining existing property and utility lines and rights-of-way.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Land Surveyor 1

Item 13.

199




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Plan, prioritize, assign, and review the work of technical staff involved in the survey operation;
train and supervise personnel assigned to survey work.

e Set-up and operate a full range of electronic survey and data collection equipment; maintain and
adjust the survey instruments and equipment.

e Monitor the city survey programs, records, and information; oversee the collection and
maintenance of all survey records, field notes, and related information.

e Respond to and assist the general public, engineers, and contractors with questions and
complaints regarding surveying, drainage, and engineering activities.

e Calculate survey data such as earthwork volume computations and various complex
mathematical computations.

e Maintain a high level of proficiency in the use of AutoCAD or other drafting software in order to

assist the Engineering Division staff as needed in the design of public infrastructure projects;
make recommendations for purchasing improved design software programs.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Stay abreast of new trends and innovations in the area of surveying.

e Assist in the development and advancement of GIS with data collection record keeping,
committee support, or other activities.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, and activities of a surveying program.
e Surveying methods, practices, and techniques.

e Applicable principles, practices, methods, and techniques of engineering as related to survey
work.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including those dealing with
development, construction, and surveying.

e Basic construction and engineering principles, practices, and techniques.

e Principles and techniques of computer aided design software.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Land Surveyor 2 200




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Operational capabilities and limitations of equipment, supplies, and materials used in surveying
projects.

e Record keeping techniques.

e Advanced principles of geometry and trigonometry.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Understand and interpret engineering plans, diagrams, construction plans, specifications and
blueprints.

¢ Understand and interpret legal descriptions, record survey maps, deeds and other related
documents.

e Interpret and explain city surveying policies and procedures.

¢ Respond tactfully to citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations.
¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four to ten years of surveying experience as required by Principles and Practice of Land Surveying
Examination_(experience level dependent upon education below).-

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in engineering
technology or a related field in addition to ten years of experience.

OR

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil/construction
engineering or a related field in addition to four years of experience.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Land Surveyor 3 201




JOB CLASSIFICATION

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license required.

Registered Land Surveyor Certificate issued in the State of lowa required.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Field/office environment; exposure to hazards associated with working in and near traffic, near heavy
construction equipment, dust and dirt, noise (>85dB), and inclement and extreme weather conditions;
irregular working hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing or
sitting for prolonged periods of time; bending, crawling or kneeling during survey activities; climbing
ladders/stairs; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds; ability to distinguish color.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Land Surveyor 4

Item 13.

202




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Librarian Job Code 702
| Department Library Pay Band 409
FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
| Amended 6/23/2014, 12//17/2018, 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform professional library services within an assigned area of the Cedar Falls Library;-ncluding-youth;
technical—orpublic-services; provide responsible technical assistance to assigned supervisory staff.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Library Director.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide professional library services within an assigned area of the Cedar Falls Library—including

youth-servicesreferencetechnical-services-orcirculation; assist library patrons in accessing

materials and participating in library programs.

e Participate in a variety of library programs developed for youth and adult patrons; assist with the
development and implementation of programs and services; make recommendations to
supervisory staff for new or revised programs.

e Provide courteous reference/information services for library patrons in person, on the phone, or
via mail; assist patrons in use of library equipment and computers.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Librarian 1

Item 13.

203




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Review catalogues and other materials and make recommendations for library material
purchases; prepare reports, documents, and correspondence related to assigned areas of
responsibility.

e Train library assistants and shelvers in shelving techniques.

e Assist in maintaining library collections materials, including reviewing, evaluating, adding,
weeding and withdrawing materials.

o Staff reference services desk; respond to citizen inquiries and requests.

¢ Prepare promotional and informational newsletter articles and materials; research patron trends
and prepare related statistical reports; prepare target mailings about library services and
programs; maintain the library’s website.

e Operate a variety of equipment and computer applications related to library operations and
services; evaluate new technology in library systems; meet with vendors to discuss systems and
applications.

e Participate in implementation of enhanced digital information services and sources

If assigned to Technoloqgy Librarian:

e Operate a variety of equipment and computer applications related to library operations and
services; evaluate new technology in library systems; meet with vendors to discuss systems and

applications.

e Select, purchase, and maintain technology hardware and software; maintain inventory.

e Design and maintain the library’'s web presence, including graphic design and the coordination of
the library’s social media.

e Work with vendors to solve functionality issues with library hardware and software when
necessary, including access to database and e-material subscriptions.

e Participate in implementation of enhanced digital information services and sources; coordinate
staff training in use of library hardware, software, and digital products.

e Prepare promotional and informational newsletter articles and materials; research patron trends
and prepare related statistical reports.

e Seek technical products and applications that may be added as service products for staff and
library patrons; request quotes; prepare materials to be reviewed by the Director and Board.

| OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of library services.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Librarian 2

Item 13.

204




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Supervise library facility periodically.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive library services program.
Principles and practices of library science, program development, and implementation.
Methods and techniques of cataloging and referencing library materials.

Operational characteristics of library equipment and tools.

Current trends in education and curriculum development.

Library filing and tracking systems.

Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

Automated library systems.

Reference materials and procedures.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Analyze problems and identify alternative solutions.
Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Librarian

Item 13.

205




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE
No previous formal experience required.

Technology Librarian must have completed basic information technology troubleshooting training as well
as Network Management training.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING
Master's of Library Science from an accredited college or university.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.irregularwork-hours; exposure to bodily
fluids/communicable diseases.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items up to 40 pounds; general manual dexterity required
for typing for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, pushing, pulling, reaching above the
shoulder motions.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Librarian 4

Item 13.

206




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Library Assistant Job Code 701
Department Library Pay Band 305

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
Amended 7/1/1999, 6/23/2014, 2/15/2016, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Assist library patrons with programs and services; shelve library materials and assist with cataloging and
reference projects; perform services at the public services desks and business office; provide clerical and
technical assistance to the professional library staff.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from either the Senior Librarian or Library Director.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.
EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide library services to patrons; assist at public services desks, in technical services, and in
the business office.

e Plan and participate in a variety of library programs developed for youth and adult patrons,
including story hour, programming for adults, and others.

e Shelve and sort books and materials; check out materials to patrons; mend books and materials;
issue library cards; prepare books and materials for circulation; check in books and other
materials; empty book drop; look for lost books; make suggestions for purchase to professional
staff.

e Assist with preparation of promotional and informational displays, materials, and promotional
literature, in both physical and electronic formats.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Library Assistant 1

Item 13.

207




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Provide clerical support for library supervisory and managerial staff; prepare correspondence;
assist with filing, record keeping, and copying; answer telephones.

e Assist with closing facility; count money from transactions; put materials away and assist with
general straightening up of library.

e Assist patrons in accessing materials; operate library equipment and computers and assist
patrons in use of equipment; research and answer reference questions for patrons of all ages;
schedule library meeting rooms and community center facility.

e Assist with interlibrary loans.

¢ Maintain library’s online catalog by ordering, receiving, and invoicing new materials, updating
catalog records, and performing general catalog maintenance and data entry. Process purchase
orders and invoices as assigned; verify purchase orders with invoices; enter data into computer;
process and distribute payments as requested,;

e Prepare and maintain a variety of files and filing systems; prepare, maintain, and update various

records for the department or assigned area; verify and distribute information as requested;
photocopy, mail, email, or fax materials as necessary; purge files as appropriate.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

o Perform special projects and programs as assigned; assist with development of programs and
services.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Basic operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive library services program.
o Methods and techniques of cataloging and referencing library materials.

e Operational characteristics of library equipment and tools.

e Library filing and tracking systems.

o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Integrated library systems.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Library Assistant 2 208




JOB CLASSIFICATION

o Reference materials and procedures.
e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
e Provide courteous service to the public.
e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of customer service or administrative experience, library setting preferred. -werking-ina-tibrary
setting-

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
exposure to bodily fluids/communicable diseases.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, and
walking for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods
of time; frequently carrying and lifting items up to 40 pounds and occasionally carrying or lifting items
greater than 40 pounds; squatting, bending, kneeling and pushing, pulling, and reaching above the
shoulder motions while performing work activities.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Library Assistant 3

Item 13.

209




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Library Education Coordinator Job Code 812
Department Library Pay Band 308

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 6/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018
Amended 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, conduct, and facilitate education programs at the library. Oversee the operations of one or more
specialized library services or areas that serve a wide range of customers in all facilities. Perform a range
of specialized library tasks requiring a high level of customer service skills.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public-ServicesSenior Librarian.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Manage the monthly senior book club programs, including scheduling the book sets, checking
book sets in and out, and sending book sets to club leaders or activity directors.

e Maintain calendar of book club meeting dates, time, and locations as well as records of books
read by each group; update lists to keep current with new sets added and mail or deliver new lists
to book group leaders.

e Correspond with book leaders to solicit feedback regarding book club memberships as well as
other needs; research and procure resource and training materials as needed.

e Check in and reshelve book sets upon their return.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator 1

Item 13.

210




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Maintain inventory of all book sets in the collection, including checked-out materials and dates,
locations of the sets, and due dates.

e Prepare and send overdue notices and invoice for lost materials.

o Manage the library’s Homebound Patron service program; respond to requests for service from
the public; interview patrons by phone or conduct home visits to determine eligibility; create new
patron cards; interview and survey patrons regarding interests and preferences of materials;
check and out deliver materials.

e Oversee the Reminisce Programs in senior centers, including scheduling and selecting kids for
monthly programs; keep records of program attendance and report to supervisor; check in and
maintain inventory of kits upon return.

e As applicable, respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Report lists of new and weeded book sets on the State Library of lowa website.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Maintain awareness of new developments in specified area; incorporate new developments as
appropriate into programs.

e Provide general support and assistance to assigned supervisor.

e Assist other areas of the facility and perform related duties and responsibilities as required.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Basic operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive library services program.
e Methods and techniques of cataloging and referencing library materials.

e Social and emotional development of older adults.

e Operational characteristics of library equipment and tools.

e Library filing and tracking systems.

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

o Reference materials and procedures.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator

Item 13.

211




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
e Provide courteous service to the public.
e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of experience working in a library setting.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an ALA accredited university in Library and Information Science.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events; exposure to outdoor and potentially
extreme weather conditions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, and
walking for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods
of time; frequently carrying and lifting items up to 40 pounds; squatting, bending, kneeling and pushing,
pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions while performing work activities.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Education Coordinator 3

Item 13.

212




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Office Assistant Job Code 161
Department %gmmsk“a V;aarisouast RS ane Pay Band 304

FLSA Status  Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 06/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018
Amended 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide range of responsible administrative and clerical duties in support of and assistance to the
management, supervisory, or other staff of an assigned department or division.

Duties include: word processing, data entry, file management, photocopying, document imaging,
processing incoming and outgoing mail, distribute documents, answering of telephones, providing
customer service, program setup and responding to requests for information.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Visitors-& Fourism-/-Cultural-Manager-or-Cultural-SuperviserDivision

Supervisor or Manager.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities; however, may assist with training and scheduling
of seasonal employees.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Greet visitors, answer questions via phone and in person, and provide information to the public,

outside agencies, and other departments and divisions; receive, refer, or resolve citizen and client
complaints and questions; follow up to ensure proper resolution.

e Maintain information database; run reports and database searches

e Gather & compile accurate report information

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification—Municipal-Operat e — Office Assistant 1

Item 13.

213




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Prepare cash deposits, cash receipts, vendor payments, and financials for the division.

e Monitor facility for appropriate use, compliance with policies and regulations, cleanliness, and
customer support

e Data entry and program set up as directed

e Provide registration, licensing or other support to customers

e Support specific division operations as directed by supervisor which may include: M

o Manage online calendaring process by adding, editing, and submitting events.

o Order and stock Visiter-Center-brochures or-giftshep merchandise, as applicable.

o Assist in executing social media strategy in accordance with brand standards; create
content, execute posts, and manage social media platforms.

o Write, format, and provide edited photos for monthly blog posts; design, format, and

email blog posts and e-newsletters to subscribers.

o Create and coordinate content for quarterly programming brochures, and write/distribute
press releases to designated media.

o Coordinate and monitor advertising-eutlets; conduct-advertising-postanalysesforsocial:

digitaland-traditional-media-—compile monthly results.

o Photograph events, attractions, exhibitions, programs, and businesses in Cedar Falls for
use on the City’s website, newsletters, blogs, brochures, and social media.

o Deliver brochures to area hotels, businesses and visitor kiosks; create and maintain
reports on wvisiter-program/center traffic, brochure-distribution;-advertising, web traffic, and
social media.

o Assist other staff with gallerr-exhibits and communication with artists/vendors.

N i ) — e [Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt ]
o Assist with the payroll process for the division. Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or
numbering
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
City of Cedar Falls Job Classification—Municipal-Operat e — Office Assistant 2

214




L]

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Attend various staff meetings; assist others answering questions, providing information, or
referring to appropriate agencies or personnel about matters related to a department or division.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Customer service skills

Communication and public relation skills; business English and spelling.
City and departmental ordinances, policies, and procedures related to areas of responsibility.

Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and associated
equipment.

If applicable, social media trends and practices and techniques of social media marketing,

Item 13.

branding and advertising

ABILITY TO PERFORM

L]

Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

Use of independent judgment and personal initiative.

Operate various types of office equipment including telephone, typewsiters,-computers, printers,
facsimile machines, photocopiers, adding and charge card machines, and vehicle.

Interpret and apply administrative, departmental and divisional policies and procedures.

Work under pressure while handling a large volume of projects.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification—Municipal-Operat e — Office Assistant 3

215




JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years office experience including high levels of public contact.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; eceasionak-irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching
above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting
items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification—Municipal-Operat e — Office Assistant 4

Item 13.

216




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Public-\Werks-and-ParksOperations

Job Title & Maintenance Manager Job Code 451
Department P Public Works Pay Band 415

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
Amended 2/21/2001, 4/23/2007, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, manage, coordinate, and oversee the Public-\Werks-and-Parks-operatiorsOperations &
Maintenance division of the Munricipal-Operations-&ProgramsPublic Works Department, including

vehicle, equipment maintenance, street maintenance and construction, sanitation services, traffic signals
and signs, activities related to the design and maintenance of public buildings, cemetery, parks and
arboricultural operations; coordinate assigned activities with other city departments, divisions, and outside

agencies; provide highly responsible administrative assistance to the Municipal-Operations-&-Programs
Director_of Public Works.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives administrative direction from the Director of Municipal-Operations-&PregramsPublic Works.

Exercises direct supervision over_positions such as:-the- Public Works & Parks Supervisors, Traffic
Operations Supervisor, Building Maintenance Supervisor, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor, and
Administrative Assistant.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Assume full management responsibility for all street, alley, sidewalk, and parking lot construction
and maintenance, fleet and equipment maintenance, sanitation services and operations, traffic
signals, signs and related traffic control devices and public buildings or facilities maintenance
activities, and cemetery, parks and arboricultural operations; oversee all administrative and
financial operations for the assigned area.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Publie-Werksand-ParksOperations and Maintenance Manager 1

Item 13.

217




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Continuously monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods
and procedures; assess and monitor work load, administrative and support systems, and internal
reporting relationships; identify opportunities for improvement and review with the Munieipal

Operations-&-Pregrams-Director_of Public Works; implement improvements.

Plan, prioritize, assign, supervise and review the work of staff responsible for providing all area of
responsibility; select, train, motivate and evaluate assigned staff; provide or coordinate staff
training; evaluate employee performance; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement
discipline and termination procedures.

Manage and participate in the development and administration of the Public\Werks-and
ParksOperations and Maintenance budget; forecast additional funds needed for staffing,
equipment, materials, and supplies; direct, monitor and approve expenditures; implement
adjustments as necessary.

Plan, coordinate, and review the work plan for Public\Werks—and—ParksOperations and
Maintenance division; meet with staff to identify and resolve problems; monitor work flow; review
and evaluate work products, methods and procedures.

Serve as the liaison for Public-\Werks-and-Parks-operationsOperations & Maintenance division

with other city departments, divisions, and outside agencies; negotiate and resolve significant and
controversial issues.

Provide responsible staff assistance to the Municipal-Operations-&-Programs-Director of Public

Works; prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.

Ensure the adherence to safe work practices by Public\Werks-and-ParksOperations &
Maintenance division personnel; ensure the adherence of their services and operations to all
applicable local, state and federal standards, ordinances, statutes and guidelines.

Assist Municipal—Operations—&—Programs—Director of Public Works with the acquisition,
maintenance and operation of all equipment and vehicles assigned; prepare specifications for
new purchases; maintain contact with vendors to solicit information and bids.

Develop, implement and oversee the snow removal plan for the city; develop snow removal
routes of crews; work with supervisory personnel to schedule crews and ensure sufficient staffing
for program.

Plan, organize and supervise the solid waste management, yard waste and recycling programs.

Coordinate the organization, staffing and operational activities for the parks maintenance
programs, including golf course maintenance, right-of-way and maintenance of supplemental
public lands, cemetery maintenance, parks and grounds maintenance, landscaping, and
arboricultural activities.

Participate in a variety of activities requiring travel within city limits; inspect various parks areas,
including golf courses, cemetery, parks, playgrounds, public lands and recreational areas;
respond to and assign needed maintenance.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Publie-Werksand-ParksOperations and Maintenance Manager 2

Item 13.

218




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Design and oversee completion of landscaping projects.
e Oversee compliance of assigned staff with pesticide application regulations.

e Oversee the operations of the city cemeteries including the sale of plots, the preparation and
conduct of burials, and the accurate record keeping of all associated operations and services.

e Oversee compliance with all applicable ordinances related to vegetation.

¢ Manage all artificial lakes and recreation and nature trails.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in all assigned areas related to public works and parks operations and maintenance.

o Participate on a variety of boards and commissions; attend and participate in professional group
meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations in areas of responsibility.

e Conduct special reports and research as required.

o Meet and confer with workers' representatives to resolve grievances and discuss work related
issues.

¢ Meet with members of the public to discuss issues, concerns and complaints; resolve complaints
and problems as appropriate.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive public-works-and-parks-operations and
maintenance program.

¢ Modern and complex principles and practices of street, sidewalk, and parking lot construction and
maintenance.

e Traffic signals, signs, and other traffic control devices, including the principals of electricity.
e Care and maintenance of public buildings and other city owned facilities.

e Equipment, materials, and supplies used in assigned areas of operations and maintenance
activities and services.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Publie-Werksand-ParksOperations and Maintenance Manager 3

219




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Procedures and policies of a modern fleet and equipment maintenance program.

Operational and mechanical features of equipment and vehicles used by assigned areas of
responsibility.

Procedures and practices of a comprehensive solid waste reduction operation, including yard
waste and recycling programs.

Operational characteristics, services and activities of assigned maintenance programs including
parks maintenance, tree care and maintenance, landscaping, and cemetery maintenance.

Turf and grass management and care.
Design principles for landscaping projects.

Operations associated with parks, public property, cemetery, and arboricultural management
practices.

Construction techniques involving streets and roads, drainage systems, and flood control.
City infrastructure.

Occupational hazards and standard safety practices.

Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration.

Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Oversee and coordinate multiple projects.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.
Follow all safety rules and regulations.

Use a computer and acquire knowledge of programs used in the MunicipalOperations-&
ProgramsPublic Works Department.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Publie-Werksand-ParksOperations and Maintenance Manager 4

Item 13.

220




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

At least 10 years of increasingly responsible experience in streets construction and maintenance, refuse
operations, sewer operations, landscape management, parks, arboricultural, cemetery operations or a
related field, including three years administrative and supervisory responsibility

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree in construction management, facility management, construction engineering, or a
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license

Possession of, or ability to obtain a Class A Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally
be exposed to loud noises (>85dB), dust, grease, smoke, fumes, gases, and outdoor and extreme
weather conditions; electrical hazards; work around moving heavy construction equipment and alongside
moving traffic on roads; travel from site to site.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching
motions while performing work activities; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds; operating
motorized equipment and vehicles.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Publie-Werksand-ParksOperations and Maintenance Manager 5

Item 13.

221




JOB CLASSIFICATION

PersonnelHuman Resources

Job Title (HR) Specialist Job Code 340
Department Finance and Business Operations Pay Band 309

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
Amended 7/1/1999, 4/12/2004, 7/1/2006, 8/18/2008, 6/28/2010, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018,

06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a variety of technical and analytical work involved in the administration of the city's human
resource and legal management programs, including risk management/loss control, labor relations, civil
service processes, training and job safety, classification, compensation, performance management,
benefits, recruitment, and training systems of the city; provide highly responsible technical and

administrative assistance to the HR Manager or City-Attorrey-Controller/City Treasurer-Directorof
Finance-and-Business-Operations—or-other Finance and Business Operations Staff.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Controller/City Treasurer-City-Attorney,-and-Directorof Finance-and
Business-Operations:HR Manager.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Legal-Services DivisionLeaves, Accommodations & Risk Management:

e Process and investigate insurance claims; make recommendations for disposition of claims;
review city processes, programs and facilities to identify potential risk and loss problems; make
recommendations to appropriate staff.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Persennel-HR Specialist 1

Item 13.

222




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Oversee, coordinate, and conduct safety training, random drug testing, and job safety programs;
review policies and procedures with city departments; make recommendations to revise policies
and set up training programs; ensure compliance of city staff with all applicable safety standards.

Conduct research; prepare statistical reports and documentation; assist City—Attorney—and
Finance—and-Business—Operations—Staff-in representing management interests in conduct of
negotiations; maintain records and files related to negotiations and research; attend and
participate in various commission and committee meetings related to labor negotiations and
agreements, including taking minutes as needed.

Assist with administration of labor agreements; review grievances; assist with interpretation of
agreements; coordinate grievance and interest arbitration processes.

Prepare various reports related to human resource management, risk management, and litigation
functions as assigned-by-the-City-Atterney; conduct analysis and special projects.

Attend and participate in various committee and commission meetings as assigned; represent city
to various agencies and outside parties.

Respond to questions and requests for materials and information from employees related to risk
management/loss control, labor relations, and safety training activities; record activities according
to policies and procedures; coordinate return to work releases with appropriate personnel and
agencies.

Assist staff with purchase of safety equipment.

Maintain Workers Compensation and Leaves of Absence to ensure accurate and compliant

record keeping, employee understanding and appropriate management communication.

Assist City-Attorrey-and-Finance-and-Business-Operations-staff-with ensuring compliance with

city policies, procedures, and regulations pertaining to personnel and legal management activities
and services, including disciplinary, termination, and unemployment claims processes; administer
and monitor compliance with Family and Medical Leave and Military Leave.

Assist in the city’s risk management and loss control programs and activities, including taking
minutes at required meetings and providing research and assistance for annual liability and
workers’ compensation insurance renewals.

Perform other duties as assigned.

| Financial-Services DivisionRecruitment & Benefits:

Draft job announcements and position profiles; assist with preparing, scheduling, and assisting in
employee interview process; conduct reference and background checks and other applicable
procedures; arrange pre-employment testing and follow-up on post-offer physical examination
and drug testing; assist with ensuring compliance with selection and hiring processes with all
applicable laws and guidelines; monitor and maintain applicable records.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Persennel-HR Specialist 2

Item 13.

223




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Recruit, interview, coordinate, and conduct tests for Civil Service Commission; assist Civil Service
Commission with various administrative and record keeping tasks; procure and administer tests.

Respond to questions and requests for materials and information from employees and applicants
related to civil service, benefits, personnel files, and job classifications; record activities according
to policies and procedures; coordinate hiring with appropriate personnel and agencies.

Meet-with-newAssist employees regarding-with employee-benefits, forms, and policies; assist
terminating employees with information related to the continuation of any benefits, return of city
property, and final paperwork.

Assist Controller/CityFreasurerinwith the job classification system for the city including
responding to requests for re-classifications from management and supervisory staff, reviewing

classifications, and assisting management and supervisory staff in development or update of
class specifications and job descriptions.

Assist € : :
review and coordlnatlon of beneflts plan documents serwce contracts and poI|C|es of tl the city to
determine appropriateness; W W ,
mestuaelv%ﬁageeas—p;eg%amsier—eﬂy—conduct varlous meetmgs W|th C|ty staff to dlstnbute
information about benefits packages, including annual open enrollment meetings; work with and
assist city employees in accessing and researching benefits as needed, including preparing
applications, processing forms, invoices and related materials.;-compile-analytical-reports
regarding-benefits-claims-and-submit-to-Controller/City-Treasurer:

Prepare various reports related to human resource management functions as assigned-by-the

Ensure compliance with city policies, procedures, laws and regulations pertaining to human
resource management activities and services.

Supervise personnel record keeping functions for the City and maintains the confidentiality of the
records; oversees the release of any employment related information.

Attend and participate in various committee and commission meetings as assigned; represent city

to various agencies and outside parties.

Lead and coordinate special projects with clerical support staff.

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Operations, services, and activities of comprehensive human resource management programs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Persennel-HR Specialist 3

Item 13.

224




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Principles and procedures for recruitment, selection, and hiring of employees.

e Principles of personnel classification, compensation, and performance management.

e Principles of administration of group benefit plans and knowledge of all applicable benefit laws,
including those applicable to the position’s Privacy and Security Officer duties (i.e. privacy and
security laws). Principles and programs of risk management and loss control.

o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

o All applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, statutes, and regulations.

e English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.

e Municipal record keeping policies and procedures.

e Principles, procedures, and processes for labor negotiations and administration of labor
agreements.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Prepare and present clear and concise reports pertaining to assigned activities.

¢ Analyze problems and identify alternative solutions.

e Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations.

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Persennel-HR Specialist 4 225




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of increasingly responsible experience in human resource management—legal-services;

insurance-servicesfinance;-acecounting;-or a related field.
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in human resources,
business, public administration, organizational psychology or a related field.

LICENCES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None. PHR/SHRM-CP preferred.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
irregular work hours.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or
walking for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods
of time.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Persennel-HR Specialist 5 226




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Principal Engineer Job Code 401

Department Community Pay Band 413
DevelopmentPublic Works

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 06/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018

Amended 06/21/2021

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform highly complex professional civil engineering work including designing various projects,
preparing cost estimates, drafting specifications and collecting site data; to supervise the design and
construction of public infrastructure projects; to review and approve consultant design plans for new City
subdivisions; and to provide highly complex staff support to the City Engineer.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the City Engineer.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Civil Engineer |, Civil Engineer II, Engineering
Technician |, arg-Engineering Technician I, and Civil CAD Technician.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist the City Engineer with all services and activities of the Engineering Division including mapping,
construction projects, field survey, eentractualand contractual agreements and assist other city
departments with related responsibilities.

e Plan, prioritize, assign, oversee and review the work of staff responsible for providing technical
services within the Engineering Division of the Community-DevelopmentPublic Works Department;
work with City Engineer to determine procedures, policies, objectives and work practices for staff.

o Develop plans and implement projects from the City’s Capital Improvements Program (CIP);
coordinate, monitor, and administer capital projects involving engineering consultants.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Principal Engineer 1

Item 13.

227




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Oversee the planning, initial cost estimation, design, and construction of a variety of capital
improvement projects within the City, including but not limited to underground utility installation, road
reconstruction, trail construction, traffic signal installation, box culvert installation, bridge repair and
maintenance, and subdivisions.

e Responsible for the review of: plans, preliminary and final plats, construction, and the final
acceptance of new subdivisions; complete the recommendation of new subdivisions to the City
Council.

e Compose, evaluate, and review plans, specifications, designs and related documents, technical
reports and letters, proposals, reports and studies; supervise the preparation of plans, specifications
and cost estimates for proposed and public improvement projects.

e Assist City Engineer in the selection, supervision, and evaluation of professional and technical staff;
provide or coordinate staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline
procedures.

o Recommend and implement goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient
services.

¢ Administer and monitor construction contracts including city, state and federal projects; inspect and
investigate construction activities and complaints; monitor and ensure contract compliance with
construction specifications and plans and federal, state and local codes, regulations and ordinances.

e Coordinate engineering projects with other city divisions and departments, utility agencies, and other
outside agencies.

o Prepare preliminary plans, and cost estimates; prepare grant proposals; prepare complex reports on
solutions to municipal engineering problems; monitor construction costs; review pay estimates;
negotiate change orders.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers and the
general public; respond to city staff and the general public concerning developments; respond to and
resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Act as construction liaison for federal and state projects.

¢ Review site plans for storm water detention requirements.

e Coordinate with Cedar Falls Utilities regarding all municipal utility design and construction.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide responsible staff support to the City Engineer; responsible for hiring part-time engineering
personnel.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Principal Engineer 2 228




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Conduct presentations; attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of
new trends and innovations in the field of engineering.

e Supervise and implement the city’s pavement management program.
e Coordinate engineering public files and records.
e May act as City Engineer in histhertheir absence

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Principles, practices, and techniques of civil engineering and construction.

e Principles and techniques of construction cost analysis and estimates.

e Public infrastructure construction materials, methods, procedures and applications.

e Procedures related to administering city, state, and federal aid construction contracts.

e Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment including AutoCAD for the
implementation of computer generated drafting and design.

¢ Advanced drafting methods and techniques.

e Hydraulic analysis.

e Geometric design.

e Principles of report preparation.

e English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

e Basic principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

o Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including safety regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Develop, review, and document specifications for assigned projects.

e Recommend, goals, objectives, and practices for providing effective and efficient engineering
services.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Principal Engineer 3

Item 13.

229




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Plan, assign, and supervise the work of technical engineering personnel.
e Prepare clear and concise administrative reports.

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions
and implement recommendations in support of goals.

¢ Design and construct engineering plans.

o Work within the framework of local government to develop and manage City projects from
preliminary design to final completion.

¢ Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with firmness,
tact, and respect.

¢ Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work including city staff and the general public.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of professional civil engineering experience and a Professional Engineering license issued by
the State of lowa_(experience level dependent upon education below).

OR

Six years of professional civil engineering experience without a Professional Engineering license_issued
by the State of lowa or the ability to obtain an lowa Professional Engineering license within six months of
hire.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering or a
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Principal Engineer 4 230




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Possession of a Professional Engineering license issued by the State of lowa_or the ability to obtain an
lowa Professional Engineering license within six months of hire. -—(See experience requirement.)

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and
photocopiers. While performing fieldwork-related duties, the employee in this position may occasionally
be subject to outdoor and potentially extreme weather conditions, loud noises (>85dB), electrical hazards,
and close proximity to moving machinery and/or equipment, working alongside moving traffic on roads;
travel from site to site.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, or bending while performing work activities;
pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; ability to distinguish color; and general
manual dexterity.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Principal Engineer 5

Item 13.

231




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Program Coordinator Job Code 824
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 307

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 06/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018
Amended 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Prepare and coordinate services, programs, and events for the Hearst Center; serve as a liaison to staff,
volunteers, vendors, board members, and the general public.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Promote, schedule, and arrange the Hearst Center for room rentals, speeial-public programs_and
events, and other eventspublic offerings.

e Coordinate bookings and receptions for exhibits and events, including setting up and arranging
the space based on guest needs.

e Prepare contracts and/or agreements and handle invoicing for artists, performers, and other
groups utilizing the space_or providing programming.-

e Research potential guest performers and groups for event planning and public programming
purposes.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Program Coordinator 1

Item 13.

232




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Coordinate_city-wide -public events, including but not limited to the Local Food and Film Festival
and Pedal Fest.

Coordinate volunteers to assist with various programs and events.

Maintain audio visual equipment and piano servicing.

Assist Marketing Assistant in preparing pregramming-publicity content_for public programs and
events..

Assist in the coordination and promotion of recurring eventspublic programming s-including but
not limited to Final Thursday and Red Herring Theatre.

Research and coordinate the-weekly-film-series-programming series as assigned.

e Collaborate with the Education Coordinator to assist in cultivating relationships for outreach

opportunities and programs.

e Collaborate with the Curator to develop unigue programming opportunities in_conjunction with
exhibitions

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Attend staff meetings as necessary.
|+ Serveasiiaison to-Friends ofthe Hearst
e Prepare monthly reports and support front desk staff as needed.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, programming, and activities of the facility and targeted audiences.
e General departmental policies and regulations.

o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Program Coordinator 2

Item 13.

233




JOB CLASSIFICATION

| e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; comfortable with public speaking.-

¢ Organize, prioritize, and meet the demands of numerous projects, activities and deadlines.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

| OneThree years of experience working in a cultural facility, public programming, or related field.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university in art education, art history, business,
| communications, education, or a related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.working-closely—with-others. Occasional
outdoor work as related to special events and community activities with exposure to outdoor weather
conditions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for extended periods of time; may require squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending, pushing, pulling, and

| reaching metions-during-werk-activitiesabove the shoulder; carrying or lifting items greater than 40
pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Hearst Program Coordinator 3

Item 13.

234




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Public Works and Parks Supervisor Job Code 650
Municipal-Operations-and

Department P Public Works Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 6/2012 Adopted 7/23/2012

Amended 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, supervise, and participate in the work of staff responsible for the daily operations of an assigned
section within the Public\Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Division, including cemeteries, parks,
playgrounds, recreational trails, public grounds and recreational trails, golf courses, project landscaping,
and street, sidewalk, alley, and parking lot construction and maintenance; provide responsible staff
assistance to the Public-Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.;

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public-\Werks-&Parks-ManagerOperations and Maintenance Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as:-Greundskeepers, Arborists, Equipment Operators,
Laborers, and Maintenance Workers.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Prepare various reports on Public-\Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Division operations
and activities; coordinate projects/employees with other Public Works & Parks Division
supervisors.

e Answer questions and provide information to the public concerning Operations & Maintenance
Public-Werks-&-Parks-Division facilities and operations, maintenance practices, policies and
procedures; investigate complaints (including vegetation ordinance) and take corrective action.
Conduct inspections, prepare correspondence, and meet with the public.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Public Works and Parks Supervisor 1

235




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Oversee and participate in the preparation of specific events, including setup of special
equipment and materials; ensure materials are returned to appropriate locations.

o Participate in and monitor the maintenance and operation of all equipment and vehicles assigned
to the work area; work with equipment maintenance personnel to coordinate repair and
maintenance of vehicles and equipment; ensure all assigned staff follow all preventive
maintenance guidelines; evaluate equipment condition, forecast usable equipment life, plan for
cost effective, long-term replacement of equipment through the vehicle replacement program;
prepare and review specifications for equipment and materials and make recommendations for
new purchases; order and purchase supplies and equipment as appropriate; maintain contacts
with vendors to procure equipment and supplies; approve purchases and monitor administration
of annual budget; recommend budgetary adjustments as appropriate.

e Assist with design and development of Public\Werks-& ParksOperations & Maintenance Division
projects; review plans, specifications, contract documents and work schedules for various
projects and work programs; coordinate and supervise contractor projects related to the work
area’s range of services and activities; monitor projects to ensure contractors meet workmanship,
specifications and terms of contracts; work with contractors to solve problems; estimate project
costs; participate in the coordination of construction projects with other city divisions and
departments.

e Sell cemetery plots; maintain records of sales; process deeds and ownership records; record and
file all appropriate documents; collect and process fees; recommend cemetery rates, land use,
rules and regulations. Supervise burials; maintain interment records; ensure compliance with all
appropriate regulations and laws; oversee placement of monuments and facings; assign and
monitor repair of monuments.

e Supervise internal and external pesticide applicators, coordinate annual work, and update
pesticide reduction plan.

e Supervise the snow removal plan for the city; assign crews to specific routes or functions; ensure
the readiness of the equipment and supplies; monitor the supplies of materials needed to sand
and treat roadways, parking lots and sidewalks; ensure the adequate assignment of staff to the
snow removal operations and activities; participate in the work of snow removal as required;
schedule and assign personnel to call back status.

e Continuously monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods
and procedures for assigned work area; assess and monitor work load; identify opportunities for
improvement and review with management staff; implement improvements.

o Participate in the selection of staff; provide or coordinate staff training; motivate and evaluate
employee performance; work with employees to correct deficiencies; recommend disciplinary and
termination procedures.

e Provide responsible staff assistance to the Public-\Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance
Manager; assist with annual budget preparations and administration; forecast and recommend
funds for staffing, equipment, materials, supplies and other resources; prepare and present staff
reports and other necessary correspondence.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Public Works and Parks Supervisor 2 236




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Serve as liaison for the assigned work area with other work areas, departments, divisions and
outside agencies; negotiate and resolve significant and controversial issues.

e Ensure the adherence to safe work practices by all assigned personnel; ensure the adherence of
the work area’s services and operations to all applicable local, state and federal standards,
ordinances, statutes and guidelines.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Stay abreast of new trends and innovations in areas of responsibility; attend and participate in
professional development meetings as assigned.

e Conduct special reports and research as required.
e Patrticipate in union contract negotiations; participate in the resolution of employee grievances.
e May assume responsibility for multiple work areas as assigned.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, and activities of a municipal cemetery.
e Regulations and procedures for conducting and preparing burials.
e Grounds and facility maintenance operations and activities.

e Principles and procedures of grounds maintenance, light construction, equipment operations,
tools, and safety inspections and practices.

e Basic carpentry, masonry, painting, and lawn care.
e Administrative procedures for selling and recording burial plots.

e Current trends, techniques, and work procedures in park, grounds maintenance, or tree care and
maintenance.

e Playground equipment installation and safety.
e Procedures and regulations for pesticide and other chemical applications.

e Current trends, operations, services, and activities in park development and maintenance
programs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Public Works and Parks Supervisor 3 237




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Construction and landscaping methods, procedures, and practices.

e Operations, repair, and maintenance of all vehicles, equipment, and machinery related to areas of
responsibility.

o Cemetery, Park, or Arborist operations, duties and requirements.

e Operations, services, equipment, and activities of sanitation and street construction and
maintenance program.

e Operations, services, and activities of a sanitation services program, including operations of a
transfer station.

e City infrastructure.

e Principles and procedures of record keeping.

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Basic principles and procedures for development and administration of a municipal budget.
e Procedures and policies for purchasing supplies and equipment.

o Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and safety regulations.

e Occupational hazards and standard safety precautions necessary during working conditions.

¢ Principles of employee selection, supervision, training and performance evaluation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work
including the general public.

e Oversee and coordinate multiple projects.

e Prepare clear and concise reports.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Public Works and Parks Supervisor 4 238




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of increasingly responsible experience in cemetery operations, grounds, maintenance,
arboricultural services or related area; or streets construction and maintenance and /or sanitation services
and operations or related area; including one year of lead supervisory responsibility.

Experience operating Rublic-\Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Division hand tools, vehicles and
equipment. Experience preferred in diagnosing, repairing, maintaining and purchasing large and small
maintenance equipment and vehicles.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain a Class B Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).;

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment ut|I|zmq standard office equment such as computers, phones, and

hotoco |erS lce_an opnmen N-expbosy a anadard-o --e'-n-. n-a
phenes—anel—phe&eeeae#s While performlng fieldwork-related duties, the employee in thls posmon may
occasionally be exposed to loud noises (>85dB), dust, grease, smoke, fumes, gases, and outdoor and
extreme weather conditions; electrical hazards; work around moving heavy construction equipment and
alongside moving traffic on roads; travel from site to site.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, kneeling
or walking for prolonged periods of time; climbing stairs and ladders; stooping; occasional moderate to
heavy moving, lifting, strenuous manual labor; the use of arms and legs; general manual dexterity;
operating light and heavy motorized equipment and vehicles associated with occasional maintenance and
construction activities.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Public Works and Parks Supervisor 5

Item 13.

239




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Recreation and Community Programs Manager Job Code 470

Department Aunicipal Operations-and-ProgramsLommunity Pay Band 413
Development

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status  Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted
Amended 6/12/1995, 2/21/2001, 8/25/2003, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise, plan, and coordinate the recreation programs, services, and activities within the Munricipal
Operations-&PregramsCommunity Development Department, including aquatics, recreation center, youth
and adult sports; supervise the city’s golf pro and administer the contract; coordinate assigned activities
with other divisions, outside agencies, and the general public; provide highly responsible and complex

staff assistance to the Municipal-Operations-&ProgramsCommunity Development Director.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general direction from the Director of MunicipalOperations-&PregramsCommunity
Development.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Recreation Program Supervisor, Aguatic-

RecreationProgram-Supenvisor-Recreation Program Coordinator, Fitness Coordinator, and
Administrative AssistantSupervisor.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

o Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for

the Recreation Division within the Municipal-Operations-&ProgramsCommunity Development

Department; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures; and
supervise the city’s golf pro contract.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation and Community Programs Manager 1

Item 13.

240




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with
employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline and termination procedures; manage and
participate in the hiring and training of part-time and seasonal staff.

¢ Identify opportunities for improving service delivery methods and procedures; identify resource
needs; review with appropriate management staff; implement improvements.

e Direct, coordinate, and review the work plan for recreation programs and services; assign work
activities and projects; monitor work flows; review and evaluate work products, methods and
procedures; meet with staff to identify and resolve problems.

e Participate in the development and administration of the ici
DepartmentRecreation & Community Programs division budget; forecast additional funds needed
for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; monitor and approve expenditures; recommend
adjustments as necessatry.

¢ Coordinate recreation programs and services with those of other divisions and outside agencies
and organizations; serve as liaison for the Recreation Division with other city departments,
divisions and outside agencies; negotiate and resolve significant and controversial issues.

¢ Compose, compile, prepare, review, and distribute a variety of correspondence, reports, and
documents; maintain and update files and records as needed.

o Administer the facility & lands rental process; schedule events and ensure appropriate services
are available; coordinate with outside groups for use of facilities/lands.

e Oversee the facility maintenance and monitor custodial operations duties and services at the city
recreation center, facilities, pools, and other related structures and sites,

¢ Meet with a variety of outside groups to market and explain programs and services; work with_the
public to develop programs and services.

e Provide staff assistance to the Municipal-Operations-&ProgramsCommunity Development

Director; participate on a variety of committees; prepare and present staff reports and other
correspondence as appropriate and necessary.

e Implements policies and procedures for use of the Recreation Center; enforces rules and policies

e Responsible for ensuring facilities are opened and closed appropriately

e Inspects all areas of responsibility to ensure safety of all guests; performs routine maintenance

e Primary staff liaison to the Parks & Recreation Commission; responsible for coordinating the
agenda, distributing packets, and communications with Commissioners

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation and Community Programs Manager 2 241




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of recreation.

e Inspect and monitor recreational sites and events; identify noncomplying activities and make
recommendations to staff.

o Promete-and-suppertAdminister the wellness program for all City of Cedar Falls employees;
Coordinate positive health promotions, including blood pressure tests, flu shots, health
screenings, and others.

e Maintain a high degree of customer service.

e Monitor the condition of facilities under the purview of the division and propose items for the City’s
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and budgeting, accordingly.

e Develop and execute a maintenance and replacement plan for facilities and equipment

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational characteristics, services, and activities of recreation programs and activities.
e Modern and complex principles and practices of recreation administration.

e Procedures and practices of facility maintenance operations and activities.

e Operating characteristics of swimming pool equipment and facilities.

e Principles of municipal budget preparation and control.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e Principles of golf course operations and golf pro contract requirements.

e Procedures and practices of pool and building maintenance and repair.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Principles of record keeping, contracts, and reporting.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation and Community Programs Manager 3 242




JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Interpret and explain city recreation policies and procedures.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of increasingly responsible experience in recreation coordination activities, including two years
of supervisory or administrative experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in recreation & leisure
services administration, sports & fithess management, parks & recreation management, or a closely
related field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
work closely with others, including the public; irregular working hours; attending some outdoor events,
programs, and activities; exposure to hazardous fumes, toxic chemicals, and loud noises (>85dB).

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for standing, sitting, walking,
or climbing for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds; pushing,
pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation and Community Programs Manager 4

Item 13.

243




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Recreation Program Coordinator Job Code 810
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 309

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 2/1999 Adopted

Amended 5/24/1999, 8/25/2003, 10/13/2008, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Oversee and coordinate Recreation Center activities, programs, and special events within the Municipal
Operations-and-PregramsCommunity Development department; hire and supervise part-time and
seasonal staff within assigned programs; perform a variety of administrative and professional tasks in
support of assigned area of responsibility.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Recreation & Community Programs Manager.

This position has-ne-direct-supervisoryresponsibilitiesmay supervise and direct the work of part-time and

Item 13.

seasonal _employees such as coaches, childcare providers, special events leader, and sport site

supervisor.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Coordinate, supervise, and manage the general operation of the Recreation Center, including
organization of community, recreational, and social programs.

e Recommend and assist in the implementation of goals and objectives; establish schedules and
methods for providing community center services; implement policies and procedures.

e Monitor program performance; recommend and implement modifications to systems and
procedures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Program Coordinator 1

244




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Plan, schedule, and promote a wide variety of athletic, recreational, and youth activities and
events; prepare social program event and facility marketing material, including news releases,
flyers, schedules of events, pamphlets, and brochures.

e Schedule usage of Recreation Center facilities for activities including athletics, recreation, and
youth groups; collect deposit fees and provide information and assistance to users of facilities.

e Hire, train, and evaluate part-time and seasonal personnel including, coaches, childcare
providers, special events leader, and sport site supervisor.

e Maintain the technical social media, website applications, and promotional signage for the
Recreation & Community Programs Division.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Maintain awareness of new developments in the field of Recreation Center activities; incorporate
new developments as appropriate into programs.

e Provide general support and assistance to assigned supervisor.

o Perform related duties and responsibilities as required.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services and activities of a recreation program.

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.
o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
e Typing and/or word processing techniques.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Program Coordinator 2 245




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of experience in recreation programs and services.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High School Diploma or equivalent.

LICENCES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, CPR and First Aid certification.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
exposure to outdoor weather conditions; bodily fluids/communicable diseases; working closely with
others.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for extended periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds; squatting, crouching,
kneeling, and bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions while performing work
activities.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Program Coordinator 3

Item 13.

246




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Item 13.

Job Title Recreation Programs Supervisor Job Code 350
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 41l

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995
Amended 6/23/2014, 12/21/2015, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise, plan, and coordinate sports, recreation, and/or aquatic activities and programs for patrons of

all ages of the Municipal-Operations-and-PregramsCommunity Development Department; coordinate

assigned activities with other divisions, outside agencies, volunteers, and the general public; provide
highly responsible staff assistance to the Recreation & Community Programs Manager.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Recreation & Community Programs Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over part-time seasonal staff members and volunteers.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Coordinate the organization, staffing, and operational activities for various athletic, recreation,
and/or aquatic programs for youth and adults; supervise youth and adult sports programs,
including fields, gyms, coaches, parents, spectators and officials; supervise youth and adult
instructional aquatic programs.

o Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for
recreation, sports, and/or aquatic activities; recommend and implement policies and procedures,
standards for programs, safety, and fiscal control.

o |dentify opportunities for improving service delivery methods and procedures; identify resource
needs; review with appropriate management staff; assist with implementing improvements.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Programs Supervisor 1

247




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Direct, coordinate, and review the work plan for the sports, recreation, and/or aquatic activities;
assign work activities and projects to city staff, contractual employees, and volunteers; review
and evaluate work methods and procedures; meet with staff to identify and resolve problems.

e Recruit, select, train, motivate, supervise and evaluate sports, recreation and/or aquatic
personnel, including officials; provide or coordinate staff training; work with employees to correct
deficiencies.

e Prepare, maintain and update a variety of files and records for sports leagues, recreation
programs, and/or aquatic programs; prepare and submit employee payroll to the appropriate
department.

e Oversee the registration process for games, leagues, tournaments, and/or aguatic programming;
coordinate assignment of teams to facilities; coordinate facilities, maintain records of fees paid;
review and evaluate fees schedules and make recommendations for revisions to appropriate
personnel; market and promote programs and services; prepare fliers and other informational
materials.

e Coordinate sports, recreation, and/or aquatic activities with those of other divisions, outside
agencies and organizations; coordinate agreements with other organizations, including indoor
pool usage.

e Research, propose, obtain bids, and purchase appropriate equipment, supplies, and materials for
programs and services; maintain contacts with vendors and suppliers; oversee records for
issuance of equipment and supplies to program participants and employees. Assist with cash
/inventory control, monitor revenues, and expenditures with assigned budget, recommend budget
items; process bills for payment.

e Schedule, coordinate, and oversee competitive tournaments/events at city facilities; conduct
clinics, seminars, and classes as appropriate.

e Ensure the maintenance of materials and supplies for sports, recreation, and/or aguatic
operations and facilities; requisition materials and supplies as required; performs routine
housekeeping, routine maintenance, and program support.

e Solicit sponsors and generate revenue sources to support sports, recreation, and aquatic
activities and programs.

e Serve as primary communicator between seasonal staff in the field, program participants, facility
users, and the Recreation and Community Programs Manager; investigate and resolve
complaints and problems as appropriate; respond to calls of an emergency nature after hours;
assist in setting priorities to deal with emergencies and unanticipated needs.

e Administer applicable laws related to athletic, recreations, and swimming pools, including
concession operations and sales.

e Ensure staff complies with applicable safety and occupational health standards and department
policies and procedures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Programs Supervisor 2 248




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide staff support to the Recreation & Community Programs Manager; assist with budget
development, financial projections, and administration of budgeted funds.

¢ Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of athletic, recreation, and/or aquatic programs and services.

e Schedule and reserve fields or facilities for the general public including groups and individuals.

e Lead, instruct, or officiate one or more activities as requested; performs related work to support
the organization; monitors general condition of facility and responds to any defects or damages.

e Actin the absence of seasonal staff; greet public; handle concerns; answer questions; anticipate
services needed and make needed arrangements for services; communicate rules of conduct.

e Assist in monitoring equipment and building conditions around the Rec Center, swimming pools,
or other recreation facilities.

e Assist patrons with registration for memberships, passes, beach house and shelter rentals, adult
and youth programs, and equipment rental.

e Conduct opening and closing procedures for recreation facilities, as needed.

e Assist in assessing and determining appropriate actions for disciplinary problems, as needed for
all facilities.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational characteristics, services, and activities of athletics, recreation, and/or aquatic
programs for patrons of all ages.

e Basic rules and knowledge of regulations of a variety of team and individual sports and/or aquatic
activities.

e Principles of league and tournament pairings and scheduling.
¢ Rules and regulations for officiating athletic events.
¢ Principles of hiring procedures, supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Programs Supervisor 3 249




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.

e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
e Principles and procedures of record keeping.

e Instruction techniques.

Customer service principles and practices.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Work independently and in a team environment.
¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Effectively deal with personal danger, which may include exposure to irate fans, players, coaches
and officials.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years of increasingly responsible experience in coordination of athletic, recreation, aquatic, or other
recreation activities including one year of lead or supervisory experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in recreation
administration, sports management, fithess, physical education, business administration, or a related
field.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver’s license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, First Aid, CPR, and AED training and certification.
If assigned to supervise aquatics, current Lifeguarding Certification, CPR For The Professional Rescuer
and AED; ability to obtain Life Guard Instructor Trainer (LGIT) and Certified Pool Operator (CPO); ability
to obtain Water Safety Instructor (WSI) and Water Safety Instructor Trainer (WSIT).

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Programs Supervisor 4

Item 13.

250




JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
field environment with exposure to outdoor and extreme weather conditions; dirt, dust, and/or to water,
aguatic chemicals, loud noises (>85dB), mechanical, electrical, and chemical hazards, close proximity to
moving machinery/equipment, atmospheric conditions that affect the respiratory system or skin, dirt, and
dust. Duties may require wearing a respirator, working in confined spaces, or being exposed to extreme
heat; work closely with others; irregular work hours

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, climbing,
balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, reaching, pushing, pulling, swimming, or walking; carrying and
lifting items greater than 40 pounds; operating a motor vehicle.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Recreation Programs Supervisor

Item 13.

251




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Senior Librarian Job Code 703
Department Library Pay Band 412

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted

Amended 6/12/1995, 8/25/2003, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Plan, supervise and oversee a unit or division within the Cedar Falls Library, including youth, public, or
technical services; develop and implement services and programs within assigned area; provide highly
responsible technical and administrative assistance to the Library Director.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Library Director.

Exercises direct supervision over _positions such as: Library Education Coordinator, Shelvers, Library
Pages, Library Assistants, and Librarians as applicable.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Supervise and oversee all services and programs in assigned areas of the Cedar Falls Library,
including youth, public, or technical services; develop and implement programs within the
assigned area; provide technical and administrative assistance to the Library Director.

e Assist with the development and implementation of the library's goals, objectives, policies, and
priorities for all assigned service areas.

e Research, plan, and coordinate library services and programs in an assigned area; assign staff to
develop and implement new and revised programs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Senior Librarian 1

Item 13.

252




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Assistin the planning and implementation of enhanced digital information services and sources.

¢ Initiate contact with information providers to evaluate new products and determine which are
suitable for purchase; facilitate ongoing technical support of existing systems and products.

¢ Recommend, within Board of Trustee and city policies, appropriate service and staffing levels;
constantly monitor and evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and
procedures.

e Plan and supervise the work plan for an assigned area of the library; assign projects, duties, and
tasks to subordinate staff; review and evaluate work methods and products; meet with staff to
identify and resolve problems.

¢ Work with members of the public to assist with library services and programs; monitor
effectiveness of services and programs; develop or recommend revised or new programs and
services as appropriate.

e Train, motivate, and evaluate library personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with
employees to correct deficiencies.

e Assist the Library Director with the development and administration of the library budget; prepare
various reports and materials explaining and assessing activities and programs.

¢ Respond to and resolve sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.
If assigned to Technical Services:

e Oversee the use of hardware and software computer applications required for maintaining the
library inventory; supervise the information tracking systems for the library; maintain the
consistency of the MARC database and the circulation database.

¢ Plan, coordinate, and implement hardware and software of enhanced digital information services
delivered through the computerized catalog and sources delivered through networks, most
notably the Internet; provide and maintain services to staff and library users.

If assigned to Youth Services:

e Maintain youth department collection; review, evaluate, add, weed, and withdraw collection
materials.

e Assist youth patrons with development of library skills.

e Coordinate exchange of library resources with other facilities, including local schools and day
care centers.

e Oversee expenditure of materials budget for youth department.

e Schedule and supervises youth staff, including Shelvers, Library Assistants, and Teen Librarian.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Senior Librarian 2 253




JOB CLASSIFICATION

If assigned to Circulation Services:

e Maintain the adult library collection; review, evaluate, add, weed, and withdraw collection
materials.

e Schedule and supervise all appropriate staff including volunteers, shelvers, library assistants, and
subordinate librarians.

e Supervise and oversee Circulation Desk and Information Desk activities; maintain the integrity of
the automated circulation local area network; perform circulation activities as necessary.

e Oversee expenditure of circulation services materials budget.
e Administer the inter-library loan process.
If assigned to Reference Services:
e Supervise and oversee Reference Services Desk; provide information to public as requested.

e Provide reference services both in person and by telephone; conduct computer searches and
administer the inter-library loan process.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of library services.

o Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive library services program.

e Principles and practices of library science, program development, and implementation.
e Methods and techniques of cataloging and referencing library materials.

e Book publishing industry and information sources in other formats.

e Operational characteristics of library equipment and tools.

e Current trends in education and curriculum development.

e Library filing and tracking systems.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Senior Librarian 3

Item 13.

254




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
e Principles of business letter writing and report preparation.

e Automated library systems.
o Reference materials and procedures.
e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

e English usage, spelling, grammar and punctuation.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

o Delegate authority and responsibility.
o Develop and administer goals, objectives, and procedures.

¢ Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

o Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations.
e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
o Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the department to which assigned.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Three years of increasingly responsible experience in a library setting, including two years of lead or
supervisory experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Master’s of Library Science from an accredited college or university.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Senior Librarian 4

Item 13.

255




JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.irregularwork-heudrs; exposure to bodily
fluids/communicable diseases (particularly the Youth Services Librarian).

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking
for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds; general manual dexterity
required for typing for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, pushing, pulling, reaching above
the shoulder motions.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Senior Librarian 5

Item 13.

256




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Senior Services Coordinator Job Code 805
icinal .
| Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 305
FLSA Status  Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 4/18/1997 Adopted
| Amended 5/9/1997, 7/1/1999, 8/25/2003, 11/14/2005, 7/1/2006, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide variety of responsible, confidential, and complex administrative, technical, secretarial,
financial, payroll, and municipal records management duties on a day-to-day basis for an assigned
department or division; represent the city in a variety of activities by promotion, coordination, and
scheduling of those activities; serve as a liaison to other city departments, staff, volunteers, vendors,
board members, members/clients, and the general public; schedule, train, and supervise paid and
volunteer personnel, as applicable; provide administrative support to a Department Director, Division
Manager, supervisor, membership/clients.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Cultural Programs Supervisor.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Maintain operating, administrative, and financial records, equipment, and supplies. Maintain fixed
assets and inventory systems and records. Process bills and payroll for Cultural Programs.

purchase-orders-and-invoices-as-assigned.

| e Provide staff presence at Hearst Center front desk. Answer questions and provide information to
the public, outside agencies, and other departments and divisions; receive, refer, or resolve
citizen and client complaints and questions; follow up to ensure proper resolution.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsSenior Services Coordinator 1 257




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Supervise-Assist Programs Coordinator with arrangement of facility and events: arrange chairs,
tables and equment in deS|gnated rooms or other areas for scheduled g#eHBaGENMes—suehas

-public
programs and/or rentals Recelve store |ssue and operate equment and supplles

Interpret services and policies to general public, vendors, and public agencies; participate in
community meetings and organizational planning.

Assist with cultural projects and activities or promotion of the city as a destination for visitors by
disseminating information about-seminars;-conferences, classes, exhibitions and public events

programs te-the-media-to-accomplish-program-objectives.via phone or mail as requested.

Prepare, type, word process, proofread, and independently compose a variety of documents
including general correspondence, reports, memoranda, and statistical charts.

Provide administrative, technical, clerical, and financial support to assist designated staff in the

completion of their duties and responsibilities; assist in receipt, distribution, and preparation of
mail; assist with operations of computer equipment including loading paper into machines.

Assist with fundraising initiatives, membership tracking, and provide support to Friends of the
Hearst.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Prepare and maintain a variety of files and filing systems; prepare, maintain and update various
records; verify and distribute information as requested; photocopy, mail or fax materials as
necessary.

Compile, maintain, produce and distribute various reports and mailings related to operations and
services of a department or division: expenditure, revenue, events, paid and volunteer personnel,
membership listings, gift shop, etc.

Attend various staff meetings; assist others answering questions, providing information, or
referring to appropriate agencies or personnel about matters related to a department or division.

Provide membership with clerical assistance for fund raising activities, bi-annual newsletter,
monthly renewal notices, record keeping, meetings and membership lists; scheduling assistance
for projects and activities, and prepare bulk membership solicitation mailings. Notify patrons of
activity schedules and registration requirements.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operations-and-PregramsSenior Services Coordinator 2

Item 13.

258




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

Communication and public relation skills; business English and spelling.
Postal regulations and rules, pertaining to bulk and mass mailings.

Practices, procedures, methods and equipment used in processing invoices and accounts
payable.

Basic principles and practices of financial record keeping and reporting.
Basic principles and practices of maintaining official municipal records.
Basic payroll processes and related procedures and regulations.

Basic database management skills for membership/donation tracking and reporting

City and departmental ordinances, policies, and procedures related to areas of responsibility.

Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and associated
equipment.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

Use of independent judgment and personal initiative

Operate various types of office equipment including telephone, typewriters, computers, printers,
facsimile machines, photocopiers, adding and charge card machines, and vehicle.

Interpret and apply administrative, departmental and divisional policies and procedures.

Work under pressure while handling a large volume of projects.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsSenior Services Coordinator 3

Item 13.

259




JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

One year office experience including high levels of public contact and experience in bookkeeping
including some experience with computer data entry equipment, and providing administrative and
technical support to others.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in finance,
accounting, business, public administration or related field. Business-and/erpublicadministration-might
alse-be-a-goodit

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver’s license preferred.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching
above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting
items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsSenior Services Coordinator 4

Item 13.

260




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Storm Water Specialist Job Code 219
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 309

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 10/5/2016 Adopted 11/7/2016

Amended 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Administer the city’s storm water management program in compliance with federal, state, and local laws
as well as the City Municipal Storm Water National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit; perform site and subdivision plan reviews and field inspections; perform a variety of technical
tasks relative to assigned areas of responsibility.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direct supervision from the Principal Engineer or City Engineer.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Administer the permitting, monitoring, inspection, enforcement, pollution prevention, and data
management activities of the city’s storm water management program in accordance with federal,
state, and local laws and the City Municipal Storm Water NPDES permit.

e Prepare reports as required by the City’s NPDES permit.

e Coordinate permit compliance between multiple departments within the city; provide educational
materials and training to city staff.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Storm Water Specialist 1

Item 13.

261




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Assist Engineering and Inspection Services staff with technical review of site plans for storm
water pollution prevention control plan compliance on subdivisions and site plans; conduct special
projects and research.

e Issue permits to contractors for storm water related activities and maintain records in database
system.

e Conduct field inspection of storm water pollution prevention plan controls for private residential
and commercial development to ensure compliance with storm water pollution prevention plans;
note deficiencies and remedial actions and maintain documentation.

e Conduct regular inspection of city and private construction activities to ensure compliance with
plans, specifications, and permit requirements; maintain project records.

e Maintain a public education program in many areas such as storm water runoff issues and
reduction methods, water quality, best management practices, storm water pollution control, lawn
care practices, composting, illicit discharge reporting, and pollution prevention for residents and
businesses.

e Oversee all aspects of the Comprehensive Watershed Assessments.

e Assist Engineering staff with budgeting and Capital Improvements Program.

e Prepare applications for grant funding.

¢ Investigate, report findings, and initiate enforcement to eliminate illicit discharges into the city’s
storm water system.

e Answer questions and provide information to city staff, private contractors and developers, and
the general public; respond to and resolves sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

e Prepare and deliver presentations to city staff, City Council, and the general public on storm
water management practices and regulations.

e Assistin and act as a resource for establishing prairie plantings on city properties and throughout
the city.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Provide staff support to the Department of Community-DevelopmentPublic Works in regards to
field inspection and training.

e Maintain a variety of logs and records related to inspection and enforcement activities.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Storm Water Specialist 2 262




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plans and best management practices.
o lllicit discharge prevention and elimination.

e Construction site safety practices.

o Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.

e Basic mathematical principles and practices.

o Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes and regulations.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Speak and present in public forums.

¢ Read and understand construction plans.

e Budget and manage programs.

e Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws, and regulations.

o Apply specific construction practices and methods as they relate to permitting requirements.
e Take initiative and follow through with enforcement issues.

e Establish and maintain professional and effective working relationships with those contacted in
the course of work.

e Handle problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with respect, firmness,
and tact.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Storm Water Specialist 3 263




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Zero to four years of technical engineering or natural resources experience.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering
technology or natural resources management in addition to four years of experience

OR

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in civil engineering
technology or natural resources management without any prior work experience.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate valid driver's license.

lowa Certified Construction Site Pollution Prevention Inspector (ICCSPPI) certification preferred or must
be obtained within 6 months from employment date. Other applicable certifications such as CSM or
CPESC are preferred, but not required.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office/field environment; travel from site to site; irregular work hours; exposure to inclement weather; loud
noises (>85Db); close proximity to moving machinery; working alongside moving traffic on roads.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; bending, crawling or kneeling during inspection activities; carrying or lifting
items greater than 40 pounds; climbing ladders/stairs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Storm Water Specialist 4 264




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Traffic Operations Supervisor Job Code 445
Department P"IH eipa P;uabelilcawt Eol 'rSkSE“ d Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 1/2005 Adopted

Amended 4/25/2005, 6/23/2014, 9/18/2017, 11/6/2017, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Coordinate and conduct the skilled, technical, and maintenance work related to the design, installation,
maintenance, and repair of the traffic control signal system, signs, and pavement markings; perform a
variety of administrative and technical functions in support of the assigned areas of responsibility and
complex staff assistance to the Public\Werks-&-ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Public-Werks-&ParksOperations & Maintenance Manager.

Provides supervision over assigned positions such as: traffic operations staff, including Maintenance
Worker and Laborers.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Perform skilled, technical, and maintenance work to design, install, maintain and repair the traffic
signals system, traffic control signs, and pavement markings; perform various administrative
tasks to maintain records and inventory of work completed; operate the equipment and vehicles
required for the assigned work.

e Coordinate staff assigned to complete the work of the traffic control activities and operations; train

staff on services and operations; develop and distribute work orders; maintain work order records
for completed work.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Traffic Operations Supervisor 1

Item 13.

265




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Recommend and assist in the implementation of goals and objectives for the traffic control
operations; establish schedules and methods for providing traffic control services and operations;
implement policies and procedures as directed by supervisory and management staff.

¢ Make recommendations for the development and administration of the traffic control budget;
forecast resource requirements; monitor expenditures; recommend purchases of equipment,
supplies, and materials; assist with the development of specifications for new purchases as
appropriate.

e Supervise and inspect the work performed by private contractors as appropriate; work with
contractors to address problems with work and schedules; recommend changes.

e Supervise the use, distribution, and inventory of supplies and materials for the operations and
activities of the traffic control operations

¢ Respond to citizen complaints and inquiries regarding traffic control; perform field inspections of
existing signs, markings and signals on city streets; verify compliance with local, state and federal
laws, codes and regulations.

o Perform electrical installation and repair projects on public infrastructure.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Stay abreast of current trends and innovations in the field of traffic services and operations.
e Assist with the installation of local area networks in city facilities as assigned.
e Conduct special studies and projects as assigned.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Methods, materials, tools, equipment, procedures, practices and theory used in the design,
installation, maintenance and repair of traffic signal systems, and traffic control signs and
markings.

e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

e Practices and procedures for traffic signalization systems and equipment.

e Practices and equipment used for pavement marking.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Traffic Operations Supervisor 2 266




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Electrical wiring techniques and procedures.

Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.
City and departmental policies and procedures

Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment.
Principles and procedures of record keeping.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Safe work practices.

Principles and practices in installing local area networks.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

Understand and interpret plans, blue prints, diagrams, specifications, work orders and notes.
Estimate time and materials needed for assigned projects.

Design and interpret sign plans and sketches.

Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
Organize work for appropriate and timely completion.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four years of increasingly responsible experience in traffic signs, signals, and markings work, including
two years of supervisory responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Traffic Operations Supervisor 3

Item 13.

267




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver’s license.

Possession of International Municipal Signal Association (IMSA) Level | and Il Certification within one
year from the date of employment.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
field and shop environment; travel from site to site; hazards associated with working in and near traffic
and in close proximity to moving machinery/equipment; exposure to dust, dirt, inclement weather
conditions, electrical hazards, and loud noises (>85dB); working from ladders or other high places.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for carrying or lifting items
greater than 40 pounds; sitting, standing, pushing, pulling, stretching, or walking for prolonged periods of
time; bending and kneeling; general manual dexterity.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Traffic Operations Supervisor 4 268




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Visitor & Tourism Coordinator Job Code 791

icinal .
Department PregramsCommunity Development Pay Band 307
FLSA Status  Non-Exempt Union Status Non-Union
Prepared 6/18/2018 Adopted 12/17/2018
Amended 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Perform a wide variety of responsible, confidential, and complex administrative, technical, and secretarial
duties on a day-to-day basis for an assigned department or division; represent the city in a variety of
activities by promotion, coordination, and scheduling of those activities; serve as a liaison to other city
departments, staff, volunteers, vendors, board members, members/clients, and the general public;
schedule, train, and supervise paid and volunteer personnel, as applicable; provide administrative support
to a Department Director, Division Manager, supervisor, membership/clients.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Visitors-& Fourism--CulturalTourism & Cultural Programs Manager.

This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Answer questions via phone, in person, and email and provide information to the public, outside
agencies, and other departments and divisions; receive, refer, or resolve citizen and client
complaints and questions; follow up to ensure proper resolution.

e Assist group tour planners by providing newsletters, itineraries, and trip details; serve as the main
point of contact for various area attractions, hotels, and restaurants.

e Supervise arrangement of facility and events: arrange chairs, tables, and equipment in
designated rooms or other areas for scheduled group activities such as art exhibits, group tours,

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsV&T Coordinator 1

Item 13.

269




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

banquets, receptions, parties, group meetings, or events. Receive, store, issue, and operate
equipment and supplies.

e Supervise and maintain volunteer program activities: scheduling, training, recruiting, planning,
and recognition.

¢ Maintain gift shop, including stocking, biannual inventory, biannual vendor payment, monthly
sales reconciliation, and ordering gift shop items.

e Interpret services and policies to general public, vendors, and public agencies; participate in
community meetings and organizational planning.

e Prepare, type, word process, proofread, and independently compose a variety of documents
including general correspondence, reports, memoranda, and statistical charts.

e Provide administrative, technical, clerical, and financial support to assist designated staff in the
completion of their duties and responsibilities; assist in receipt, distribution, and preparation of
mail; assist with operations of computer equipment including loading paper into machines.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Prepare and maintain a variety of files and filing systems; prepare, maintain and update various
records; verify and distribute information as requested; photocopy, mail or fax materials as
necessary.

e Compile, maintain, produce and distribute various reports and mailings related to operations and
services of a department or division: expenditure, revenue, events, paid and volunteer personnel,
membership listings, gift shop, etc.

e Attend various staff meetings; assist others answering questions, providing information, or
referring to appropriate agencies or personnel about matters related to a department or division.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Communication and public relation skills; business English and spelling.

e Practices, procedures, methods and equipment used in processing invoices and accounts
payable.

e Basic principles and practices of financial record keeping and reporting.

e City and departmental ordinances, policies, and procedures related to areas of responsibility.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsV&T Coordinator 2 270




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers and associated
equipment.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Establish and maintain cooperative-working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

e Use of independent judgment and personal initiative

e Operate various types of office equipment including telephone, typewriters, computers, printers,
facsimile machines, photocopiers, adding and charge card machines, and vehicle.

e Interpret and apply administrative, departmental and divisional policies and procedures.

o Work under pressure while handling a large volume of projects.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two years office experience including high levels of public contact and including one year of experience
in bookkeeping with experience with computer data entry equipment, and providing administrative and
technical support to others.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

High school diploma or equivalent with additional specialized training in financial, accounting, or
bookkeeping procedures and practices.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

None.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
high levels of public contact and customer relations; subject to frequent interruptions; occasional irregular
work hours, including evenings, weekends, and special events.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operationsand-ProgramsV&T Coordinator 3

Item 13.

271




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, or sitting
for prolonged periods of time; squatting, crouching, kneeling, bending; pushing, pulling, and reaching

above the shoulder; general manual dexterity for typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting
items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Municipal-Operations-and-ProgramsV&T Coordinator 4 272




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing

Job Title ; Job Code 792
Coordinator

Department Community Development Pay Band 309

FLSA Status Non-Exempt Union Status  Non-Union

Prepared 03/06/2620 Adopted 4/06/2620

Amended 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

This position actively solicits business from a variety of organizations and presents Cedar Falls as a
premier meeting and event destination. Through cooperative efforts with the local hospitality industry,
destination marketing partners, and community members, the Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing
Coordinator will work to secure business for the area that generates significant economic impact for our
community.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from Visiter-Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager.

This position may provide direction to positions such as: Visitor & Tourism coordinators and assistants.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Develop content for marketing materials and coordinate their layout with graphic designer.

¢ Distribute marketing materials including website, social media, print media, email promotions and
direct mail that promote Cedar Falls as a destination for meetings and groups.

e Research meetings and events that complement Cedar Falls’ image, amenities and economic
development efforts and for the purpose of bringing events to the city. This includes on-line
research, attending business to business tradeshows, sales calls, telephone calls and other
means of exposure.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator 1

Item 13.

273




JOB CLASSIFICATION

¢ Maintain a database consisting of potential clients and businesses including pertinent facts about
the types and size of events they host, those we have won, and the economic impact of these
events.

e Develop relationships with planners to produce leads. This includes active involvement with local,
state, regional and national organizations that are likely to produce new meetings and events for
the city.

e Build relationships with local hotels and businesses. Organize sales blitzes, cooperative
marketing opportunities and create proposals to attract meetings and groups to the city.

e Service events we host by organizing volunteers, shuttle services, scheduling off-site excursions
and activities, companion itineraries, speakers and entertainment.

¢ Maintain relationships with planners we have already hosted to encourage repeat business.
e Respond to all meeting inquires that come to the Visitors Bureau.

e Connect event planners with community businesses capable of providing products and services
required for a successful event.

¢ Willingness to work some nights and weekends to accommodate events, meeting schedules, and
site visits, and to attend shows and out-of-town sales calls.

e Support and assist with duties of the Visitors-& Tourism-Senior-Services-Coordinators and
Assistants including, but not limited to answering phones, assisting visitors and arrangement of
facility for events.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Assist with daily operations of the Visitor Center.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Proficiency with modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment including word
processing, spreadsheets, database management and social media.

e Principles of record keeping, letter writing, and report preparation.
e Exceptional communication skills with ability to execute effective sales presentations.

e Experience in coordinating and administering multiple projects simultaneously.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator 2

Item 13.

274




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Highly self-motivated and ability to be self-directed.
e Strong organizational skills with attention to detail.
¢ Committed to relationship-building with strong interpersonal skills.

e Exceptional listening skills and the ability to anticipate business needs.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

o Follow all safety rules and regulations of the City.

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing to inform, motivate and influence.

e Analyze data and convert this information into workable goals for improvement.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

e Prepare and present clear and concise reports to the Visitors & Tourism Board, City Council and
stakeholders.

e Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and
implement recommendations in support of goals.

o Effectively utilize: desktop publishing, word processing and spreadsheet applications, Internet,
analytics, telephone and office skills, etc.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Three years of experience in sales, marketing, or public relations, preferably in the travel and hospitality
industry,

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree in sales, marketing, hospitality or business

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator 3 275




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers;
subject to high levels of public contact, frequent interruptions, unusual fatigue factors, and irregular work
hours; occasionally subject to outdoor weather conditions.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, and
sitting for prolonged periods of time; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions;
squatting, bending, and kneeling while performing work activities; general manual dexterity required for
typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator 4

Item 13.

276




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Water Reclamation Manager Job Code 480
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 414

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 2/21/2001, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

e

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Manage, oversee, plan, and coordinate the services and operations of the city's wastewater treatment
plant and the maintenance and repair of the sanitary and storm sewer systems; coordinate assigned
activities with other divisions, outside agencies, and the general public; provide highly responsible and
complex staff assistance to the Director of Cemmunity-BevelepmentPublic Works.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Director of Community-BevelepmentPublic Works.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as:the Water Reclamation Supervisor. May exercise
supervision over positions such as: Plant Operators, Maintenance Workers, Plant Mechanic, and Lab
Technician.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Coordinate the organization, staffing, and operational activities for the city's wastewater treatment
plant and sanitary and storm sewer collection systems; plan, schedule, and monitor the work of
staff in the plant and system operation and maintenance units.

e Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for

the wastewater treatment plant and sewer system maintenance and operations; identify resource
needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Manager 1

Item 13.

277




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate Water Reclamation Division personnel; provide or coordinate
staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline and termination
procedures.

¢ Identify opportunities for improving service delivery methods and procedures; coordinate systems
and procedures development; review with appropriate management staff; implement improve-
ments.

¢ Coordinate and monitor the maintenance and repair of mechanical and electrical systems; ensure
all preventative maintenance activities are completed; oversee the work of contractors hired to
repair and install equipment, machinery, and systems.

o Develop and administer the Water Reclamation Division budget; forecast funds needed for
staffing, equipment, materials and supplies; monitor and approve expenditures; recommend
adjustments as necessatry.

o Develop plans for repair and modification of the wastewater treatment plant and sewer systems;
recommend upgrades in order to meet increased needs of the wastewater treatment system;
develop specifications for various types of new and replacement equipment; initiate requests for
capital improvement program projects.

e Conduct compliance and regulatory reviews; evaluate regulations and their potential impact on
existing operations and short and long term plans.

¢ Monitor and develop plant and field operations safety procedures; ensure safe work practices by
employees.

¢ Monitor and ensure the conduct of all preventive maintenance activities to division facilities,
equipment, and vehicles; work with other personnel within department to have equipment and
vehicle repairs completed.

e Review invoices, accounting reports, and internal division files concerning purchase orders and
requisitions; evaluate record keeping processes, administrative reports, project files, and various
other correspondence.

e Participate in engineering reviews including plans, drawings, designs, feasibility studies, costs
and operational impact analyses; work with engineering personnel in repair and maintenance of
facilities and equipment.

o Direct and participate in chemical tests of water samples; analyze effluent discharge; review plant
records, gauges, meters and other recording instruments; maintain records and files of all testing.

e Coordinate wastewater plant services and activities with those of other divisions and outside
agencies and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Director of Cemmunity
DevelopmentPublic Works; prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspon-
dence.

e Inspect grounds, buildings and equipment at the wastewater treatment plants on a regular basis
for needed maintenance and repairs.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Manager 2 278




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints regarding wastew-
ater plant operations.

e Stay informed and up to date on all EPA and OSHA regulations and requirements; adhere to all
local, state and federal rules and regulations.

e Respond to emergencies as necessary; coordinate and assign work crews during emergency
situations.

e Oversee industrial pre-treatment program; work with local industries and other agencies to ensure
compliance with all federal, state and local regulations.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations
in the field of wastewater treatment.

e Provide a variety of public relations activities including presentations and tours of plant facilities.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational procedures and practices of a comprehensive sanitary and storm sewer collection
system program.

¢ Materials, methods, practices and equipment used in wastewater collection, treatment, storage
and effluent release.

e Operational characteristics, services and activities of a wastewater treatment plant including
operations and maintenance.

e Tools, materials and equipment used in the maintenance and repair of wastewater treatment
plants, storm and sanitary sewer collections systems.

e Types and level of maintenance and repair activities generally performed in a wastewater
collection and treatment operation.

e General principles of biology, chemistry and mathematics as they relate to the treatment of
wastewater.

e Electrical, electronic, mechanical and chemical elements of wastewater collection and treatment.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Manager 3 279




JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Occupational hazards and standard safety precautions.

e Industrial hazards, toxins and chemical reactions related to wastewater treatment operations.
e Principles and procedures of record keeping and reporting.

e Principles of budget preparation and control.

e Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.

o Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Laboratory procedures and chemical testing practices related to wastewater treatment
operations.

¢ Recent developments, current literature, and sources of information related to wastewater
treatment.

ABILITY TO PERFORM

¢ Respond effectively and calmly to dissatisfied customers and emergency situations as they arise.

¢ Perform responsible and difficult work involving the use of independent judgment and personal
initiative.

e Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

¢ Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Four to Six years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of wastewater
collection and treatment facilities, including two years of supervisory or administrative responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in utility operations,
chemistry, biology, environmental science, or a related field in addition to six years of relevant experience

OR
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in utility operations,

chemistry, biology, environmental science, or a related field in addition to four years of relevant
experience.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Manager 4

Item 13.

280




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid Grade Ill Operators Certification from the State of lowa.

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Wastewater treatment plant environment; exposure to potentially hazardous chemicals and fumes; air
contamination; dirt, dust, and grease; electrical hazards; exposure to outdoor weather conditions; working
with water; working around construction equipment and alongside moving traffic on roads; working in
confined spaces; loud noises (>85dB); bodily fluids/communicable diseases.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, walking,
stooping or bending for prolonged periods of time; pushing, pulling, reaching above the shoulder motions;
carrying or lifting items up to 40 pounds; operating a motor vehicle and other motorized equipment.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Manager 5 281




JOB CLASSIFICATION

Job Title Water Reclamation Supervisor Job Code 680
Community

Department D Public Works Pay Band 411

FLSA Status Exempt Union Status Non-Union

Prepared 1/19/1995 Adopted 6/12/1995

Amended 2/10/2003, 6/23/2014, 12/17/2018, 06/21/21

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

POSITION DEFINITION

Supervise, plan, coordinate, and participate in the services and operations of the city's water reclamation
collection and treatment processes and to coordinate assigned activities with other divisions, outside
agencies, and the general public; provide highly responsible and complex staff assistance to the Water
Reclamation Manager.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives direction from the Water Reclamation Manager.

Exercises direct supervision over positions such as: the-Operators, Maintenance Workers, Mechanic, and
Laboratory Technician.

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

e Coordinate the organization, staffing, and operational activities for the city's Water Reclamation
Division including supervision of the sanitary and storm sewer collection system, lift stations, all
treatment processes, operations of staff, staff training, and maintenance activities.

e Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies and priorities for

the Water Reclamation Division; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and
procedures.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Supervisor 1

Item 13.

282




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Select, train, motivate, and evaluate Water Reclamation Division personnel; provide or coordinate
staff training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; implement discipline and termination
procedures.

¢ Identify opportunities for improving service delivery and operational methods and procedures;
review with appropriate management staff; implement improvements.

e Participate in the development and administration of the Water Reclamation Division budget;
forecast funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials and supplies; monitor and approve
expenditures; recommend adjustments as necessary.

e Participate in and coordinate the monitoring, maintenance, and repair of mechanical and
electrical systems; ensure all preventive maintenance activities are completed; oversee the work
of contractors hired to repair and install equipment, machinery and systems.

¢ Coordinate Water Reclamation Division purchasing processes; enter purchase requisitions for
operational supplies and equipment; process and review invoices; maintain purchase order files.

¢ Maintain records of all sanitary and storm sewer collection system, flood levee and treatment
activities; compile and submit applicable data to state and federal agencies for operations;
maintain database files; prepare all appropriate monthly and other periodic activity reports;
conduct tests of water samples and perform chemical analysis; record results of tests; take
appropriate action based on test results.

e Oversee industrial pre-treatment program; work with industries and other agencies; ensure
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local regulations; provide information and answer
guestions from industries, members of the public, and other agencies.

e Ensure compliance of staff with all applicable safety standards and regulations; monitor use of
safety equipment; develop and present safety training programs.

o Coordinate Water Reclamation Division services and activities with those of other divisions and
outside agencies and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Water Reclamation Manager;
prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.

e Inspect grounds, buildings and equipment at the Water Reclamation Division and holding tanks
and flood levees for needed maintenance and repairs.

¢ Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints regarding Water
Reclamation Division operations.

e Respond to emergencies as necessary; coordinate and assign work crews during emergency
situations.

e Resolve sewer billing complaints; rewrite sewer user fee ordinance as assigned; issue septic tank
hauler billings.

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Supervisor 2 283




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

e Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends, regulations,
standards and innovations in the field of water reclamation.

o Participate in the work of plant maintenance and operations staff.
e Provide tours of the wastewater treatment plant to various groups.

e Perform other duties as assigned.

MINIMUM SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE

e Operational procedures and practices of a comprehensive wastewater treatment program.

¢ Materials, methods, practices and equipment used in wastewater treatment.

e Operational characteristics, services, and activities of a wastewater treatment program including
operations and maintenance of the wastewater treatment plant, sanitary and storm sewer

systems and lift stations.

e Tools, materials, and equipment used in the maintenance and repair of wastewater treatment
plants, sanitary sewer systems and lift stations.

e Types and level of maintenance and repair activities performed in a wastewater treatment
storage, collection, and distribution operation.

e General principles of biology, chemistry and mathematics as they relate to wastewater treatment.

¢ Electrical, mechanical, biological and chemical elements of wastewater treatment, sanitary and
storm water collection systems, including lift stations.

e Occupational hazards and standard safety precautions.

e Industrial hazards, toxins and chemical reactions related to wastewater treatment operations.
e Principles and procedures of record keeping and reporting.

e Principles of budget preparation and control.

e Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation.

e Pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.

e Recent developments, current literature and sources of information related to the wastewater
treatment, sanitary and storm water collection field.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Supervisor 3 284




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

ABILITY TO PERFORM

e Respond effectively and calmly to dissatisfied customers and emergency situations as they arise.

o Perform responsible and difficult work involving the use of independent judgment and personal
initiative.

¢ Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES

MINIMUM EXPERIENCE

Two to four years of increasingly responsible experience in the operation and maintenance of a
wastewater treatment plant, including one year of lead responsibility.

MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING

Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in utility operations,
chemistry, biology, environmental science, or a related field in addition to at least four years of relevant
experience

OR

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major course work in utility operations,
chemistry, biology, environmental science, or a related field in addition to at least two years of relevant
experience.

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED

Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license.

Possession of a valid Class Ill Operators Certification from the State of lowa.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Supervisor 4 285




Item 13.

JOB CLASSIFICATION

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

Wastewater treatment plant environment; exposure to potentially hazardous chemicals and fumes; air
contamination; dirt, dust, and grease; electrical hazards; exposure to outdoor weather conditions; working
with water; working around construction equipment and alongside moving traffic on roads; working in
confined spaces; loud noises (>85dB); bodily fluids/communicable diseases.

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, walking,
stooping or bending for prolonged periods of time; pushing, pulling, reaching above the shoulder motions;
carrying or lifting items up to 40 pounds; operating a motor vehicle and other motorized equipment.

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification — Water Reclamation Supervisor 5 286




Item 14.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Green & City Council Members
FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
DATE: June 17, 2021

SUBJECT: FY2022 Payroll Resolution

Please find attached the following items that cover the period from June 26, 2021 to
June 24, 2022:

o FY2022 Payroll Resolution

o FY2022 Pay Plan and Pay Grade Schedules

o FY2022 Workshop/Session/Event Pay Plan

o The pay schedules for the union groups

The payroll resolution implements the 2.25% across the board increase for the last year
of the 5-year contract as negotiated with the Parks/Public Works Union and the
Police/Public Safety Union. You may recall that the fifth-year increase is based on the
average of the CPI over the past 12 months + .75%, but no less than 2% and no more
than 3%. Therefore, the union wage increase is 2.25% based on the CPI calculation.

The resolution also implements the merit awards for the non-union group. These
increases are based on a pool that is equivalent to the weighted average of the
bargaining groups, each employee’s performance evaluation, and their respective pay
band classification. The resolution also authorizes the pay for the Paid-On-Call (POC’s)
not covered under union contract.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

287




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

Ron Gaines City Administrator 95.125
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, February 16, 2022 0.317

Shane Graham Economic Development Coordinator 412 40.508
Longevity 0.087

Amanda Huisman Communication Specialist 409 36.168

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Jennifer Rodenbeck Director of Finance & Business Operations 420 82.696
Longevity 0.490

Cathy Niebergall Financial Technician (Part-Time) 308 32.152

FINANCIAL SERVICES DIVISION

Heidi Andersen Financial Clerk (Part-Time) 306 20.137

Patricia Freese Financial Clerk (Part-Time) 306 20.536

Katherine Aguiar Payroll/HR Technician 307 22.967
Longevity 0.144

Paul Kockler Accountant 409 34.975

Andrea Ludwig Financial Clerk 306 20.917
Longevity 0.087
Longevity, January 7, 2022 0.144

Lisa Roeding Controller/City Treasurer 414 51.915
Longevity 0.317

HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION

Toni Babcock Human Resources Manager 414 45.673

Brenda Balvanz Personnel Specialist 309 42.102
Longevity 0.433

Colleen Sole Personnel Specialist 309 36.834
Longevity 0.260

PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

Marcie Breitbach Administrative Supervisor 409 26.913
Longevity 0.087

288




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Jacqueline Danielsen City Clerk 413 47.664
Longevity 0.606
Amy Eggleston Administrative Assistant 305 19.112
Longevity, April 3, 2022 0.087
Courtney Fisher Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 19.436
Joanne Goodrich Administrative Assistant 305 23.922
Longevity 0.375
Haley Habinck Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.084
Jodi Harn Administrative Assistant 305 17.749
Kim Kerr Administrative Supervisor 409 26.913
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, November 17, 2021 0.260
Linda Loy Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.749
Lisa Reiter Administrative Assistant 305 23.977
Longevity 0.144
Longevity, September 6, 2021 0.202
Karen Stevens Administrative Assistant 305 18.212
Katherine Terhune Administrative Assistant 305 17.749
INFORMATION SYSTEMS DIVISION
Scott Ameling Information Systems Technician | 306 20.443
Denny Bowman Cable Television & Telecommunications Supervisor 412 41.402
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, February 23, 2022 0.317
Shelby Gappa Production Assistant Il (Part-Time) 016 13.630
Cory Hines GIS Analyst 411 POC 41.605
Longevity 0.087
Dan Jaeger Information Systems Technician i 308 POC 31.006
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, September 6, 2021 0.317
Angela Lindley Graphic Designer/Web Maint. Technician (Part-Time) 307 22.548
Michael Mennan Video Production Specialist 308 26.322
Jeremy Ott Video Production Supervisor 311 33.629
Longevity 0.087
Longevity, December 1, 2021 0.144

289




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Julia Sorensen Information Systems Manager 415 48.843
Longevity, May 1, 2021 0.087
Pat Williams Network Administrator 411 43473
Longevity 0.375
LEGAL SERVICES DIVISION
Kevin Rogers City Attorney 419 76.688
Longevity, November 1, 2020 0.087
PARKING
Jillane Conradi PT - Parking Meter Attendant PT-1H 19.575
Levi Hoffman PT - Parking Meter Attendant PT-1 A 15.915
November 26, 2021 PT-1B 16.391
Victoria Satterlee PT-Parking Metter Attendant PT-1H 19.575
LIBRARY
Kristi Anhalt Librarian (Part Time) 409 36.194
Jessica Bamford-Love Library Assistant 305 18.607
Longevity 0.087
William Boelts Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.661
Jennifer Brannan Library Assistant 305 17.786
Lexi Byrnes Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.786
Bryanna Carlisle Intern | (Part-Time) 010 8.629
Ayoko Condon Intern | (Part-Time) 010 8.848
Amanda Cruz Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 20.546
Timothy Daniels Library Administrative Assistant 306 19.888
Bryony Diaz Rodriguez Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 18.438
Terry Duncan Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.595
Aimee Erne Library Page (Part-Time) 301 10.940
Erin Gitchell Thompson Technology Librarian 409 28.854
Longevity, September 10, 2021 0.087
Dawn Groskurth Library Page (Part-Time) 301 11.079
Rebecca Hosford Youth Services Senior Librarian 412 34.679

290




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Mary Kabel Library Education Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 27.565
Nona Kanago Library Page (Part-Time) 301 12.458
David Keiser Library Page (Part-Time) 301 10.463
Trevor Krug Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.595
Robert LaFountain Facility Assistant (Part-Time) 013 10.195
Elizabeth Lavenz Library Page (Part-Time) 301 9.939
Renae Loomis Library Assistant 305 25.042
Longevity 0.663
Chelsea McNamee Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.595
Dan Meier Library Assistant 305 23.546
Longevity 0.144
Katherine Nedwick Library Assistant 305 19.028
Laura Pagel Library Assistant 305 19.203
Longevity 0.087
Anastasia Parsons Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.084
Ambri Refer Librarian (Part Time) 409 27.079
Marykaye Roberts Library Assistant 305 18.830
Longevity 0.087
Longevity, June 21, 2022 0.144
Kelly Stern Library Director 417 50.979
Longevity 0.202
Amy Stuenkel Senior Librarian 412 37.861
Longevity 0.144
Tiana Taylor Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.786
Julia Wehr Library Assistant (Part-Time) 305 18.240
Michael Welch Librarian (Part Time) 409 26.680
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development 420 68.014
Longevity 0.087
Longevity, July 28, 2021 0.144

201




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION
Jaydevsinh Atodaria Planner | 307 29.179
Robyn Cusmano Housing Program Specialist (Part-Time) 306 19.625
Karen Howard Planning & Comm Serv. Manager 415 52.568
Longevity, March 12, 2022 0.087
Michelle Pezley Planner Ill 412 35.262
Richard "Chris" Sevy Planner | 307 28.294
Thomas Weintraut Planner 1l 412 43.269
INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION
Jamie Castle Inspection Services Mgr. 414 45.039
Longevity, April 24, 2022 0.087
Jeffrey Craig Inspector 309 28.650
John Henderson Inspector 309 36.719
Longevity 0.202
Jason Mai Inspector 309 29.412
Longevity, April 17, 2021 0.087
Gregory Rekward Code Enforcement Officer 307 24.002
Mark Sturm Inspector 309 37.799
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, March 9, 2022 0.260
Joel Wardell Inspector 309 28.933
Longevity, May 30,2022 0.087
V&T/CULTURAL SERVICES DIVISION
Adam Bolander V&T Sales/Marketing Coordinator 309 26.988
Bonita Cunningham Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.566
Emily Drennen Hearst Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 29.217
Abby Haigh Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.958
Angela Hickok Education Coordinator (Part-Time) 308 24.849
Maggie Hines Hearst Assistant (Part-Time) 013 10.102
Sheri Huber-Otting Program Coordinator (Part-Time) 307 22.605

292




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Debra Lewis Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.610
Kimberly Manning Visitors & Tourism/Cultural Programs Manager 413 51.024
Longevity 0.375
Linda Maughan Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.958
Heather Skeens Cultural Programs Supervisor 411 32.669
Longevity, November 13, 2021 0.087
Lea Stewart Sr. Service Coordinator (Part-Time) 305 19.840
Claire Timmerman Hearst Lab Technician (Part-Time) 015 11.248
Ana Verastegui Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.610
Rebekah Wagner V&T Coordinator (Part-Time) 307 23.096
RECREATION & MUNICIPAL PROGRAMS DIVISION
Christine Anderson Recreation Program Coordinator (Part-Time) 309 29.716
Megan Gerhardt Fitness Coordinator (Part-Time) 409 28.937
Brock Goos Recreation Program Supervisor 411 40.675
Longevity 0.433
James Lillibridge Recreation & Community Programs Manager 413 39.615
Chris Schoentag Recreation Program Supervisor 411 32.989
Longevity 0.375
Kari Voss Administrative Supervisor 409 24.840
September 12, 2021 409 25.905
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
Chase Schrage Director of Public Works 420 65.582
Longevity 0.144
Julia Donahue Administrative Assistant 305 24.684
Laurie Lynch Administrative Assistant (Part-Time) 305 17.781
Brian Heath Public Works & Parks Manager 415 64.233
Longevity 0.663
ENGINEERING DIVISION
Civil Engineer | 410 31.080

Brett Armstrong

293




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Benjamin Claypool Civil Engineer Il 411 35.037
Nicholas Erickson Engineering Technician |1 309 POC 29.759
Longevity 0.087
Brad Foulk Engineering Technician 1l 309 27.411
Longevity 0.087
Maria Perez Gonzalez Storm Water Specialist 309 32.839
J. Cody Hager Engineering Technician Il 309 37.391
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, April 3, 2022 0.317
Donald McKinney Engineering Technician I 309 29.315
Kevin Niebuhr Engineering Technician Il 309 33.968
Longevity 0.663
Matthew Tolan Civil Engineer Il 411 36.506
Longevity, September 25, 2021 0.087
David Wicke City Engineer 417 65.002
CEMETERY SECTION
Jeremiah Hook Equipment Operator 17 H 28.715
Brett Morris Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 32.279
Longevity 0.087
Nicholas "Joel" Sires Laborer (Part-Time) 8E 17.367
April 2, 2022 8F 17.886
PARK SECTION
Kim Armstrong Laborer (Part-Time) 8F 17.886
March 27, 2022 8G 18.423
Robert Conrad Laborer (Part-Time) 8H 19.167
Scott Crawford Maintenance Worker 15F 24.492
October 11, 2021 15G 25.227
Kevin Cross Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 POC 43.732
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, April 6, 2022 0.260
Andrew Hoyer Equipment Operator 17D 25.257
July 21, 2021 17E 26.021
Allen lverson Laborer (Part-Time) 8B 15.891
September 14, 2021 8C 16.368

294




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Shem McCoy Laborer (Part-Time) 8C 16.368
August 13, 2021 8D 16.861
Greg Miller Laborer (Part-Time) 8H 19.167
Ryan Rieger Arborist 308 29.133
Harold Runkle Senior Groundskeeper 17 H 28.715
Longevity 0.663
Tobias Sires Arborist 308 24510
BUILDING MAINTENANCE SECTION
Matthew Buck Bldg. Maintenance Supervisor 411 POC 38.302
Longevity 0.202
Brett Riley Maintenance Worker 15D 23.085
March 18, 2022 15E 23.772
REFUSE OPERATIONS SECTION
Jeff Bass Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
October 8, 2021 15E 23.772
Benjamin Bausman Maintenance Worker 16C 22.417
July 8, 2021 15D 23.085
Christopher Blohn Maintenance Worker 15G 25.227
May 23, 2022 15 H 26.246
Stephanie Camargo Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
March 18, 2022 15E 23.772
Richard Christensen Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
October 8, 2021 15E 23.772
Lisa Conrad Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
October 8, 2021 15E 23.772
Scott Dagit Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15C 22417
February 26, 2022 15D 23.085
Darwin Fleshner Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
October 8, 2021 15E 23.772
Scott Goodenbour Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Robert Martin Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15D 23.085
December 26, 2021 15E 23.772

295




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Mike Ravn Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 16D 23.085
October 8, 2021 15E 23.772
Doyle Smith Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 37.377
Longevity 0.375
Longevity, March 14, 2022 0.433
Kevin Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Longevity 0.663
Roy Trenkamp Maintenance Worker 15H 26.246
WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION
Ryan Bonjour Maintenance Worker 15H 26.246
Tyler Griffin Water Reclamation Supervisor 411 POC 38.406
Longevity 0.202
John Koch Waste Water Operator | 16 H 27.451
Keith Lewis Waste Water Operator | 16 H 27.451
Jeremy Northrup Waste Water Operator | 16 H 27.451
Michael Nyman Water Reclamation Manager 414 POC 48.820
Longevity 0.548
Longevity, July 30, 2021 0.606
Landon Parmer Maintenance Worker 15D 23.085
June 3, 2022 15E 23.772
Chris Robinson Equipment Mechanic 18 H 30.027
Rodney Smith Waste Water Operator Il 18 H 30.027
Longevity 0.606
Kelly Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Longevity 0.663
Ted Timson Maintenance Worker 15H 26.246
Patricia Tometich Laboratory Technician 18 G 28.866
May 23, 2022 18 H 30.027
Morgan Williams Waste Water Operator | 16 A 22.098
September 8, 2021 16 B 22.762
March 8, 2022 16 C 23.443
SANITARY SEWER SECTION
Larry Camarata Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246

296




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Josh Timmerman Equipment Operator 17 H 28.715
STREET CONSTRUCTION SECTION
Adam Burg Equipment Operator 17H POC 28.715
Virgil Butterfield Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15 H 26.246
Jacob Clark Maintenance Worker 15D 23.085
October 1, 2021 15E 23.772
James Dietz Maintenance Worker 165G 25.227
August 31, 2021 15H 26.246
Dennis Douglas Equipment Operator 17 H 28.715
Rick Ehmen Maintenance Worker 15H 26.246
Royce Eiklenborg Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Mark Forrester Equipment Operator 17 H 28.715
Longevity 0.663
Kathy Gaede Maintenance Worker (Part-Time) 15E 23.772
February 13, 2022 15F 24.492
Robert Henry, Jr. Maintenance Worker 15H 26.246
Trevor Johnson Maintenance Worker 15C 22.417
February 24, 2022 15D 23.085
Cody Kayser Equipment Operator 17F 26.797
July 18, 2021 17G 27.606
Ken Lewis Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Casey Paine Maintenance Worker 15B 21.761
September 30, 2021 15C 22.417
Josiah Smith Maintenance Worker 15C 22.417
October 7, 2021 15D 23.085
Mike Soppe Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 32.604
Longevity 0.317
Travis Schlamp Equipment Operator 17 H 28.715
Joe Tegtmeier Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246
Jason Yearous Public Works & Parks Supervisor 411 31.855
Longevity 0.087
Longevity, June 30, 2021 0.144

297




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021

NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY

Carl Yokem Maintenance Worker 15 H 26.246

TRAFFIC OPERATIONS SECTION

Brian Graham Maintenance Worker 15 H POC 26.246

Matthew Lukehart Traffic Operations Supervisor 411 33.100
Longevity, March 1, 2022 0.087

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SECTION

Derek Gearhart Equipment Mechanic 18 E 27.210
April 30, 2022 18 F 28.031

Andrew Lee Asst. Equipment Mechanic 15B 21.761
June 27, 2021 15C 22.417

Richard Mitchell Asst. Equipment Mechanic (Part-Time) 15B 21.761
June 27, 2021. 15C 22.417

Dustin Rawdon Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 411 39.142
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, February 16, 2022 0.260

Robert Richardson Equipment Mechanic 18 H 30.027

Brian Steinlage Equipment Mechanic 18 H 30.027

Bradley Yearling Equipment Mechanic 18 C 25.649
July 22, 2021 18D 26.424

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

Jeffrey Olson Director of Public Safety Services 420 80.857
Longevity 0.663

FIRE DIVISION

John Bostwick Asst. Director of Public Safety Serv./Fire Chief 416 64.559
Longevity 0.663

Thomas Baltes Public Safety Officer PSO-2-ill 34.206

Derek Brown Fire Captain 411 PSO 47.124
Longevity 0.433

Chris Copp Public Safety Officer PSO-2-iX 39.570
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, August 26, 2021 0.260

Scott Dougan, Jr. Public Safety Officer PSO-2-111 34.206

298




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Joshua Getz Public Safety Officer PSO-2-l1 33.533
August 12, 2021 PSO-2-11t 34.206
Brooke Helgeson Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lll 34.206
Longevity, August 21, 2021 0.087
Matt Krueger Public Safety Officer PSO-2-iX 39.570
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, August 26, 2021 0.260
Zachary Ladage Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant 412 43.782
Longevity 0.260
Austin Lechtenberg Public Safety Officer pPSO-2-lll 34.206
Kyle Manternach Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IlI 34.206
Shea McNamara Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 45.921
Longevity 0.144
Javier Mercado Public Safety Officer PSO-2-VI 36.302
January 7, 2022 PSO-2-VII 37.569
Longevity 0.144
Tyler Putney Public Safety Officer PSO-2- 34.206
Maxton Ross Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I 30.374
July 1, 2021 PSO-2-1I 33.533
Lucas Schmidt Public Safety Officer PSO-2-Iil 34.206
Kurt Schreiber Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 48.947
Longevity 0.433
Longevity, May 27, 2022 0.490
Ethan Schultzen Public Safety Officer PSO-2-1I 33.533
December 23, 2021 PSO-2-lll 34.206
Samual Shafer Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, October 6, 2021 0.260
Brad Sherwood Fire Captain 411 38.245
Longevity 0.375
Timothy Smith Public Safety Supervisor-Captain 414 56.612
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, August 8, 2021 0.317
Todd Taylor Fire Captain 411 34.852
Longevity 0.260

299




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Kelli Yates Public Safety Supervisor-Captain 414 55.281
Longevity 0.317
Longevity, September 3, 2021 0.375
Nolan Young Public Safety Officer PSO-2-ll 34.206
Longevity, January 29, 2022 0.087
John Zolondek Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 45.921
Longevity 0.260
POLICE DIVISION
Marissa Abbott Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lil 34.206
Tryston Adeimund Public Safety Officer PSO-2-l| 33.533
October 14, 2021 PSO-2-1It 34.206
Carson Barron Public Safety Officer PSO-2-Iv 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Christian Baumgartner Public Safety Officer PSO-1-lI 30.074
March 2, 2022 PSO-1-lil 30.678
Martin Beckner Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 50.529
Longevity 0.375
Ryan Bellis Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.317
Longevity, September 3, 2021 0.375
Matthew Belz Police Officer P2-1X 35.489
Longevity 0.260
Craig Berte Asst. Director of Public Safety Serv./Police Chief 416 66.891
Longevity 0.548
Longevity, January 28, 2022 0.606
Daniel Brown Police Lieutenant 412 45.758
Longevity 0.663
Kaleb Bruggeman Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lii 34.206
Katie Burkhardt Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.317
Gavin Carman Acting Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 41.549
Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, August 26, 2021 0.260
Jovan Creighton Public Safety Officer PSO-2-V 35.591
February 18, 2022 PS0O-2-VI 36.302
Longevity 0.144

300




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Paula Czarnetzki Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 15.915
Cedric Danilson Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lI 34.206
Longevity, April 23, 2022 0.087
Dusanka Devic Public Safety Officer PSO-2-Ii1 34.206
August 9, 2021 PSO-2-1IV 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Alexis Eick Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 12.057
Clinton Ferguson Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IV 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Thomas Fey Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lil 34.206
May 21, 2022 PSO-2-1IV 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Cristina Flores-Henriquez Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 12.057
Carter Fredrickson Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 11.759
Joseph Gale Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 15.915
Dee Gallaher Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 15.915
Jonathan Gerzema Police Lieutenant 412 41.827
Longevity 0.144
Longevity, December 27, 2021 0.202
Dennis Gilroy Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 15.915
Michael Haislet Police Lieutenant 412 PSO 44.292
Longevity 0.375
Grant Halbur Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 12.057
Adam Hancock Public Safety Officer PSO-2-Ii 34.206
Longevity, January 30, 2022 0.087
Kristi Hanson Public Safety Officer PSO-1-I 27.241
January 11, 2022 PSO-1-II 30.074
Jeff Harrenstein Police Captain 414 PSO 56.625
Longevity 0.548
Longevity, January 28, 2022 0.606
Michael Hayes Police Captain 414 PSO 58.878
Longevity 0.663
Kevin Hernandez Public Safety Officer PSO-2-llI 34.206
January 29, 2022 PSO-2-1IvV 34.892
Longevity, January 29, 2022 0.087

301




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Brooke Heuer Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 52.244
Longevity 0.375
Morgan Hoeft Public Safety Officer PSO-2-11 33.533
August 12, 2021 PSO-2-lll 34.206
Hannah Hoffa Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IHt 34.206
Mark Howard Public Safety Supervisor-Captain 414 58.026
Longevity 0.260
Brian Johannsen Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.202
Longevity, August 29, 2021 0.260
Cassandra Knudtson Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 11.759
Brennan Kohls Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.555
John Kramer IV Public Safety Officer PSO-1-I 27.241
July 16, 2021 PSO-1-lI 30.074
Tyler Lenox Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lll 34.206
Branden Madsen Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lll 34.206
Longevity, August 21, 2021 0.087
Michael Marcotte Public Safety Officer PSO-2-ili 34.206
August 15, 2021 PSO-2-1V 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Stephanie Moore Public Safety Officer PSO-2-I1X 39.570
Longevity 0.317
Dennis O'Neill Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 51.381
Longevity 0.375
Longevity, August 30, 2021 0.433
Nicholas Puls Police Officer P2-1X 35.489
Longevity 0.260
Longevity, September 19, 2021 0.317
Troy Purdy Public Safety Officer PSO-2-IX 39.570
Longevity 0.375
Longevity, November 3, 2021 0.433
Kari Rea Public Safety Supervisor-Lieutenant 412 44.577
Longevity 0.317
Longevity, November 26, 2021 0.375
Liese! Alexandria Reimers Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lll 34.206
Longevity, April 23, 2022 0.087

302




PAYROLL RESOLUTION FY 2022
June 26, 2021 - June 24, 2022

Item 14.

FY2021
NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY
Preston Russell Public Safety Officer PSO-2-lll 34.206
Longevity, October 30, 2021 0.087
Caitlin Ryan Public Safety Officer PSO-1-i 27.241
July 13, 2021 PSO-1-H 30.074
Kendall Schwan Public Safety Officer PSO-2-li 34.206
October 3, 2021 PSO-2-IV 34.892
Longevity 0.087
Jeffrey Sitzmann Police Captain 414 PSO 56.607
Longevity 0.490
Kaylee Stevenson Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 12.057
Tami Taber Office Assistant (Part-Time) 304 16.658
Stephanie Tejeda-Gasca Community Service Officer | (Part-Time) 015 11.000
October 7, 2021 015 11.500
Eric VanHorn Public Safety Officer PSO-2-l1l 34.206
Laura VanPatten Crossing Guard (Part-Time) PT-2 15.915

F- Frozen Pay

M - Maximum pay

POC - Paid-On-Calt

PSO - Public Safety Officer

303




CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SPECIAL PURPOSE & SEASONAL SALARY SCHEDULE
EFFECTIVE JUNE 26, 2021

Item

14.

CLASS TITLES

FLSA
STATUS

BAND #

HOURLY WAGE

MIN. MAX.

Control

Concession Stand Attendant
Garden Assistant

Intern |

Library Shelver

Recreation Division Aid
Swimming Lesson Aid

Swimming Pool Maintenance

Life Guards
Swimming Instructors

Ballfield Maintenance
Child Care

Coaches

Counselors

Facility Assistant

Head Life Guard

Head Swimming Instructor
Rec Center Receptionist
V & T/Hearst Assistant

Laborer
Office Assistant
Swimming Pool Assistant Manager

Community Service Officer |
Hearst Lab Technician

Hearst Program Assistant

Hearst Special Purpose

Intern II

Library Special Purpose
Recreation Program Coordinator |
Swimming Pool Manager

Production Assistant |

Community Service Officer I
Housing Intern

Intern IlI

Production Assistant Il

Recreation Program Coordinator Il

NE

NE

NE

NE

NE

NE

NE

NE

010

011

012

013

014

015

016

017

7.400 10.798

9.437 11.653

9.733 12.723

9.971 13.792

10.440 14.861

10.942 16.036

11.76